
AGENDA 
VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 

REGULAR MEETING 
January 4, 2016 

442 N. Cedar Lake Road 
7:00 P.M. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 

1. ROLL CALL 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

3.1 Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 7, 2015 
 

4. NOTES/COMMENDATIONS/PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

4.1 Public Comment 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
5.1 Approve Accounts Payable in the Amount of $522,624.06 

 
5.2 Approve Payroll for the Period Ending December 13, 2015 in the Amount of 

$131,439.48 
 

5.3 Approve Payroll for the Period Ending December 27, 2015 in the Amount of 
$145,202.97 

 
5.4 Adopt a Resolution Approving the Purchase of De-Icing Liquids from the Sole 

Provider, Industrial Systems Ltd. not to Exceed the Budge Amount of $11,250 
 

5.5 Adopt a Resolution Approving a Contract for Emergency Snow Removal Services 
with Mark Meade 

 
5.6 Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the Village of Round Lake Police Department to 

Purchase a Closed Circuit Video System and Installation from Current 
Technologies in an Amount not to Exceed $18,577.79 
 

6. CLERK’S OFFICE 
 
6.1 Round Lake Chamber Installation Dinner 

 
7. ADMINISTRATOR 

 
8. FINANCE  

 
 



Agenda – Regular Meeting January 4, 2016 Page 2 

 
 

9. POLICE 
 

10. PUBLIC WORKS 
 

10.1 Adopt a Resolution Ratifying Guard Rail Traffic Barrier Terminal Repairs in an 
Amount not to Exceed $6,361 
 

11. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

12. BUILDING AND ZONING 
 

12.1 Adopt a Resolution Approving the 2015 Comprehensive Plan 
 

13. SPECIAL EVENTS 
 

14. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 

14.1 Appointment of Maria Simoncelli to the Village of Round Lake Police Pension 
Board 
 

14.2 Trustee’s Comments 
 

15. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

16. ADDITIONAL BUSINESS 
 

17. ADJOURN 



3.1

MINUTES 
VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 

REGULAR MEETING 
December 7, 2015 

442 N. Cedar Lake Road 
7:00 P.M. 

CALL TO ORDER 
THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF THE VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE WAS CALLED 
TO ORDER BY DAN MACGILLIS, VILLAGE PRESIDENT AT 7:00P.M. 

1. ROLL CALL
Present: Trustees Foy, Frye, Kraly, Rodriguez, Triphahn
Absent:  Trustee Newby

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

3.1 Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of November 16, 2015 
Motion by Trustee Frye, Seconded by Trustee Foy, to approve the Minutes of the 
Regular Meeting of November 16, 2015. Upon a unanimous voice vote, the Mayor 
declared the motion carried 

4. NOTES/COMMENDATIONS/PUBLIC COMMENT

4.1 Public Comment 
NONE 

5. CONSENT AGENDA
Motion by Trustee Kraly, Seconded by Trustee Rodriguez, to do an Omnibus approval on
items 5.1, 5.2, 5.3, 5.4, 5.5, 5.6 & 5.7

Upon the call of the roll, the following voted:
Ayes: Trustees Foy, Frye, Kraly, Rodriguez, Triphahn 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Trustee Newby 

Mayor MacGillis Declared the Motion carried 

5.1 Approve Accounts Payable in the Amount of $1,541,289.75 

Approved – Omnibus Vote 

5.2 Approve Payroll for the Period Ending November 15, 2015 in the Amount of 
$130,478.13 

Approved – Omnibus Vote 

draft



Minutes – Regular Meeting December 7, 2015 Page 2 

 
5.3 Approve Payroll for the Period Ending November 29, 2015 in the Amount of 

$159,598.58 
Approved – Omnibus Vote 

 
5.4 Adopt a Resolution Approving a Proposal from Liberty Surety First for Public 

Official’s bonds in an Amount not to exceed $1,672.00 
 

Approved – Omnibus Vote 
 

5.5 Adopt a Resolution Approving a Proposal from Trident for Property/Casualty 
Insurance Program in an amount no to exceed $111,932.00 
 

Approved – Omnibus Vote 
 

5.6 Adopt a Resolution Approving a Proposal from Illinois Public Risk Fund for 
Worker’s Compensation Insurance in an Amount not to exceed $90,871.00 
 

Approved – Omnibus Vote 
 

5.7 Accept the Pavement Management Report Update as Presented 
 

Approved – Omnibus Vote 
 

6. CLERK’S OFFICE 
 
6.1 Approve the 2016 Board and COTW Meeting Dates 

Motion by Trustee Kraly, Seconded by Trustee Frye, to Approve the 2016 Board 
and COTW Meeting Dates. Upon a unanimous voice vote, the Mayor declared the 
motion carried 
 
 

6.2 The Village Hall will be closed Thursday, December 24th and Friday, December 
25th in observance of Christmas.  We will also close at 12:30 pm on December 31st 
and will be closed January 1st in observance of New Year’s Day 

 
6.3 Holiday Decoration Contest 

Clerk Blauvelt mentioned that currently there is only one person signed up for the 
contest and if the board had any objections in canceling the contest this year. The 
board agreed that due to lack of participation, the contest will be cancelled.  

 
6.4 Alice Lohman 15 – Year Anniversary 

Clerk Blauvelt recognized Alice Lohman, from the Police Records area of the 
Police Department, on her 15 year anniversary with the Village of Round Lake, 
presenting her with a certificate from the Village 

 
7. ADMINISTRATOR 

 
8. FINANCE  

 



Minutes – Regular Meeting December 7, 2015 Page 3 

Motion by Trustee Kraly, Seconded by Trustee Rodriquez to do an omnibus approval on 
items 8.1 – 8. 10. Under discussion Trustee Triphahn originally requested item 8.1 pulled 
and voted on separately, however it was decided to have it stay as the group and approve 
all together.  
 
Upon the call of the roll, the following voted: 

Ayes:  Trustees Foy, Frye, Kraly, Rodriguez, Triphahn 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Trustee Newby 
 

Mayor MacGillis Declared the Motion carried 
 

 
8.1 Adopt an Ordinance for the Levy of Taxes for the Village of Round Lake for the 

Fiscal year Commencing May 1, 2015 
 

Approved – Omnibus Vote 
 

8.2 Adopt an Ordinance Abating the Tax Levied for 2015 for the $2,360,000 General 
Obligation Bonds Series 2005 General Obligation Bonds  
 

Approved – Omnibus Vote 
 

8.3 Adopt an Ordinance Abating the Tax Levied for the Year 2015 for the $9,100,000 
Series 2010A General obligation Bonds 
 

Approved – Omnibus Vote 
 

8.4 Adopt an Ordinance Abating the Tax Levied for the year 2015 for the $1,260,000 
Series 2010B General Obligation Bonds 
 

Approved – Omnibus Vote 
 

8.5 Adopt an Ordinance Abating the Tax Levied for the year 2015 for the $1,165,000 
Series 2010C General Obligation Bonds  
 

Approved – Omnibus Vote 
 

8.6 Adopt an Ordinance Abating the Tax Levied for the year 2015 for the $2,955,000 
Series 2011 General Obligation Bonds 
 

Approved – Omnibus Vote 
 

8.7 Adopt an Ordinance Abating Special Service Area Taxes for Lakewood Grove 
Special Service Area Number One for 2015 
 

Approved – Omnibus Vote 
 



Minutes – Regular Meeting December 7, 2015 Page 4 

8.8 Adopt an Ordinance Abating Special Service Area Taxes for Lakewood Grove 
Special Service Area Number Three for 2015 
 

Approved – Omnibus Vote 
 

8.9 Adopt an Ordinance Abating Special Service Area Taxes for Lakewood Grove 
Special Service Area Number Four for 2015 
 

Approved – Omnibus Vote 
 

8.10 Adopt an Ordinance Abating Special Service Area Taxes for Bright Meadow 
Service Area Number One for 2015 
 

Approved – Omnibus Vote 
 

9. POLICE 
 

10. PUBLIC WORKS 
 

11. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

12. BUILDING AND ZONING 
 

12.1 Adopt an Ordinance Amending The Zoning Code to Add a Special Uses Category 
to Zoning Classification I-1, 17.68.040 – Special Uses. “L. Tow Truck Recovery 
Service” 
Motion by Trustee Rodriguez, seconded by Trustee Triphahn, to Adopt an 
Ordinance Amending the Zoning Code to Add a Special Uses Category to Zoning 
Classification I-1, 17.68/040 – Special uses, “L. Tow Truck Recovery Service” 
 
 Upon the call of the roll, the following voted: 

Ayes:  Trustees Foy, Frye, Kraly, Rodriguez, Triphahn 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Trustee Newby 

 
Mayor MacGillis Declared the Motion carried 

 
 

12.2 Adopt an Ordinance Granting a Special Use Permit for the Operation of a Tow 
Truck Recovery Service to Chicagoland HXL, 810 Sunset Drive, Round Lake, IL 
Motion by Trustee Foy, Seconded by Trustee Frye, to Adopt an Ordinance 
Granting a Special Use Permit for the Operation of a Tow Truck Recovery Service 
to Chicagoland HXL, 810 Sunset Drive, Round Lake, IL  
 
Upon the call of the roll, the following voted: 

Ayes:  Trustees Foy, Frye, Kraly, Rodriguez, Triphahn 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Trustee Newby 



Minutes – Regular Meeting December 7, 2015 Page 5 

 
Mayor MacGillis Declared the Motion carried 

 
 
 

12.3 Adopt an Ordinance Amending the zoning code to revise a Special Use Category 
in zoning Classification I-1, 17-68-040 – Special uses. “I. Catering Facility in 
which Food is Prepared on Premises for Serving Elsewhere with the Option to 
Service Alcoholic Beverages as an Incidental and Complementary Part of the Food 
Catering Service”   
Motion by Trustee Kraly, Seconded by Trustee Frye, to Adopt an Ordinance 
Amending the Zoning Code to Revise a Special Use Category in Zoning 
classification I-1, 17-68-040 as listed above  
 
Upon the call of the roll, the following voted: 

Ayes:  Trustees Foy, Frye, Kraly, Rodriguez, Triphahn 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Trustee Newby 

 
Mayor MacGillis Declared the Motion carried 

 
 

12.4 Adopt an Ordinance Granting A Special Use Permit to Allow the Sale and Service 
of Alcoholic Beverages to Don Luis Catering at 758 Magna Drive, Unit D, Round 
Lake, IL 
Motion by Trustee Triphahn, Seconded by Trustee Frye to Adopt an Ordinance 
Granting a Special Use Permit to Allow the Sale and Service of Alcoholic 
Beverages to Don Luis Catering at 758 magna Drive, Unit D, Round Lake, IL  
 
Upon the call of the roll, the following voted: 

Ayes:  Trustees Foy, Frye, Kraly, Rodriguez, Triphahn 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Trustee Newby 

 
Mayor MacGillis Declared the Motion carried 

 
 

12.5 Adopt an Ordinance Granting a Special Use Permit to Allow the Sale of Alcoholic 
Beverages to Lucky Slots, 401 N. Wilson Road, Round Lake, IL  
Motion by Trustee Kraly, Seconded by Trustee Frye to Adopt an Ordinance 
Granting a Special Use Permit to Allow the Sale of Alcoholic Beverages to Lucky 
Slots, 401 N. Wilson Road, Round Lake, IL. Under discussion Village Attorney 
Luke Glison mentioned that this Special Use permit had gone before the Planning 
& Zoning Board of Appeals and they denied the application due to residents’ 
concerns  that the business would just be selling alcohol and having gaming 
without serving any type of food on premise. Mr. Glison stated that due to the 
denial, the Village Board would need four (4) Trustees to vote Aye, in order for it 
to be overturned. Mr. Glison then read a letter from Mr. Sam Desai, the proposed 



Minutes – Regular Meeting December 7, 2015 Page 6 

owner of Lucky Slots. Mr. Desai, as well as Mr. Lacassi, owner of the strip mall, 
spoke on behalf of having the ordinance granted.  Several residents, Ms. Lori 
Santos, Mr. Tom Goszczynski and Mr. Andrew Herman, residents near the 
proposed business, spoke on their concerns of having the ordinance passed. Some 
concerns had been the 10am opening, the business not serving food, traffic through 
the subdivision and just being a typical bar in a strip mall setting.  The Mayor also 
stated that he has received several calls and emails voicing the same concerns.  
 
Upon the call of the roll, the following voted: 

Ayes:  None 
Nays:  Trustees Foy, Frye, Kraly, Rodriguez, Triphahn 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Trustee Newby 

 
Mayor MacGillis Declared the Motion failed 

 
 

13. SPECIAL EVENTS 
 

14. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 

14.1 Tree Lighting Follow-up 
The Mayor thanked everyone that was involved in the Tree Lighting and 
commented on how great the turn out had been as well as the wonderful weather 
that we had.  
 

14.2 December 21st Village Board and Committee of the Whole Meetings Cancelled  
 

14.3 Trustee’s Comments 
The Trustees also thanked those involved in the Tree Lighting, mentioned the Lake 
County Municipal League Dinner that had been attended by some, wished Trustee 
Newby a speedy recovery and wished everyone a very Merry Christmas and 
Happy New Year since we will not have a meeting on the 21st.  
 

15. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
NONE 
 

16. ADDITIONAL BUSINESS 
 

17. ADJOURN 
 
Trustee Triphahn Foy, seconded by Trustee Triphahn, to adjourn.  Upon a unanimous 
voice vote, the Mayor declared the motion carried and the meeting adjourned at 7:45    
P.M. 
 
APPROVED:   
 
_________________________  _______________________ 
Patricia C. Blauvelt    Daniel MacGillis 
Village Clerk     Village President  



 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    5.1 

  
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 
 
 
 
 

THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF  
 

THE VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 
 

APPROVES THE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
 

IN THE AMOUNT OF $522,624.06 
 
                                                                    
 

 
 

________________________________ 
Daniel A. MacGillis, Village President 

 
 ATTEST: 

 
 

           ___________________________ 
Patricia C. Blauvelt, Village Clerk 
 
 
 
Date: January 4, 2016 



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:   1

TIME: 14:13:38                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                            GENERAL FUND

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

ACCOUNT #            ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

                     VENDOR NAME                      VENDOR #    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION         CHECK #  CHECK DATE    ITEM AMOUNT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-00-24-22500       RETIREE INSURANCE

                     FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE-EYE MED   F97         VISION INSURANCE-DEC            181695    12/23/15            9.40

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                            9.40

01-20-71-67108       VISION INSURANCE

                     FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE-EYE MED   F97         VISION INSURANCE-DEC            181695    12/23/15           30.35

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           30.35

01-20-71-67110       HEALTH INSURANCE

                     UMB                              U22         HSA CONTRIBUTIONS-JANUARY       181691    12/22/15          437.49

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          437.49

01-20-72-67208       MEETINGS, TRAVEL, & TRAINING

                     ROUND LAKE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE   R15         CHAMBER LUNCHEON-6 ATTENDEES    181757    12/30/15           60.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           60.00

01-20-73-77307       ENGINEERING EXPENSES

                     BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.           B2          STAFF MEETINGS 11/16 AND 12/01  181710    12/30/15          489.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          489.00

01-20-73-77309       VILLAGE PLANNER

                     TESKA  ASSOCIATES, INC.          T49         RT 53 MTG W/MAYOR AND STAFF     181768    12/30/15          225.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          225.00

01-20-73-77313       LEGAL SERVICES

                     TRESSLER LLP                     T110        NOVEMBER ZBA MEETINGS           181765    12/30/15        2,808.00

                     TRESSLER LLP                     T110        NOVEMBER ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT   181765    12/30/15          195.00

                     TRESSLER LLP                     T110        EVICTION PROCESS                181765    12/30/15           78.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        3,081.00

01-20-73-77315       ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT MARKETING

                     GINO DEVIVO                      D104        6/16-12/31/2015 SERVICE/EVENTS  181720    12/30/15        9,459.00

                     MFR CREATIONS                    M186        PARCEL MAPS                     181744    12/30/15          520.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        9,979.00

01-20-74-77430       OFFICE SUPPLIES



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:   2

TIME: 14:13:38                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                            GENERAL FUND

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

ACCOUNT #            ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

                     VENDOR NAME                      VENDOR #    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION         CHECK #  CHECK DATE    ITEM AMOUNT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-20-74-77430       OFFICE SUPPLIES

                     ILLINOIS PAPER COMPANY           I6          COPIER PAPER                    181733    12/30/15          323.39

                     QUILL CORPORATION                Q2          CASH REGISTER ROLLS, RULER      181755    12/30/15          119.48

                     READY REFRESH                    R104        BOTTLED WATER                   181756    12/30/15           51.87

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          494.74

01-20-74-77432       POSTAGE EXPENSE

                     PITNEY BOWES, INC                P12         Q4 POSTAGE METER RENTAL         181690    12/22/15          123.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          123.00

01-20-74-77440       PRINTING

                     DELUXE                           D92         2015 TAX FORMS-W2,1096,1099     181694    12/23/15          258.10

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          258.10

01-20-75-77515       GARBAGE COLLECTION

                     WASTE MANAGEMENT                 W43         NOVEMBER 2015 SERVICE           181771    12/30/15       80,096.16

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                       80,096.16

01-20-75-77537       LEGAL NOTICES/RECORDING FEES

                     CHICAGO TRIBUNE MEDIA GROUP      C165        HEARING NOTICE-CHICAGOLAND HXL  181674    12/11/15           43.20

                     CHICAGO TRIBUNE MEDIA GROUP      C165        HEARING NOTICE-LUCKY SLOTS      181674    12/11/15           40.80

                     CHICAGO TRIBUNE MEDIA GROUP      C165        HEARING NOTICE-DON LUIS CATERI  181674    12/11/15           58.40

                     CHICAGO TRIBUNE MEDIA GROUP      C165        HEARING NOTICE-COMPREHNSV PLAN  181674    12/11/15           31.20

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          173.60

01-20-77-77704       SPECIAL EVENTS

                     ACE HARDWARE                     A4          BULBS,GARLAND,BATTERIES         181706    12/30/15          160.87

                     GRAYSLAKE FEED SALES INC.        G115        STRAW-CHRISTMAS TRAILER RIDE    181727    12/30/15           63.70

                     MENARDS FOX LAKE                 M7          CHRISTMAS TREE-VH LOBBY         181746    12/30/15           49.88

                     CHARTER ONE                      C282        COOKIES FOR TREE LGHTNG EVENT   181693    12/23/15           30.53

                     CHARTER ONE                      C282        LABELS FOR BOOKS FROM SANTA     181693    12/23/15           11.50

                     CHARTER ONE                      C282        BACKDROP FABRIC FOR SANTA       181693    12/23/15           15.01

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          331.49

01-20-77-77706       MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE

                     PATRICIA BLAUVELT                B56         RECOGNITION GC-A.LOHMAN 15YR    181712    12/30/15           75.00

                     ILLINOIS STATE POLICE            I110        SOR PAYMENTS                    181676    12/11/15          420.00



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:   3

TIME: 14:13:38                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                            GENERAL FUND

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

ACCOUNT #            ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

                     VENDOR NAME                      VENDOR #    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION         CHECK #  CHECK DATE    ITEM AMOUNT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-20-77-77706       MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE

                     ILLINOIS ATTORNEY GENERAL        I111        SOR PAYMENTS                    181677    12/11/15          420.00

                     TREASURER OF THE STATE OF IL     T118        SOR PAYMENTS                    181684    12/11/15           70.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          985.00

01-20-79-77903       B&G CONTRACTS

                     ARAMARK UNIFORM                  A119        VH SUPPLIES 12-08-15            181701    12/30/15          155.59

                     ARAMARK UNIFORM                  A119        VH MAT SERVICE 12-08-15         181701    12/30/15           63.74

                     ARAMARK UNIFORM                  A119        VH MAT SERVICE 12-22-15         181701    12/30/15           53.48

                     ARAMARK UNIFORM                  A119        VH SUPPLIES 12-22-15            181701    12/30/15           51.95

                     CLEAN NET                        C110        DECEMBER CUSTODIAL              181714    12/30/15          467.64

                     CLEAN NET                        C110        THANKSGIVING CREDIT-NO SERVICE  181714    12/30/15          -58.45

                     ORKIN EXTERMINATING              O5          12/21/15 QTRLY PEST CONTROL     181753    12/30/15          153.51

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          887.46

01-20-80-88018       OFFICE EQUIPMENT

                     KONICA MINOLTA                   K33         NOVEMBER USAGE C454-VH          181678    12/11/15          213.02

                     KONICA MINOLTA PREMIER FINANCE   K56         DECEMBER LEASE PAYMENT          181679    12/11/15          261.37

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          474.39

01-20-82-88202       TELEPHONE SERVICE

                     CALL ONE                         C139        NOVEMBER PHONE SERVICE          181688    12/22/15          541.79

                     COMCAST CABLE                    C156        12/21-01/20/2016 INTERNET       181689    12/22/15          147.85

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          689.64

01-20-82-88204       CELLULAR SERVICE

                     VERIZON WIRELESS                 V10         NOV TABLET SERVICE-STAFF        181686    12/11/15           52.20

                     VERIZON WIRELESS                 V10         NOV TABLET SERVICE-VB           181686    12/11/15          193.00

                     VERIZON WIRELESS                 V10         NOVEMBER CELL SERVICE           181686    12/11/15          119.60

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          364.80

01-20-91-99105       NETWORK REPAIRS

                     CURRENT TECHNOLOGIES             C280        12/04/15-IT REPAIR(BACK-UP)     181692    12/23/15           61.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           61.00

01-20-91-99107       IT MAINTENANCE SERVICES

                     CURRENT TECHNOLOGIES             C280        SSL CERTIFICATE LICENSE         181692    12/23/15          229.00



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:   4

TIME: 14:13:38                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                            GENERAL FUND

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

ACCOUNT #            ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

                     VENDOR NAME                      VENDOR #    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION         CHECK #  CHECK DATE    ITEM AMOUNT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-20-91-99107       IT MAINTENANCE SERVICES

                     CURRENT TECHNOLOGIES             C280        12/01/15-IT MAINTENANCE         181692    12/23/15          854.00

                     CURRENT TECHNOLOGIES             C280        12/15/15-IT MAINTENANCE         181692    12/23/15          976.00

                     CHARTER ONE                      C282        VERIO WEB HOSTING REFUND        181693    12/23/15         -329.43

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        1,729.57

01-40-71-67108       VISION INSURANCE

                     FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE-EYE MED   F97         VISION INSURANCE-DEC            181695    12/23/15          229.79

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          229.79

01-40-71-67110       HEALTH INSURANCE

                     UMB                              U22         HSA CONTRIBUTIONS-JANUARY       181691    12/22/15        1,458.30

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        1,458.30

01-40-72-67202       UNIFORMS

                     GALLS, AN ARAMARK COMPANY        G2          ATHLETIC OXFORD-AKEY            181728    12/30/15          114.51

                     GALLS, AN ARAMARK COMPANY        G2          DOOR OPENER,CASE-ROBINSON       181728    12/30/15           44.25

                     GALLS, AN ARAMARK COMPANY        G2          BIG EASY TOOL KIT-ROBINSON      181728    12/30/15           65.50

                     GALLS, AN ARAMARK COMPANY        G2          BIG EASY TOOL KIT-LANDSVERK     181728    12/30/15           63.41

                     GALLS, AN ARAMARK COMPANY        G2          CAP EMBROIDERY-AKEY             181728    12/30/15           27.75

                     GALLS, AN ARAMARK COMPANY        G2          CARGO PANTS-URBANIK             181728    12/30/15          126.42

                     GALLS, AN ARAMARK COMPANY        G2          FLEECE/TACT HEATGEAR-M RODRIGU  181728    12/30/15          236.20

                     J.G. UNIFORMS, INC.              J4          CUSTOM VEST COVER-D.CHENEY      181734    12/30/15          155.62

                     RAY O'HERRON CO., INC.           O1          PANT, CAP,  HOLSTER, EXTENDER   181752    12/30/15          207.90

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        1,041.56

01-40-72-67204       DUES & MEMBERSHIPS

                     CHARTER ONE                      C282        2016 IACP RENEWAL-GILLETTE      181693    12/23/15          175.00

                     CHARTER ONE                      C282        VILLAGE MEMBERSHIP-SAMS CLUB    181693    12/23/15           45.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          220.00

01-40-72-67208       MEETINGS, TRAVEL, & TRAINING

                     CHARTER ONE                      C282        EMRGNCY INCIDENT MGMT MATERIAL  181693    12/23/15          246.31

                     CHARTER ONE                      C282        EMRGNCY INCIDENT MGMT CREDIT    181693    12/23/15          -59.95

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          186.36

01-40-73-77313       LEGAL SERVICES



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:   5

TIME: 14:13:38                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                            GENERAL FUND

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

ACCOUNT #            ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

                     VENDOR NAME                      VENDOR #    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION         CHECK #  CHECK DATE    ITEM AMOUNT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-40-73-77313       LEGAL SERVICES

                     ALBERT L.  WYSOCKI               W78         NOVEMBER LEGAL                  181772    12/30/15        3,550.50

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        3,550.50

01-40-74-77402       AMMO / GUNS

                     CHARTER ONE                      C282        50 BOXES OF AMMUNITION          181693    12/23/15          622.19

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          622.19

01-40-74-77430       OFFICE SUPPLIES

                     QUILL CORPORATION                Q2          FOLDERS-TRANSPARENCY FILM       181755    12/30/15           50.97

                     QUILL CORPORATION                Q2          FOLDERS,PAPER,BATTERIES         181755    12/30/15          208.47

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          259.44

01-40-74-77432       POSTAGE

                     PITNEY BOWES INC                 P68         Q1 POSTAGE METER RENTAL         181683    12/11/15           99.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           99.00

01-40-74-77434       OPERATING SUPPLIES

                     EVIDENT                          E33         EVIDENCE COLLECTION SUPPLIES    181723    12/30/15          349.44

                     EVIDENT                          E33         EVIDENCE COLLECTION SUPPLIES    181723    12/30/15           80.50

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          429.94

01-40-75-77501       ALERTS / MDT LINES

                     VERIZON WIRELESS                 V10         10/26/15-11/25/15 BROADBAND     181686    12/11/15          609.67

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          609.67

01-40-75-77503       ANIMAL CONTROL

                     CHARTER ONE                      C282        CANINE CREMATION                181693    12/23/15          180.68

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          180.68

01-40-75-77525       LAKE COUNTY MEG MEMBERSHIP

                     LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA             L38         NOVEMBER CONTRACT FEE           181682    12/11/15           33.50

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           33.50

01-40-77-77706       MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:   6

TIME: 14:13:38                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                            GENERAL FUND

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

ACCOUNT #            ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

                     VENDOR NAME                      VENDOR #    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION         CHECK #  CHECK DATE    ITEM AMOUNT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-40-77-77706       MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE

                     SECRETARY OF STATE               S5A         PLATE RENEWAL #45               181763    12/30/15          101.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          101.00

01-40-77-77712       SENATE 740 EXPENSES

                     ILL. LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION   I61A        2016 BASSET RENEWAL 5A0097597   181696    12/23/15          250.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          250.00

01-40-77-77715       COMPUTER CRIME EXPENSES

                     SUSTEEN INC.                     S185        2016 FORENSIC SOFTWARE RENEWAL  181760    12/30/15          995.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          995.00

01-40-79-77901       B&G MAINTENANCE

                     ACE HARDWARE                     A4          CABLE TIES                      181706    12/30/15           20.22

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           20.22

01-40-79-77903       B&G CONTRACTS

                     ARAMARK UNIFORM                  A119        PD MAT SERVICE 12-08-15         181701    12/30/15           14.94

                     CLEAN NET                        C110        DECEMBER CUSTODIAL              181714    12/30/15          485.50

                     CLEAN NET                        C110        THANKSGIVING CREDIT-NO SERVICE  181714    12/30/15          -53.95

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          446.49

01-40-80-88018       OFFICE EQUIPMENT

                     KONICA MINOLTA                   K33         NOVEMBER USAGE C454-PD          181678    12/11/15          176.08

                     KONICA MINOLTA                   K33         NOVEMBER USAGE C452-PD          181678    12/11/15          127.32

                     KONICA MINOLTA PREMIER FINANCE   K56         DECEMBER LEASE PAYMENT          181679    12/11/15          261.38

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          564.78

01-40-82-88202       TELEPHONE SERVICE

                     CALL ONE                         C139        NOVEMBER PHONE SERVICE          181688    12/22/15          164.53

                     COMCAST CABLE                    C156        11/22-12/20/15 INTERNET         181673    12/11/15           73.93

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          238.46

01-40-82-88204       CELLULAR SERVICE

                     VERIZON WIRELESS                 V10         NOVEMBER CELL SERVICE           181686    12/11/15          501.18

                     VERIZON WIRELESS                 V10         NOV TABLET SERVICE-STAFF        181686    12/11/15           34.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          535.18

01-40-84-88402       GAS & OIL



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:   7

TIME: 14:13:38                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                            GENERAL FUND

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

ACCOUNT #            ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

                     VENDOR NAME                      VENDOR #    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION         CHECK #  CHECK DATE    ITEM AMOUNT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-40-84-88402       GAS & OIL

                     CHARTER ONE                      C282        GAS FOR 3 SQUADS-BP PUMPS DOWN  181693    12/23/15           57.54

                     CHARTER ONE                      C282        GAS FOR 4 SQUADS-BP PUMPS DOWN  181693    12/23/15          107.31

                     BP                               B43         NOVEMBER GAS/OIL USAGE          181687    12/22/15        3,198.39

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        3,363.24

01-40-84-88404       VEHICLE REPAIRS

                     A TIRE COUNTY SERVICE            A1          TIRE REPAIR/WHEEL BALANCE #42   181698    12/30/15           28.00

                     A TIRE COUNTY SERVICE            A1          TIRES AND WHEEL BALANCE #73     181698    12/30/15          272.45

                     A TIRE COUNTY SERVICE            A1          BRAKE PADS AND ROTORS #17       181698    12/30/15          318.32

                     A TIRE COUNTY SERVICE            A1          TIRE REPAIR/WHEEL BALANCE #41   181698    12/30/15           28.00

                     KUSTOM SIGNALS, INC.             K6          RADAR UNIT REPAIRS              181736    12/30/15          178.00

                     KUSTOM SIGNALS, INC.             K6          RADAR REPAIR PARTS #47 AND #48  181736    12/30/15          134.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          958.77

01-40-84-88406       VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

                     A TIRE COUNTY SERVICE            A1          OIL CHANGE/TIRE ROTATION #40    181698    12/30/15           47.95

                     A TIRE COUNTY SERVICE            A1          OIL CHANGE #73                  181698    12/30/15           31.95

                     A TIRE COUNTY SERVICE            A1          OIL CHANGE/TIRE ROTATION #17    181698    12/30/15           47.95

                     A TIRE COUNTY SERVICE            A1          OIL CHANGE/TIRE ROTATION #41    181698    12/30/15           47.95

                     A TIRE COUNTY SERVICE            A1          OIL CHANGE/TIRE ROTATION #33    181698    12/30/15           47.95

                     A TIRE COUNTY SERVICE            A1          OIL CHANGE/TIRE ROTATION #32    181698    12/30/15           47.95

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          271.70

01-40-91-99105       NETWORK REPAIRS

                     CURRENT TECHNOLOGIES             C280        12/07-12/08-IT REPAIR(EMAIL)    181692    12/23/15          244.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          244.00

01-60-71-67108       VISION INSURANCE

                     FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE-EYE MED   F97         VISION INSURANCE-DEC            181695    12/23/15           39.02

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           39.02

01-60-71-67110       HEALTH INSURANCE

                     UMB                              U22         HSA CONTRIBUTIONS-JANUARY       181691    12/22/15          291.66

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          291.66

01-60-72-67202       UNIFORMS



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:   8

TIME: 14:13:39                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                            GENERAL FUND

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

ACCOUNT #            ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

                     VENDOR NAME                      VENDOR #    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION         CHECK #  CHECK DATE    ITEM AMOUNT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-60-72-67202       UNIFORMS

                     CUTLER WORKWEAR                  C159        PW UNIFORMS/ACCESSORIES         181715    12/30/15           36.43

                     CUTLER WORKWEAR                  C159        PW UNIFORMS/ACCESSORIES         181715    12/30/15           29.69

                     CUTLER WORKWEAR                  C159        PW UNIFORMS/ACCESSORIES         181715    12/30/15           25.19

                     CUTLER WORKWEAR                  C159        PW UNIFORMS/ACCESSORIES         181715    12/30/15           56.69

                     CUTLER WORKWEAR                  C159        PW UNIFORMS/ACCESSORIES         181715    12/30/15           72.43

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          220.43

01-60-72-67208       MEETING,TRAVEL, & TRAINING

                     NATIONAL SAFETY COUNCIL          N86         FLAGGER TRAINING KITS           181751    12/30/15           66.19

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           66.19

01-60-72-67234       HIRING PROCESS

                     ADVOCATE OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH     A123        OLSON DRUG SCREEN               181702    12/30/15           57.00

                     ADVOCATE OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH     A123        PETERSON DRUG SCREEN            181702    12/30/15           29.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           86.00

01-60-73-77307       ENGINEERING EXPENSES

                     BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.           B2          SMC REGULATION ASST FYE 2016    181710    12/30/15          927.16

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          927.16

01-60-74-77430       OFFICE SUPPLIES

                     ACE HARDWARE                     A4          WALL CLOCK                      181706    12/30/15            8.09

                     QUILL CORPORATION                Q2          COPY PAPER, APC BACK UPS        181755    12/30/15          130.63

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          138.72

01-60-74-77458       VILLAGE SIGNS/BANNERS/FLAGS

                     EAGLE FLAG & BANNER CO.          E26         POW/MIA FLAG                    181722    12/30/15           53.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           53.00

01-60-75-77539       STREET SWEEPING

                     TKG SWEEPING SERVICES, LLC       T170        MUNICIPAL STREET SWEEPING       181685    12/11/15        3,290.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        3,290.00

01-60-79-77901       B&G MAINTENANCE

                     NORTHWEST ELECTRICAL SUPPLY      N39         LIGHT BULBS FOR PW MEN'S ROOM   181749    12/30/15            8.84



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:   9

TIME: 14:13:39                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                            GENERAL FUND

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

ACCOUNT #            ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

                     VENDOR NAME                      VENDOR #    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION         CHECK #  CHECK DATE    ITEM AMOUNT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-60-79-77901       B&G MAINTENANCE

                     NORTHWEST ELECTRICAL SUPPLY      N39         PHOTO CELL FOR PW OUTSIDE       181749    12/30/15           19.32

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           28.16

01-60-79-77903       B&G CONTRACTS

                     ARAMARK UNIFORM                  A119        PW MAT SERVICE 11-24-15         181701    12/30/15            6.98

                     ARAMARK UNIFORM                  A119        PW MAT SERVICE 12-08-15         181701    12/30/15            6.98

                     CLEAN NET                        C110        DECEMBER CUSTODIAL              181714    12/30/15          242.75

                     CLEAN NET                        C110        CREDIT OCTOBER CUSTODIAL        181714    12/30/15         -140.15

                     CLEAN NET                        C110        CREDIT SEPTEMBER CUSTODIAL      181714    12/30/15         -112.12

                     CLEAN NET                        C110        THANKSGIVING CREDIT-NO SERVICE  181714    12/30/15          -26.97

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          -22.53

01-60-79-77905       B&G REPAIRS

                     ACE HARDWARE                     A4          MAILBOXES, POSTS                181706    12/30/15          203.26

                     LURVEY LANDSCAPE SUPPLY          L86         MAILBOX REPAIR MATERIALS        181739    12/30/15          280.55

                     MENARDS FOX LAKE                 M7          POST MOUNT,CONCRETE, PAIL       181746    12/30/15          137.89

                     MENARDS FOX LAKE                 M7          MAILBOX POSTS                   181746    12/30/15        1,078.20

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        1,699.90

01-60-79-77907       B & G BUILDING SUPPLIES

                     AMERICAN GASES CORPORATION       A20         PW GAS CYLINDERS-ACETYLENE/O2   181704    12/30/15          508.20

                     ACE HARDWARE                     A4          UTENSILS,PLATES,ELBOW PVC       181706    12/30/15          170.56

                     LURVEY LANDSCAPE SUPPLY          L86         CINDER BLK ADHESIVE-BRINE WALL  181739    12/30/15           70.20

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          748.96

01-60-79-77911       LANDSCAPING

                     ACRES GROUP                      A113        LAWN MAINTENANCE-NOVEMBER       181700    12/30/15        1,795.50

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        1,795.50

01-60-80-88001       EQUIPMENT

                     FISCHER BROS. FRESH CONCRETE     F6          CONCRETE PAD FOR BRINE TANK     181725    12/30/15        2,524.00

                     HERMAN BROTHERS                  H3          LED AMBER STROBE                181732    12/30/15           36.00

                     MENARDS FOX LAKE                 M7          RETAINING BLOCK FOR BRINE TANK  181746    12/30/15        1,493.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        4,053.00

01-60-80-88002       SAFETY EQUIPMENT



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:  10

TIME: 14:13:39                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                            GENERAL FUND

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

ACCOUNT #            ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

                     VENDOR NAME                      VENDOR #    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION         CHECK #  CHECK DATE    ITEM AMOUNT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-60-80-88002       SAFETY EQUIPMENT

                     ACE HARDWARE                     A4          SAFETY GLOVES                   181706    12/30/15           23.39

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           23.39

01-60-80-88018       OFFICE EQUIPMENT

                     KONICA MINOLTA                   K33         NOVEMBER USAGE C450-PW          181678    12/11/15           72.81

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           72.81

01-60-80-88024       VEHICLE EQUIPMENT

                     R.A. ADAMS ENTERPRISES INC.      A6          PLOW PARTS FOR 40,47,52         181707    12/30/15        1,461.29

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        1,461.29

01-60-82-88202       TELEPHONE SERVICE

                     CALL ONE                         C139        NOVEMBER PHONE SERVICE          181688    12/22/15          195.12

                     COMCAST CABLE                    C156        11/22-12/20/15 INTERNET         181673    12/11/15           36.96

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          232.08

01-60-82-88204       CELLULAR SERVICE

                     VERIZON WIRELESS                 V10         NOV TABLET SERVICE-STAFF        181686    12/11/15           26.10

                     VERIZON WIRELESS                 V10         NOVEMBER CELL SERVICE           181686    12/11/15          155.69

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          181.79

01-60-82-88206       ELECTRICAL SERVICE

                     COMED                            C500        10/21-11/18/2015 ELECTRIC       181718    12/30/15           31.23

                     COMED                            C500        10/21-11/18/2015 ELECTRIC       181718    12/30/15           21.12

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           52.35

01-60-82-88216       STREET LIGHTS - ELECTRICAL

                     COMED                            C500        11/16-12/17/2015 ELECTRIC       181718    12/30/15        4,811.37

                     COMED                            C500        10/21-11/18/2015 ELECTRIC       181718    12/30/15           22.96

                     COMED                            C500        10/21-11/18/2015 ELECTRIC       181718    12/30/15           68.74

                     COMED                            C500        11/16-12/17/2015 ELECTRIC       181718    12/30/15        1,499.63

                     COMED                            C500        10/28-11/30/15 ELECTRIC         181675    12/11/15            7.74

                     COMED                            C500        10/28-11/30/15 ELECTRIC         181675    12/11/15            7.74

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        6,418.18

01-60-84-88402       GAS & OIL



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:  11

TIME: 14:13:39                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                            GENERAL FUND

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

ACCOUNT #            ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

                     VENDOR NAME                      VENDOR #    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION         CHECK #  CHECK DATE    ITEM AMOUNT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-60-84-88402       GAS & OIL

                     MANSFIELD OIL COMPANY            M165        DIESEL FUEL                     181743    12/30/15          637.57

                     MANSFIELD OIL COMPANY            M165        DIESEL FUEL                     181743    12/30/15          114.96

                     BP                               B43         NOVEMBER GAS/OIL USAGE          181687    12/22/15          421.36

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        1,173.89

01-60-84-88404       VEHICLE REPAIRS

                     A TIRE COUNTY SERVICE            A1          ENGINE REBUILD #45              181698    12/30/15        3,737.04

                     A TIRE COUNTY SERVICE            A1          STEERING GEAR BX/STABILIZR #47  181698    12/30/15          269.07

                     A TIRE COUNTY SERVICE            A1          HYDRAULIC OIL/HYD MAIN HOSE     181698    12/30/15          164.68

                     A TIRE COUNTY SERVICE            A1          ACCELERATOR PEDAL ASSY          181698    12/30/15          218.90

                     UNITED CANVAS, INC               U14         SEAT REPAIR #40                 181769    12/30/15          230.00

                     LAKE COUNTY TREASURER            L11         REPAIRS TO 2008 INTL 7400 #54   181681    12/11/15          697.88

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        5,317.57

01-60-84-88405       EQUIPMENT REPAIRS

                     ANTIOCH AUTO PARTS               A107        HALOGEN LAMP                    181699    12/30/15           49.96

                     ATLAS BOBCAT INC.                A31         HYDRAULIC FLUID-BOBCAT          181705    12/30/15           48.65

                     ACE HARDWARE                     A4          FASTENERS, OIL,SPARK PLUGS      181706    12/30/15           79.30

                     HERMAN BROTHERS                  H3          PUMP,MOTOR,GASKET #40           181732    12/30/15          341.52

                     HERMAN BROTHERS                  H3          HECK/INLET CK VALVE KITS #40    181732    12/30/15           42.07

                     HERMAN BROTHERS                  H3          4WAY CARTRIDGE VALVE #40        181732    12/30/15          115.68

                     MIDWEST HOSE AND FITTINGS, INC   M101        HYDRAULIC LINES FOR PLOW #47    181742    12/30/15           54.54

                     MIDWEST HOSE AND FITTINGS, INC   M101        HYDRAULIC FITTING-BOBCAT PLOW   181742    12/30/15           14.20

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          745.92

01-60-84-88406       VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

                     BENNY'S SERVICE CENTER, INC.     B42         OCTOBER SAFETY STICKERS         181711    12/30/15          180.75

                     G.M. SIGN INC.                   G10         VILLAGE LOGO DECALS-VEHICLES    181726    12/30/15          111.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          291.75

01-60-92-99210       STREET LIGHT REPAIRS

                     STEINER ELECTRIC COMPANY         S63         METAL HALIDE, MH LAMPS,BAL KIT  181764    12/30/15          919.84

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          919.84

01-70-71-67108       VISION INSURANCE

                     FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE-EYE MED   F97         VISION INSURANCE-DEC            181695    12/23/15           23.16

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           23.16

01-70-73-77305       BUILDING INSPECTION SERVICES



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:  12

TIME: 14:13:39                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                            GENERAL FUND

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

ACCOUNT #            ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

                     VENDOR NAME                      VENDOR #    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION         CHECK #  CHECK DATE    ITEM AMOUNT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-70-73-77305       BUILDING INSPECTION SERVICES

                     THOMPSON ELEVATOR SERVICE        T3          H001208-442 N CEDAR LAKE RD     181767    12/30/15           43.00

                     THOMPSON ELEVATOR SERVICE        T3          H013751-409 NIPPERSINK          181767    12/30/15           43.00

                     THOMPSON ELEVATOR SERVICE        T3          316 S ROSEDALE CT ELEVATOR INS  181767    12/30/15          100.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          186.00

01-70-73-77321       PLUMBING INSPECTOR

                     VPI, INC.                        V14         NOV PLUMBING INSPECTIONS        181770    12/30/15          595.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          595.00

01-70-80-88024       VEHICLE EQUIPMENT

                     SPRAY TECH INC.                  S149        VENT VISORS-TRUCK #20           181759    12/30/15           45.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           45.00

01-70-82-88202       TELEPHONE SERVICE

                     CALL ONE                         C139        NOVEMBER PHONE SERVICE          181688    12/22/15           29.70

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           29.70

01-70-82-88204       CELLULAR SERVICE

                     VERIZON WIRELESS                 V10         NOVEMBER CELL SERVICE           181686    12/11/15           93.08

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           93.08

01-70-84-88402       GAS & OIL

                     BP                               B43         NOVEMBER GAS/OIL USAGE          181687    12/22/15          136.25

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          136.25

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      GENERAL FUND                        149,304.18

                                                                                                                    ================



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:  13

TIME: 14:13:39                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                        MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

ACCOUNT #            ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

                     VENDOR NAME                      VENDOR #    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION         CHECK #  CHECK DATE    ITEM AMOUNT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

10-60-74-77436       PATCHING

                     PETER BAKER & SON CO.            P102        PATCHING MIX MATERIAL           181754    12/30/15          223.56

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          223.56

10-60-83-88301       ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS

                     BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.           B2          PHASE II MACGILLIS BRDG/SQW CR  181710    12/30/15       28,465.98

                     BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.           B2          HART RD CONSTRUCTION SRVCS      181710    12/30/15       11,594.79

                     BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.           B2          MACGILLIS BRDG/SQW CRK CONSTRC  181710    12/30/15        2,624.90

                     BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.           B2          FOREST AVE/MACGILLIS DR REHAB   181710    12/30/15        4,941.55

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                       47,627.22

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND                  47,850.78

                                                                                                                    ================



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:  14

TIME: 14:13:39                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                       SSA #1 BRIGHT MEADOWS

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

ACCOUNT #            ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

                     VENDOR NAME                      VENDOR #    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION         CHECK #  CHECK DATE    ITEM AMOUNT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

16-20-79-77911       LANDSCAPING

                     ACRES GROUP                      A113        LAWN MAINTENANCE-NOVEMBER       181700    12/30/15        1,056.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        1,056.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      SSA #1 BRIGHT MEADOWS                 1,056.00

                                                                                                                    ================



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:  15

TIME: 14:13:39                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                       2010 DEBT SERVICE FUND

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

ACCOUNT #            ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

                     VENDOR NAME                      VENDOR #    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION         CHECK #  CHECK DATE    ITEM AMOUNT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

26-20-94-99432       BOND ADMIN & DISCLOSURE FEES

                     AMALGAMATED BANK OF CHICAGO      A18         ADMIN FEES 12/1/15-11/30/16     181703    12/30/15          475.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          475.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      2010 DEBT SERVICE FUND                  475.00

                                                                                                                    ================



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:  16

TIME: 14:13:39                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                       2011 DEBT SERVICE FUND

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

ACCOUNT #            ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

                     VENDOR NAME                      VENDOR #    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION         CHECK #  CHECK DATE    ITEM AMOUNT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

28-20-94-99432       BOND ADMIN & DISCLOSURE FEES

                     AMALGAMATED BANK OF CHICAGO      A18         ADMIN FEES 12/1/15-11/30/16     181703    12/30/15          475.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          475.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      2011 DEBT SERVICE FUND                  475.00

                                                                                                                    ================



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:  17

TIME: 14:13:39                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                       CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

ACCOUNT #            ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

                     VENDOR NAME                      VENDOR #    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION         CHECK #  CHECK DATE    ITEM AMOUNT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

35-20-73-77307       ENGINEERING EXPENSES

                     BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.           B2          PAVEMENT MGMT REPORT            181710    12/30/15          644.91

                     BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.           B2          NIPPERSINK-SCHOOL TO 134 DESGN  181710    12/30/15        6,178.29

                     BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.           B2          CAPITAL PROJ PLANNING FY16/17   181710    12/30/15        1,828.05

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        8,651.25

35-20-83-88301       ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS

                     BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.           B2          LONG LAKE DR CONSTRCT SRVCS     181710    12/30/15        3,203.59

                     BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.           B2          VALLEY LAKES PATCHING CONSTRCT  181710    12/30/15          297.62

                     PETER BAKER & SON CO.            P102        VALLEY LAKES PATCHING-FINAL     181754    12/30/15      127,851.14

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                      131,352.35

35-20-88-88801       OTHER ENHANCEMENTS

                     TREASURER, STATE OF ILLINOIS     T24         TRAFFIC SIGNALS-VARIOUS LOCATI  181766    12/30/15          858.51

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          858.51

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND               140,862.11

                                                                                                                    ================



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:  18

TIME: 14:13:39                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                          WATER/SEWER FUND

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

ACCOUNT #            ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

                     VENDOR NAME                      VENDOR #    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION         CHECK #  CHECK DATE    ITEM AMOUNT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

50-00-24-22498       W/S CREDIT BALANCES

                     RONALD GANDEE                    G64         REFUND FINAL BILL OVERPAYMENT   181729    12/30/15           25.75

                     MARIA SOMARRIBA                  S189        REFUND FINAL BILL OVERPAYMENT   181761    12/30/15           17.91

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           43.66

50-60-71-67108       VISION INSURANCE

                     FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE-EYE MED   F97         VISION INSURANCE-DEC            181695    12/23/15           50.08

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           50.08

50-60-71-67110       HEALTH INSURANCE

                     UMB                              U22         HSA CONTRIBUTIONS-JANUARY       181691    12/22/15          437.49

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          437.49

50-60-72-67202       UNIFORMS

                     CUTLER WORKWEAR                  C159        PW UNIFORMS/ACCESSORIES         181715    12/30/15           36.44

                     CUTLER WORKWEAR                  C159        PW UNIFORMS/ACCESSORIES         181715    12/30/15           29.68

                     CUTLER WORKWEAR                  C159        PW UNIFORMS/ACCESSORIES         181715    12/30/15           25.19

                     CUTLER WORKWEAR                  C159        PW UNIFORMS/ACCESSORIES         181715    12/30/15           56.70

                     CUTLER WORKWEAR                  C159        PW UNIFORMS/ACCESSORIES         181715    12/30/15           72.42

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          220.43

50-60-72-67208       MEETING,TRAVEL, & TRAINING

                     NATIONAL SAFETY COUNCIL          N86         FLAGGER TRAINING KITS           181751    12/30/15           66.19

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           66.19

50-60-72-67234       HIRING PROCESS

                     ADVOCATE OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH     A123        VELASQUEZ DRUG SCREEN           181702    12/30/15           57.00

                     ADVOCATE OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH     A123        PETERSON DRUG SCREEN            181702    12/30/15           29.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           86.00

50-60-73-77307       ENGINEERING EXPENSES

                     BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.           B2          SNTRY SWR,NPPRSNK/SCHOOL LS     181710    12/30/15        2,220.33

                     BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.           B2          CAPITAL PROJ PLANNING FY16/17   181710    12/30/15        1,828.04

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        4,048.37

50-60-74-77430       OFFICE SUPPLIES



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:  19

TIME: 14:13:39                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                          WATER/SEWER FUND

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

ACCOUNT #            ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

                     VENDOR NAME                      VENDOR #    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION         CHECK #  CHECK DATE    ITEM AMOUNT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

50-60-74-77430       OFFICE SUPPLIES

                     QUILL CORPORATION                Q2          COPY PAPER, APC BACK UPS        181755    12/30/15          130.62

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          130.62

50-60-75-77535       OUTSOURCING WATER BILLS

                     THE DIRECT RESPONSE RESOURCE     D22         NOVEMBER WATER BILLING          181721    12/30/15        1,289.30

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        1,289.30

50-60-75-77547       WATER SAMPLES

                     SUBURBAN LABORATORIES, INC.      S20         COLIFORM SAMPLE 1511062         181762    12/30/15          106.00

                     SUBURBAN LABORATORIES, INC.      S20         COLIFORM SAMPLE 1511680         181762    12/30/15           97.00

                     SUBURBAN LABORATORIES, INC.      S20         DISINFECTANT BY PRDCTS 1511681  181762    12/30/15          220.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          423.00

50-60-79-77901       B&G MAINTENANCE

                     GRAINGER, INC.                   G9          LIGHT BULBS FOR TOWER           181730    12/30/15           25.56

                     GRAINGER, INC.                   G9          BULB & FUSES FOR L.S.           181730    12/30/15           81.83

                     NORTHWEST ELECTRICAL SUPPLY      N39         LIGHT BULBS FOR PW MEN'S ROOM   181749    12/30/15            8.84

                     NORTHWEST ELECTRICAL SUPPLY      N39         PHOTO CELL FOR PW OUTSIDE       181749    12/30/15           19.31

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          135.54

50-60-79-77903       B&G CONTRACTS

                     ARAMARK UNIFORM                  A119        PW MAT SERVICE 11-24-15         181701    12/30/15            6.97

                     ARAMARK UNIFORM                  A119        PW MAT SERVICE 12-08-15         181701    12/30/15            6.97

                     CLEAN NET                        C110        DECEMBER CUSTODIAL              181714    12/30/15          242.75

                     CLEAN NET                        C110        CREDIT SEPTEMBER CUSTODIAL      181714    12/30/15         -112.12

                     CLEAN NET                        C110        CREDIT OCTOBER CUSTODIAL        181714    12/30/15         -140.15

                     CLEAN NET                        C110        THANKSGIVING CREDIT-NO SERVICE  181714    12/30/15          -26.97

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          -22.55

50-60-79-77905       B&G REPAIRS

                     FAIRFIELD MATERIAL/SUPPLY INC.   F2          TOPSOIL-WATER LEAK RESTORATION  181724    12/30/15           81.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           81.00

50-60-79-77907       B&G SUPPLIES

                     ACE HARDWARE                     A4          WIRE STRIPPER,ROPE CLIPS,CUPS   181706    12/30/15          138.07

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          138.07

50-60-79-77911       LANDSCAPING



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:  20

TIME: 14:13:39                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                          WATER/SEWER FUND

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

ACCOUNT #            ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

                     VENDOR NAME                      VENDOR #    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION         CHECK #  CHECK DATE    ITEM AMOUNT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

50-60-79-77911       LANDSCAPING

                     ACRES GROUP                      A113        LAWN MAINTENANCE-NOVEMBER       181700    12/30/15          409.50

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          409.50

50-60-80-88001       EQUIPMENT

                     BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.           B2          CAMBRIDGE LS/FORCE MAIN REPLAC  181710    12/30/15        9,664.68

                     HERMAN BROTHERS                  H3          LED AMBER STROBE                181732    12/30/15           36.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        9,700.68

50-60-80-88002       SAFETY EQUIPMENT

                     ACE HARDWARE                     A4          SAFETY GLOVES                   181706    12/30/15           23.39

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           23.39

50-60-80-88018       OFFICE EQUIPMENT

                     KONICA MINOLTA                   K33         NOVEMBER USAGE C450-PW          181678    12/11/15           72.82

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           72.82

50-60-81-88101       WATER/SEWER IMPROVEMENTS

                     BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.           B2          WELL#2 CHLORINE ANALYZER INTE   181710    12/30/15        1,119.75

                     BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.           B2          NIPPERSINK-SCHOOL TO 134 DESGN  181710    12/30/15        1,238.62

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        2,358.37

50-60-82-88202       TELEPHONE SERVICE

                     CALL ONE                         C139        NOVEMBER PHONE SERVICE          181688    12/22/15          195.12

                     COMCAST CABLE                    C156        11/22-12/20/15 INTERNET         181673    12/11/15           36.96

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          232.08

50-60-82-88204       CELLULAR SERVICE

                     VERIZON WIRELESS                 V10         NOVEMBER CELL SERVICE           181686    12/11/15          156.69

                     VERIZON WIRELESS                 V10         NOV TABLET SERVICE-STAFF        181686    12/11/15           26.10

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          182.79

50-60-82-88206       ELECTRICAL SERVICE

                     COMED                            C500        10/22-11/19/2015 ELECTRIC       181718    12/30/15          115.97

                     COMED                            C500        10/16-11/14/2015 ELECTRIC       181718    12/30/15           53.51

                     COMED                            C500        10/21-11/18/2015 ELECTRIC       181718    12/30/15           51.90



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:  21

TIME: 14:13:39                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                          WATER/SEWER FUND

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

ACCOUNT #            ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

                     VENDOR NAME                      VENDOR #    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION         CHECK #  CHECK DATE    ITEM AMOUNT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

50-60-82-88206       ELECTRICAL SERVICE

                     COMED                            C500        10/22-11/19/2015 ELECTRIC       181718    12/30/15           62.33

                     COMED                            C500        10/27-11/30/2015 ELECTRIC       181718    12/30/15          422.90

                     COMED                            C500        10/29-11/30/2015 ELECTRIC       181718    12/30/15          192.45

                     MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY       M95         NOVEMBER ELECTRIC               181747    12/30/15        3,292.45

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        4,191.51

50-60-82-88208       HEATING

                     NICOR GAS                        N7          11/12-12/14/2015 HEAT           181750    12/30/15           39.54

                     NICOR GAS                        N7          11/13-12/15/2015 HEAT           181750    12/30/15           82.68

                     NICOR GAS                        N7          11/05-12/07/2015 HEAT           181750    12/30/15           84.89

                     NICOR GAS                        N7          11/11-12/11/2015 HEAT           181750    12/30/15           47.18

                     NICOR GAS                        N7          11/12-12/15/2015 HEAT           181750    12/30/15           27.61

                     NICOR GAS                        N7          11/04-12/05/2015 HEAT           181750    12/30/15           29.53

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          311.43

50-60-82-88212       LAKE COUNTY SEWER

                     LAKE COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DEPT    L9          NOVEMBER SEWER FEES             181740    12/30/15       98,058.21

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                       98,058.21

50-60-82-88214       EXCESS FACILITY CHARGES

                     LAKE COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS         L9B         NOVEMBER EXCESS FACILITY FEES   181741    12/30/15        9,153.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        9,153.00

50-60-84-88402       GAS & OIL

                     MANSFIELD OIL COMPANY            M165        DIESEL FUEL                     181743    12/30/15          637.56

                     MANSFIELD OIL COMPANY            M165        DIESEL FUEL                     181743    12/30/15          114.96

                     BP                               B43         NOVEMBER GAS/OIL USAGE          181687    12/22/15          421.36

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        1,173.88

50-60-84-88404       VEHICLE REPAIRS

                     A TIRE COUNTY SERVICE            A1          ENGINE REBUILD #45              181698    12/30/15        3,737.05

                     A TIRE COUNTY SERVICE            A1          STEERING GEAR BX/STABILIZR #47  181698    12/30/15          269.07

                     A TIRE COUNTY SERVICE            A1          HYDRAULIC OIL/HYD MAIN HOSE     181698    12/30/15          164.68

                     A TIRE COUNTY SERVICE            A1          ACCELERATOR PEDAL ASSY          181698    12/30/15          218.90

                     UNITED CANVAS, INC               U14         SEAT REPAIR #40                 181769    12/30/15          230.00

                     LAKE COUNTY TREASURER            L11         REPAIRS TO 2008 INTL 7400 #54   181681    12/11/15          697.87

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        5,317.57

50-60-84-88405       EQUIPMENT REPAIRS



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:  22

TIME: 14:13:39                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                          WATER/SEWER FUND

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

ACCOUNT #            ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

                     VENDOR NAME                      VENDOR #    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION         CHECK #  CHECK DATE    ITEM AMOUNT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

50-60-84-88405       EQUIPMENT REPAIRS

                     ATLAS BOBCAT INC.                A31         HYDRAULIC FLUID-BOBCAT          181705    12/30/15           48.65

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           48.65

50-60-84-88406       VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

                     BENNY'S SERVICE CENTER, INC.     B42         OCTOBER SAFETY STICKERS         181711    12/30/15          180.75

                     G.M. SIGN INC.                   G10         VILLAGE LOGO DECALS-VEHICLES    181726    12/30/15          111.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          291.75

50-60-91-99105       NETWORK REPAIRS

                     CURRENT TECHNOLOGIES             C280        12/14/15-IT REPAIR(SCADA)       181692    12/23/15           30.50

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                           30.50

50-60-92-99204       REPAIR TO WATER LINES

                     MID AMERICAN WATER OF WAUCONDA   M25         WATER MAIN & HYDRANT REPAIR     181745    12/30/15        1,046.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        1,046.00

50-60-92-99208       REPAIRS TO LIFT STATIONS

                     ANTIOCH AUTO PARTS               A107        LS GENERATOR BATTERY            181699    12/30/15          269.00

                     ACE HARDWARE                     A4          BATTERY SEALER,BOLTS,DRILL BIT  181706    12/30/15           25.98

                     FISCHER BROS. FRESH CONCRETE     F6          LAKEWOOD L.S. REPAIR            181725    12/30/15          134.50

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          429.48

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      WATER/SEWER FUND                    140,158.81

                                                                                                                    ================



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:  23

TIME: 14:13:39                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                     COMMUTER PARKING LOT FUND

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

ACCOUNT #            ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

                     VENDOR NAME                      VENDOR #    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION         CHECK #  CHECK DATE    ITEM AMOUNT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

51-60-79-77903       B&G CONTRACTS

                     KAPLAN PAVEMENT SERVICES         K66         PARKING LOT SNOW REMOVAL-DEC    181737    12/30/15        4,625.00

                     KAPLAN PAVEMENT SERVICES         K66         PARKING LOT SNOW REMOVAL        181680    12/11/15        4,625.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        9,250.00

51-60-79-77911       LANDSCAPING

                     ACRES GROUP                      A113        LAWN MAINTENANCE-NOVEMBER       181700    12/30/15          415.20

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          415.20

51-60-82-88206       ELECTRICAL SERVICE

                     COMED                            C500        11/16-12/17/2015 ELECTRIC       181718    12/30/15           16.07

                     COMED                            C500        11/17-12/18/2015 ELECTRIC       181718    12/30/15          447.74

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          463.81

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      COMMUTER PARKING LOT FUND            10,129.01

                                                                                                                    ================



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:  24

TIME: 14:13:39                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                       TECHNOLOGY REPLACEMENT

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

ACCOUNT #            ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

                     VENDOR NAME                      VENDOR #    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION         CHECK #  CHECK DATE    ITEM AMOUNT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

61-40-91-99117       IT EQUIPMENT

                     M RUGGED MOBILE TECHNOLOGY       MR1         5-PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK/KEYBRDS   181748    12/30/15       13,700.00

                     CURRENT TECHNOLOGIES             C280        50% PD BLDG CCTV SURVEILLANCE   181692    12/23/15        9,288.90

                     CHARTER ONE                      C282        CASE FOR PATROL CAMERA          181693    12/23/15           26.50

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                       23,015.40

61-60-91-99117       IT EQUIPMENT

                     BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.           B2          BWCSI SUPPORT SRVCS-SCADA       181710    12/30/15          785.00

                     BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.           B2          SCADA SERVER UPGRADE 2015       181710    12/30/15        4,130.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        4,915.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      TECHNOLOGY REPLACEMENT               27,930.40

                                                                                                                    ================



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:  25

TIME: 14:13:39                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                          BUILDERS ESCROW

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

ACCOUNT #            ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

                     VENDOR NAME                      VENDOR #    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION         CHECK #  CHECK DATE    ITEM AMOUNT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

83-00-24-22455       PERMIT BONDS

                     STEPHEN COFFIN                   C168        576 S JADE LN-BOND REFUND       181716    12/30/15          250.00

                     HECTOR DELEON                    D103        313 MAPLE LANE-BOND REFUND      181719    12/30/15          250.00

                     DAVE & HEATHER HUNTINGTON        H28         508 W BUTTERFIELD-BOND REFUND   181731    12/30/15          250.00

                     JEFFREY KIEKENBUSH               K55         2243 W FOREST COVE-BOND REFUND  181735    12/30/15          250.00

                     LEWIS & ASSOCIATES, INC          L114        2547 W SPRUCE DR-BOND REFUND    181738    12/30/15          250.00

                     ROBERT MORRIS                    RM1         526 W FAIRBORN LN-BOND REFUND   181758    12/30/15          250.00

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        1,500.00

83-00-24-22490       MONTESSORI SCHOOL

                     BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.           B2          NATURE WALK MONTESSORI SCHOOL   181710    12/30/15          448.27

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          448.27

83-00-24-22493       HIGH SCHOOL EXPANSION ESCROW

                     BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.           B2          ROUND LAKE HS 2015 EXPANSION    181710    12/30/15          289.90

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                          289.90

83-00-24-22495       EMERALD BAY ESCROW

                     BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.           B2          RYLAND HOMES-EMERALD BAY DEVEL  181710    12/30/15        2,144.60

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      ACCOUNT TOTAL:                        2,144.60

                                                                                                                    ----------------

                                                                                      BUILDERS ESCROW                       4,382.77

                                                                                                                    ================



DATE: 12/30/15                                         VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                               PAGE:  26

TIME: 14:13:39                                       PAID INVOICES BY ACCOUNT NUMBER

ID:  AP4A0000.WOW

                                                            FINAL TOTALS

                                             ACTIVITY FROM  12/04/2015  TO  12/30/2015

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                        GENERAL FUND                              149,304.18

                                        MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND                        47,850.78

                                        SSA #1 BRIGHT MEADOWS                       1,056.00

                                        2010 DEBT SERVICE FUND                        475.00

                                        2011 DEBT SERVICE FUND                        475.00

                                        CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND                     140,862.11

                                        WATER/SEWER FUND                          140,158.81

                                        COMMUTER PARKING LOT FUND                  10,129.01

                                        TECHNOLOGY REPLACEMENT                     27,930.40

                                        BUILDERS ESCROW                             4,382.77

                                                                            ----------------

                                        GRAND TOTAL                               522,624.06

                                                                            ================



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    5.2 
 

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 
 
 
 

THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
 

THE VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 
 

APPROVES THE PAYMENT OF PAYROLL 
 

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 13, 2015     
 

IN THE AMOUNT OF $131,439.48 
 
 

________________________________ 
Daniel A. MacGillis, Village President 

   
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

______________________________ 
 Patricia C. Blauvelt, Village Clerk 
 
 
 
Dated: January 4, 2016 
 



DATE: 12/29/2015                                                            VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                                                PAGE:   1

TIME: 13:06:01                                                             PAYROLL REGISTER REPORT

ID:   PR460000.WOW

                                                                  FOR CHECK DATES 12/17/2015 TO 12/17/2015

                                                                    --------------------------------------------- DEDUCTIONS ---------------------------------------------

                           ------------- EARNINGS ---------------   ------------ TAXES -------------      --- VOLUNTARY ---       -------- PENSION/INSUR --------

EMPL. #    NAME         CODE    PAY RATE     HOURS          TOTAL  CODE       EMPLOYEE       EMPLOYER    CODE       EMPLOYEE      CODE      EMPLOYEE        EMPLOYER

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

   GRAND TOTALS:        COM               7.000            295.00  FED       14,134.29                    DD1      77,263.69      IMR        2,029.26        4,446.34

                        REG           3,576.500        115,851.34  FICA       8,149.25       8,149.25     DD2       5,713.26      IM2          384.74          843.00

                        CA                1.000            115.39  MEDIC      1,905.91       1,905.91     GW          670.00      POL        6,953.97

                        GWA               1.000             42.24  STATE      4,404.81                    GWA          42.24

                        VAC             230.750          8,029.70                                         DD3       2,944.37

                        SIC              59.000          1,884.26                                         ICM       2,260.46

                        MP               12.000          1,200.00                                         IMV         169.65

                        OT               22.750            876.52                                         UOE         353.64

                        OC               14.000            372.04                                         CS4         203.00

                        PO               25.750          1,383.88

                        CMP               9.500            324.06

                        OIC               1.000             36.14

                        SRO               1.000             60.00

                        FTO              14.000            505.89

                        PSI               1.000             75.00

                        POI               2.000            120.00

                        INS               1.000            268.02

                              TOTAL FICA EMPLOYEE WAGES:         131,439.48    TOTAL EMPLOYER FICA:                8,149.25

                              TOTAL MEDICARE EMPLOYEE WAGES:     131,439.48    TOTAL EMPLOYER MEDICARE:            1,905.91

                              TOTAL FEDERAL EMPLOYEE WAGES:      119,098.81    TOTAL EMPLOYER PENSION:             5,289.34

                              TOTAL STATE EMPLOYEE WAGES:        119,098.81

                              TOTAL PENSION EMPLOYEE WAGES:      123,815.53

                                           TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES:      66

                              GROSS PAY:       $131,439.48      TOTAL DEDUCTIONS:    127,582.54     NET PAY:         $3,856.94

wfrerichs
Typewritten Text
TOTAL



DATE: 12/29/2015                                                            VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                                                PAGE:   1

TIME: 12:56:57                                                             PAYROLL REGISTER REPORT

ID:   PR460000.WOW

                                                                  FOR CHECK DATES 12/17/2015 TO 12/17/2015

                                                                    --------------------------------------------- DEDUCTIONS ---------------------------------------------

                           ------------- EARNINGS ---------------   ------------ TAXES -------------      --- VOLUNTARY ---       -------- PENSION/INSUR --------

EMPL. #    NAME         CODE    PAY RATE     HOURS          TOTAL  CODE       EMPLOYEE       EMPLOYER    CODE       EMPLOYEE      CODE      EMPLOYEE        EMPLOYER

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

   GRAND TOTALS:        REG             473.500         15,580.47  FED        1,984.37                    DD1       8,899.33      IMR          596.14        1,306.21

                        CA                1.000            115.39  FICA       1,085.19       1,085.19     DD2         954.03      IM2          152.69          334.56

                        GWA               1.000             42.24  MEDIC        253.80         253.80     GW          250.00

                        VAC              48.000          1,707.80  STATE        571.00                    GWA          42.24

                        SIC               2.500             57.03                                         DD3         468.85

                                                                                                          ICM         656.45

                                                                                                          IMV         101.79

                              TOTAL FICA EMPLOYEE WAGES:          17,502.93    TOTAL EMPLOYER FICA:                1,085.19

                              TOTAL MEDICARE EMPLOYEE WAGES:      17,502.93    TOTAL EMPLOYER MEDICARE:              253.80

                              TOTAL FEDERAL EMPLOYEE WAGES:       15,805.41    TOTAL EMPLOYER PENSION:             1,640.77

                              TOTAL STATE EMPLOYEE WAGES:         15,805.41

                              TOTAL PENSION EMPLOYEE WAGES:       16,640.51

                                           TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES:       7

                              GROSS PAY:        $17,502.93      TOTAL DEDUCTIONS:     16,015.88     NET PAY:         $1,487.05

wfrerichs
Typewritten Text
ADMINISTRATION



DATE: 12/29/2015                                                            VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                                                PAGE:   1

TIME: 13:00:57                                                             PAYROLL REGISTER REPORT

ID:   PR460000.WOW

                                                                  FOR CHECK DATES 12/17/2015 TO 12/17/2015

                                                                    --------------------------------------------- DEDUCTIONS ---------------------------------------------

                           ------------- EARNINGS ---------------   ------------ TAXES -------------      --- VOLUNTARY ---       -------- PENSION/INSUR --------

EMPL. #    NAME         CODE    PAY RATE     HOURS          TOTAL  CODE       EMPLOYEE       EMPLOYER    CODE       EMPLOYEE      CODE      EMPLOYEE        EMPLOYER

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

   GRAND TOTALS:        MP               12.000          1,200.00  FED          195.00                    DD1       2,932.88

                        REG               2.000          2,500.00  FICA         229.40         229.40

                                                                   MEDIC         53.65          53.65

                                                                   STATE        105.15

                              TOTAL FICA EMPLOYEE WAGES:           3,700.00    TOTAL EMPLOYER FICA:                  229.40

                              TOTAL MEDICARE EMPLOYEE WAGES:       3,700.00    TOTAL EMPLOYER MEDICARE:               53.65

                              TOTAL FEDERAL EMPLOYEE WAGES:        3,700.00

                              TOTAL STATE EMPLOYEE WAGES:          3,700.00

                                           TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES:       8

                              GROSS PAY:         $3,700.00      TOTAL DEDUCTIONS:      3,516.08     NET PAY:           $183.92

wfrerichs
Typewritten Text
BOARD



DATE: 12/29/2015                                                            VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                                                PAGE:   1

TIME: 12:59:37                                                             PAYROLL REGISTER REPORT

ID:   PR460000.WOW

                                                                  FOR CHECK DATES 12/17/2015 TO 12/17/2015

                                                                    --------------------------------------------- DEDUCTIONS ---------------------------------------------

                           ------------- EARNINGS ---------------   ------------ TAXES -------------      --- VOLUNTARY ---       -------- PENSION/INSUR --------

EMPL. #    NAME         CODE    PAY RATE     HOURS          TOTAL  CODE       EMPLOYEE       EMPLOYER    CODE       EMPLOYEE      CODE      EMPLOYEE        EMPLOYER

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

   GRAND TOTALS:        REG             215.500          6,051.40  FED          940.94                    DD1       4,727.73      IMR          302.54          662.90

                        SIC               5.500            158.77  FICA         416.84         416.84

                        VAC              19.000            513.05  MEDIC         97.49          97.49

                                                                   STATE        237.68

                              TOTAL FICA EMPLOYEE WAGES:           6,723.22    TOTAL EMPLOYER FICA:                  416.84

                              TOTAL MEDICARE EMPLOYEE WAGES:       6,723.22    TOTAL EMPLOYER MEDICARE:               97.49

                              TOTAL FEDERAL EMPLOYEE WAGES:        6,420.68    TOTAL EMPLOYER PENSION:               662.90

                              TOTAL STATE EMPLOYEE WAGES:          6,420.68

                              TOTAL PENSION EMPLOYEE WAGES:        6,723.22

                                           TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES:       3

                              GROSS PAY:         $6,723.22      TOTAL DEDUCTIONS:      6,723.22     NET PAY:             $0.00

wfrerichs
Typewritten Text
BUILDING



DATE: 12/29/2015                                                            VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                                                PAGE:   1

TIME: 13:02:12                                                             PAYROLL REGISTER REPORT

ID:   PR460000.WOW

                                                                  FOR CHECK DATES 12/17/2015 TO 12/17/2015

                                                                    --------------------------------------------- DEDUCTIONS ---------------------------------------------

                           ------------- EARNINGS ---------------   ------------ TAXES -------------      --- VOLUNTARY ---       -------- PENSION/INSUR --------

EMPL. #    NAME         CODE    PAY RATE     HOURS          TOTAL  CODE       EMPLOYEE       EMPLOYER    CODE       EMPLOYEE      CODE      EMPLOYEE        EMPLOYER

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

   GRAND TOTALS:        REG           2,143.500         72,292.88  FED        8,710.68                    DD1      46,076.28      IMR          346.94          760.19

                        PO               25.750          1,383.88  FICA       4,992.14       4,992.14     DD2       3,315.03      POL        6,953.97

                        VAC             104.750          3,979.65  MEDIC      1,167.53       1,167.53     GW          350.00

                        CMP               9.500            324.06  STATE      2,716.18                    ICM       1,150.00

                        OIC               1.000             36.14                                         DD3       2,475.52

                        SIC              44.000          1,473.05                                         CS4         203.00

                        SRO               1.000             60.00

                        FTO              14.000            505.89

                        PSI               1.000             75.00

                        POI               2.000            120.00

                        INS               1.000            268.02

                              TOTAL FICA EMPLOYEE WAGES:          80,518.57    TOTAL EMPLOYER FICA:                4,992.14

                              TOTAL MEDICARE EMPLOYEE WAGES:      80,518.57    TOTAL EMPLOYER MEDICARE:            1,167.53

                              TOTAL FEDERAL EMPLOYEE WAGES:       71,717.66    TOTAL EMPLOYER PENSION:               760.19

                              TOTAL STATE EMPLOYEE WAGES:         71,717.66

                              TOTAL PENSION EMPLOYEE WAGES:       77,880.92

                                           TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES:      30

                              GROSS PAY:        $80,518.57      TOTAL DEDUCTIONS:     78,457.27     NET PAY:         $2,061.30

wfrerichs
Typewritten Text
POLICE



DATE: 12/29/2015                                                            VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                                                PAGE:   1

TIME: 13:03:19                                                             PAYROLL REGISTER REPORT

ID:   PR460000.WOW

                                                                  FOR CHECK DATES 12/17/2015 TO 12/17/2015

                                                                    --------------------------------------------- DEDUCTIONS ---------------------------------------------

                           ------------- EARNINGS ---------------   ------------ TAXES -------------      --- VOLUNTARY ---       -------- PENSION/INSUR --------

EMPL. #    NAME         CODE    PAY RATE     HOURS          TOTAL  CODE       EMPLOYEE       EMPLOYER    CODE       EMPLOYEE      CODE      EMPLOYEE        EMPLOYER

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

   GRAND TOTALS:        REG             742.000         19,426.59  FED        2,303.30                    DD1      14,482.71      IMR          783.64        1,717.04

                        OT               22.750            876.52  FICA       1,407.39       1,407.39     DD2       1,444.20      IM2          232.05          508.44

                        VAC              59.000          1,829.20  MEDIC        329.16         329.16     GW           70.00

                        OC               14.000            372.04  STATE        771.80                    UOE         353.64

                        SIC               7.000            195.41                                         ICM         454.01

                                                                                                          IMV          67.86

                              TOTAL FICA EMPLOYEE WAGES:          22,699.76    TOTAL EMPLOYER FICA:                1,407.39

                              TOTAL MEDICARE EMPLOYEE WAGES:      22,699.76    TOTAL EMPLOYER MEDICARE:              329.16

                              TOTAL FEDERAL EMPLOYEE WAGES:       21,160.06    TOTAL EMPLOYER PENSION:             2,225.48

                              TOTAL STATE EMPLOYEE WAGES:         21,160.06

                              TOTAL PENSION EMPLOYEE WAGES:       22,570.88

                                           TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES:      11

                              GROSS PAY:        $22,699.76      TOTAL DEDUCTIONS:     22,699.76     NET PAY:             $0.00

wfrerichs
Typewritten Text
PUBLIC WORKS



DATE: 12/29/2015                                                            VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                                                PAGE:   1

TIME: 13:04:26                                                             PAYROLL REGISTER REPORT

ID:   PR460000.WOW

                                                                  FOR CHECK DATES 12/17/2015 TO 12/17/2015

                                                                    --------------------------------------------- DEDUCTIONS ---------------------------------------------

                           ------------- EARNINGS ---------------   ------------ TAXES -------------      --- VOLUNTARY ---       -------- PENSION/INSUR --------

EMPL. #    NAME         CODE    PAY RATE     HOURS          TOTAL  CODE       EMPLOYEE       EMPLOYER    CODE       EMPLOYEE      CODE      EMPLOYEE        EMPLOYER

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

   GRAND TOTALS:        COM               7.000            295.00  FED                                    DD1         144.76

                                                                   FICA          18.29          18.29

                                                                   MEDIC          4.28           4.28

                                                                   STATE          3.00

                              TOTAL FICA EMPLOYEE WAGES:             295.00    TOTAL EMPLOYER FICA:                   18.29

                              TOTAL MEDICARE EMPLOYEE WAGES:         295.00    TOTAL EMPLOYER MEDICARE:                4.28

                              TOTAL FEDERAL EMPLOYEE WAGES:          295.00

                              TOTAL STATE EMPLOYEE WAGES:            295.00

                                           TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES:       7

                              GROSS PAY:           $295.00      TOTAL DEDUCTIONS:        170.33     NET PAY:           $124.67

wfrerichs
Typewritten Text
ZONING



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    5.3 
 

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 
 
 
 

THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
 

THE VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 
 

APPROVES THE PAYMENT OF PAYROLL 
 

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 27, 2015     
 

IN THE AMOUNT OF $145,202.97 
 
 

________________________________ 
Daniel A. MacGillis, Village President 

   
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

______________________________ 
 Patricia C. Blauvelt, Village Clerk 
 
 
 
Dated: January 4, 2016 
 



DATE: 12/29/2015                                                            VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                                                PAGE:   1

TIME: 15:20:28                                                             PAYROLL REGISTER REPORT

ID:   PR460000.WOW

                                                                  FOR CHECK DATES 12/31/2015 TO 12/31/2015

                                                                    --------------------------------------------- DEDUCTIONS ---------------------------------------------

                           ------------- EARNINGS ---------------   ------------ TAXES -------------      --- VOLUNTARY ---       -------- PENSION/INSUR --------

EMPL. #    NAME         CODE    PAY RATE     HOURS          TOTAL  CODE       EMPLOYEE       EMPLOYER    CODE       EMPLOYEE      CODE      EMPLOYEE        EMPLOYER

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

   GRAND TOTALS:        REG           2,516.000         80,707.01  FED       16,661.24                    DD1      80,744.30      IMR        2,022.42        4,431.37

                        CA                1.000            115.39  FICA       8,763.51       8,763.51     DD2       5,467.69      DFA           10.59

                        GWA               1.000             42.24  MEDIC      2,049.55       2,049.55     GW          670.00      HFA          120.65

                        VAC             495.750         15,908.06  STATE      4,757.64                    GWA          42.24      VFA            1.38

                        HP              888.000         28,872.57                                         HSA         235.00      IM2          384.37          842.19

                        SIC             139.250          4,718.15                                         AF2         336.35      DSA            9.38

                        OC               14.000            396.01                                         DD3       2,962.44      HSA           62.26

                        OT              211.750         10,220.96                                         ICM       2,264.48      VSA            0.67

                        PO               11.250            571.66                                         IMV         169.65      DCA            5.18

                        CMP              44.000          1,584.22                                         UOE         372.90      PCA           83.72

                        OIC               5.000            170.16                                         PLI         136.11      VCA            0.70

                        FLH              40.000          1,077.23                                         AF1          84.57      DAS            2.96

                        SRO               1.000             30.00                                         MAP         346.50      PAS           87.12

                        FTO               6.000            216.81                                         CS4         203.00      VAS            0.48

                        PSI               1.000             75.00                                                                 DSW            4.69

                        POI               2.000            120.00                                                                 HSW           62.26

                        JD                4.000            109.48                                                                 VSW            0.67

                        INS               1.000            268.02                                                                 DFW           42.36

                                                                                                                                  PFW          343.32

                                                                                                                                  VFW            5.52

                                                                                                                                  PCW           83.72

                                                                                                                                  DWS            4.44

                                                                                                                                  VWS            0.72

                                                                                                                                  HWS           20.41

                                                                                                                                  HFW          120.65

                                                                                                                                  PWS           29.04

                                                                                                                                  MFW          140.40

                                                                                                                                  DSP           14.07

                                                                                                                                  PSP          177.16

                                                                                                                                  VSP            2.01

                                                                                                                                  POL        8,861.32

                                                                                                                                  EFP           12.42

                                                                                                                                  PPS          203.28

                                                                                                                                  TFP           84.72

                                                                                                                                  DPS           11.84

                                                                                                                                  VPS            2.16

                                                                                                                                  IFP          361.95

                                                                                                                                  RFP          514.98

                                                                                                                                  ISP           62.26

                                                                                                                                  DCP           10.36

                                                                                                                                  PCP           83.72

                                                                                                                                  VCP            1.40

                                                                                                                                  PFP          171.66

                                                                                                                                  ECP            0.70

                                                                                                                                  RCP           83.72

wfrerichs
Typewritten Text
TOTAL



DATE: 12/29/2015                                                            VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                                                PAGE:   2

TIME: 15:20:28                                                             PAYROLL REGISTER REPORT

ID:   PR460000.WOW

                                                                  FOR CHECK DATES 12/31/2015 TO 12/31/2015

                                                                    --------------------------------------------- DEDUCTIONS ---------------------------------------------

                           ------------- EARNINGS ---------------   ------------ TAXES -------------      --- VOLUNTARY ---       -------- PENSION/INSUR --------

EMPL. #    NAME         CODE    PAY RATE     HOURS          TOTAL  CODE       EMPLOYEE       EMPLOYER    CODE       EMPLOYEE      CODE      EMPLOYEE        EMPLOYER

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                                                                                  TCP            5.18

                                                                                                                                  MPS           47.50

                                                                                                                                  HPS           40.82

                                                                                                                                  DFP           10.59

                                                                                                                                  MFP          140.40

                                                                                                                                  ESP            0.67

                                                                                                                                  TSP            4.69

                                                                                                                                  DBS            2.96

                                                                                                                                  PBS           58.08

                                                                                                                                  VBS            0.48

                                                                                                                                  DFB           10.59

                                                                                                                                  PFB          171.66

                                                                                                                                  VFB            1.38

                              TOTAL FICA EMPLOYEE WAGES:         141,346.70    TOTAL EMPLOYER FICA:                8,763.51

                              TOTAL MEDICARE EMPLOYEE WAGES:     141,346.70    TOTAL EMPLOYER MEDICARE:            2,049.55

                              TOTAL FEDERAL EMPLOYEE WAGES:      127,101.87    TOTAL EMPLOYER PENSION:             5,273.56

                              TOTAL STATE EMPLOYEE WAGES:        127,101.87

                              TOTAL PENSION EMPLOYEE WAGES:      142,902.31

                                           TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES:      50

                              GROSS PAY:       $145,202.97      TOTAL DEDUCTIONS:    141,071.98     NET PAY:         $4,130.99



DATE: 12/29/2015                                                            VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                                                PAGE:   1

TIME: 15:15:05                                                             PAYROLL REGISTER REPORT

ID:   PR460000.WOW

                                                                  FOR CHECK DATES 12/31/2015 TO 12/31/2015

                                                                    --------------------------------------------- DEDUCTIONS ---------------------------------------------

                           ------------- EARNINGS ---------------   ------------ TAXES -------------      --- VOLUNTARY ---       -------- PENSION/INSUR --------

EMPL. #    NAME         CODE    PAY RATE     HOURS          TOTAL  CODE       EMPLOYEE       EMPLOYER    CODE       EMPLOYEE      CODE      EMPLOYEE        EMPLOYER

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

   GRAND TOTALS:        REG             340.000         11,315.83  FED        1,875.12                    DD1       8,232.74      IMR          596.14        1,306.21

                        CA                1.000            115.39  FICA       1,032.36       1,032.36     DD2         925.53      DFA           10.59

                        GWA               1.000             42.24  MEDIC        241.45         241.45     GW          250.00      HFA          120.65

                        VAC              48.000          1,739.69  STATE        539.04                    GWA          42.24      VFA            1.38

                        HP               96.000          3,296.58                                         HSA          75.00      IM2          152.69          334.56

                        SIC              20.000            601.21                                         AF2          68.95      DSA            9.38

                                                                                                          DD3         468.85      HSA           62.26

                                                                                                          ICM         656.45      VSA            0.67

                                                                                                          IMV         101.79      DCA            5.18

                                                                                                                                  PCA           83.72

                                                                                                                                  VCA            0.70

                                                                                                                                  DAS            2.96

                                                                                                                                  PAS           87.12

                                                                                                                                  VAS            0.48

                              TOTAL FICA EMPLOYEE WAGES:          16,650.85    TOTAL EMPLOYER FICA:                1,032.36

                              TOTAL MEDICARE EMPLOYEE WAGES:      16,650.85    TOTAL EMPLOYER MEDICARE:              241.45

                              TOTAL FEDERAL EMPLOYEE WAGES:       14,953.33    TOTAL EMPLOYER PENSION:             1,640.77

                              TOTAL STATE EMPLOYEE WAGES:         14,953.33

                              TOTAL PENSION EMPLOYEE WAGES:       16,640.53

                                           TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES:       7

                              GROSS PAY:        $17,110.94      TOTAL DEDUCTIONS:     15,643.44     NET PAY:         $1,467.50

wfrerichs
Typewritten Text
ADMINISTRATION



DATE: 12/29/2015                                                            VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                                                PAGE:   1

TIME: 15:16:32                                                             PAYROLL REGISTER REPORT

ID:   PR460000.WOW

                                                                  FOR CHECK DATES 12/31/2015 TO 12/31/2015

                                                                    --------------------------------------------- DEDUCTIONS ---------------------------------------------

                           ------------- EARNINGS ---------------   ------------ TAXES -------------      --- VOLUNTARY ---       -------- PENSION/INSUR --------

EMPL. #    NAME         CODE    PAY RATE     HOURS          TOTAL  CODE       EMPLOYEE       EMPLOYER    CODE       EMPLOYEE      CODE      EMPLOYEE        EMPLOYER

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

   GRAND TOTALS:        REG             151.500          4,350.19  FED          914.15                    DD1       4,573.79      IMR          307.95          674.77

                        SIC               2.000             60.68  FICA         407.35         407.35     AF1          28.25      DBS            2.96

                        HP               48.000          1,351.21  MEDIC         95.27          95.27     PLI          39.93      PBS           58.08

                        VAC              37.750            975.27  STATE        231.73                                            VBS            0.48

                        CMP               0.750             18.70                                                                 DFB           10.59

                        OT                2.000             87.52                                                                 PFB          171.66

                                                                                                                                  VFB            1.38

                              TOTAL FICA EMPLOYEE WAGES:           6,570.17    TOTAL EMPLOYER FICA:                  407.35

                              TOTAL MEDICARE EMPLOYEE WAGES:       6,570.17    TOTAL EMPLOYER MEDICARE:               95.27

                              TOTAL FEDERAL EMPLOYEE WAGES:        6,262.22    TOTAL EMPLOYER PENSION:               674.77

                              TOTAL STATE EMPLOYEE WAGES:          6,262.22

                              TOTAL PENSION EMPLOYEE WAGES:        6,843.57

                                           TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES:       3

                              GROSS PAY:         $6,843.57      TOTAL DEDUCTIONS:      6,843.57     NET PAY:             $0.00

wfrerichs
Typewritten Text
BUILDING



DATE: 12/29/2015                                                            VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                                                PAGE:   1

TIME: 15:17:50                                                             PAYROLL REGISTER REPORT

ID:   PR460000.WOW

                                                                  FOR CHECK DATES 12/31/2015 TO 12/31/2015

                                                                    --------------------------------------------- DEDUCTIONS ---------------------------------------------

                           ------------- EARNINGS ---------------   ------------ TAXES -------------      --- VOLUNTARY ---       -------- PENSION/INSUR --------

EMPL. #    NAME         CODE    PAY RATE     HOURS          TOTAL  CODE       EMPLOYEE       EMPLOYER    CODE       EMPLOYEE      CODE      EMPLOYEE        EMPLOYER

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

   GRAND TOTALS:        REG           1,525.750         51,792.84  FED       11,777.50                    AF2         241.04      IMR          346.94          760.19

                        HP              584.000         19,960.32  FICA       5,999.96       5,999.96     DD1      54,400.52      DSP           14.07

                        OT              195.500          9,561.39  MEDIC      1,403.21       1,403.21     DD2       3,191.90      PSP          177.16

                        PO               11.250            571.66  STATE      3,265.28                    MAP         346.50      VSP            2.01

                        VAC             282.000          9,733.85                                         AF1          36.34      POL        8,861.32

                        SIC             104.000          3,705.80                                         GW          350.00      EFP           12.42

                        CMP              43.250          1,565.52                                         PLI          79.23      PPS          203.28

                        OIC               5.000            170.16                                         HSA         100.00      TFP           84.72

                        FLH              40.000          1,077.23                                         ICM       1,150.00      DPS           11.84

                        SRO               1.000             30.00                                         DD3       2,493.59      VPS            2.16

                        FTO               6.000            216.81                                         CS4         203.00      IFP          361.95

                        PSI               1.000             75.00                                                                 RFP          514.98

                        POI               2.000            120.00                                                                 ISP           62.26

                        JD                4.000            109.48                                                                 DCP           10.36

                        INS               1.000            268.02                                                                 PCP           83.72

                                                                                                                                  VCP            1.40

                                                                                                                                  PFP          171.66

                                                                                                                                  ECP            0.70

                                                                                                                                  RCP           83.72

                                                                                                                                  TCP            5.18

                                                                                                                                  MPS           47.50

                                                                                                                                  HPS           40.82

                                                                                                                                  DFP           10.59

                                                                                                                                  MFP          140.40

                                                                                                                                  ESP            0.67

                                                                                                                                  TSP            4.69

                              TOTAL FICA EMPLOYEE WAGES:          96,773.48    TOTAL EMPLOYER FICA:                5,999.96

                              TOTAL MEDICARE EMPLOYEE WAGES:      96,773.48    TOTAL EMPLOYER MEDICARE:            1,403.21

                              TOTAL FEDERAL EMPLOYEE WAGES:       86,065.22    TOTAL EMPLOYER PENSION:               760.19

                              TOTAL STATE EMPLOYEE WAGES:         86,065.22

                              TOTAL PENSION EMPLOYEE WAGES:       97,127.83

                                           TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES:      30

                              GROSS PAY:        $98,958.08      TOTAL DEDUCTIONS:     96,294.59     NET PAY:         $2,663.49

wfrerichs
Typewritten Text
POLICE



DATE: 12/29/2015                                                            VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE                                                                PAGE:   1

TIME: 15:19:17                                                             PAYROLL REGISTER REPORT

ID:   PR460000.WOW

                                                                  FOR CHECK DATES 12/31/2015 TO 12/31/2015

                                                                    --------------------------------------------- DEDUCTIONS ---------------------------------------------

                           ------------- EARNINGS ---------------   ------------ TAXES -------------      --- VOLUNTARY ---       -------- PENSION/INSUR --------

EMPL. #    NAME         CODE    PAY RATE     HOURS          TOTAL  CODE       EMPLOYEE       EMPLOYER    CODE       EMPLOYEE      CODE      EMPLOYEE        EMPLOYER

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

   GRAND TOTALS:        REG             498.750         13,248.15  FED        2,094.47                    DD1      13,537.25      IMR          771.39        1,690.20

                        VAC             128.000          3,459.25  FICA       1,323.84       1,323.84     DD2       1,350.26      DSW            4.69

                        HP              160.000          4,264.46  MEDIC        309.62         309.62     GW           70.00      HSW           62.26

                        OC               14.000            396.01  STATE        721.59                    HSA          60.00      VSW            0.67

                        OT               14.250            572.05                                         UOE         372.90      DFW           42.36

                        SIC              13.250            350.46                                         ICM         458.03      PFW          343.32

                                                                                                          PLI          16.95      VFW            5.52

                                                                                                          AF1          19.98      PCW           83.72

                                                                                                          AF2          26.36      DWS            4.44

                                                                                                          IMV          67.86      VWS            0.72

                                                                                                                                  IM2          231.68          507.63

                                                                                                                                  HWS           20.41

                                                                                                                                  HFW          120.65

                                                                                                                                  PWS           29.04

                                                                                                                                  MFW          140.40

                              TOTAL FICA EMPLOYEE WAGES:          21,352.20    TOTAL EMPLOYER FICA:                1,323.84

                              TOTAL MEDICARE EMPLOYEE WAGES:      21,352.20    TOTAL EMPLOYER MEDICARE:              309.62

                              TOTAL FEDERAL EMPLOYEE WAGES:       19,821.10    TOTAL EMPLOYER PENSION:             2,197.83

                              TOTAL STATE EMPLOYEE WAGES:         19,821.10

                              TOTAL PENSION EMPLOYEE WAGES:       22,290.38

                                           TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES:      10

                              GROSS PAY:        $22,290.38      TOTAL DEDUCTIONS:     22,290.38     NET PAY:             $0.00

wfrerichs
Typewritten Text
PUBLIC WORKS



 

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

TITLE: DE-ICING LIQUIDS PURCHASE Agenda Item No.  5.4  

 
Executive Summary

 
Staff is requesting permission to purchase de-icing liquids for winter operations.  Last year, 
ThermaPoint (R) was purchased from Industrial Systems Ltd. (sole source).  The product worked 
well and staff recommends using the product again this year.  ThermaPoint can be used to pre-
treat roads, can be mixed with salt during plowing operations and can be used to help clear hard 
pack after snow events.  It will work to melt snow and ice down to -30oF which provides a much 
lower melting point than rock salt which is only effective to about 15oF.  Staff would like to 
purchase 4500 gallons of ThermaPoint now and continue to purchase more liquid as needed, not 
to exceed the budgeted amount. 
 
Price quoted from Industrial Systems Ltd: $1.15/gallon 
Initial Cost = $1.15/gallon * 4,500 gallons = $5,175.00 

Recommended Action
 
Approve the purchase of ThermaPoint de-icing liquids as needed.   

 

Committee: PW/F&CA and Engineering Meeting Date(s):12/07/15 & 1/4/16 

 

Lead Department: Public Works Presenter:  Adam Wedoff, Director of Public Works   

 

 

Item Budgeted:    X   Yes        No        N/A 

 

 

If amount requested is over budget, a detailed 
explanation of what account(s) the overage will 
be charged to will be provided in the Executive 
Summary or attached detail. 

 

 

Account(s) Budget Expenditure
Other Items $132,800.00

Item Requested $11,250.00 $5,175.00
YTD Actual $0.00
Amount Encumbered $0.00

01-60-74-77418 $144,050.00 $5,175.00

Under
Over

Request is over/under budget:
$138,875.00

-

 
 



Resolution 2016‐R‐___ 
 

A Resolution Approving Purchase of De‐Icing Liquids 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Village President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Round 

Lake as follows: 

Section One:  That  the  proposal  from  Industrial  Systems  Ltd.,  the  sole  provider  of 

ThermaPoint  in  the  area,  for  the  purchase  of  4,500  gallons  of  ThermaPoint  at  a  cost  of 

$1.15/gallon,  attached  hereto  as  Exhibit  A,  is  hereby  approved  at  a  cost  not  to  exceed 

$5,175.00.  

Section Two:  That  additional  gallons  of  ThermaPoint may  be  purchased  as  needed 

throughout the snow season, not to exceed the budgeted amount. 

Section Three:  That the Mayor, or his designee, is authorized to take all necessary steps 

to implement this Resolution.  

Section Four:  That  this Resolution  shall  be  in  full  force  and  effect  from  and  after  its 

passage and approval as required by law.  

              APPROVED: 

                           

              Daniel A. MacGillis, Village President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

               

Patricia C. Blauvelt, Village Clerk 

PASSED: 
APPROVED: 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 



Exhibit A 
 

Proposal from Industrial Systems Ltd. 
 













 

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

TITLE: EMERGENCY SNOW REMOVAL CONTRACT Agenda Item No.  5.5  

 
Executive Summary

 
Staff is recommending the Village enter into a contract with at least one contractor to supply 
heavy equipment and operators in the event of a large snowfall.  A proposal was sent out to local 
contractors requesting hourly rates for different types of equipment that would be useful for 
emergency snow removal services.  A contract could be signed with one or all of the respondents.  
 
The attached resolution would authorize the Mayor or his designee to call on the contractor(s) as 
needed to perform emergency snow removal services.  

Recommended Action
 
Discuss and approve an emergency snow removal contract. 

 

Committee: PW/F&CA and Engineering Meeting Date(s):12/07/15 & 1/4/16 

 

Lead Department: Public Works Presenter:  Adam Wedoff, Director of Public Works   

 

 

Item Budgeted:       Yes    X    No        N/A 

 

 

If amount requested is over budget, a detailed 
explanation of what account(s) the overage will 
be charged to will be provided in the Executive 
Summary or attached detail. 

 

 

Account(s) Budget Expenditure
Other Items $0.00

Item Requested $0.00 $0.00
YTD Actual $0.00
Amount Encumbered $0.00

0 $0.00 $0.00

Under
Over

Request is over/under budget:
-
-

 
 



Resolution 2016‐R‐___ 
 

A Resolution Approving Certain Contracts for Emergency Snow Removal Services 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Village President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Round 

Lake as follows: 

Section One:  That  the  proposal  from Mark Meade  to  supply  heavy  equipment  and 

operators in the event of a large snowfall, attached hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby approved at 

the prices referenced in Exhibit A.  

Section Two:  That responses to proposal requests from additional vendors were never 

received. 

Section Three:  That the Mayor, or his designee, is authorized to take all necessary steps 

to implement this Resolution.  

Section Four:  That  this Resolution  shall  be  in  full  force  and  effect  from  and  after  its 

passage and approval as required by law.  

              APPROVED: 

                           

              Daniel A. MacGillis, Village President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

               

Patricia C. Blauvelt, Village Clerk 

PASSED: 
APPROVED: 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 



Exhibit A 
 

Proposal from Mark Meade 
 

















  

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
 
 

TITLE: Authorization to purchase a replacement building Closed Circuit      
Video System for two interview rooms and the Building Security points. Agenda Item No.  5.6 

Executive Summary:
 
 
Attached are three price quotes for two combined replacement projects which involve the police building security 
and interview rooms recording systems. This project is budgeted as two separate projects that if approved will be 
completed as one due to modernization of the technology used to build the system. 
 
The current system was installed when the building was built and has run its serviceable life. The interview room 
part of the system only addresses one of two rooms currently and employs a very recently failed VHS tape system 
that has not met the demands of the courts in some time. The building portion of the system employs a video 
duplexer and recorder that have run its serviceable life as well. The new system will be computer controlled. It will 
use every part of the current system that is serviceable and with the addition of three additional cameras placed in 
the parking lot areas and the second interview room the system should meet the needs of the Village for the next ten 
years.  
The price quotes obtained are: 

1. Current Technologies - $18,577.79 * Note: The enclosed price quote reflects a $100.00 discount if the work is approved in 

the 2015 calendar year. 
2. Advent Systems, Inc. - $26,996.00 
3. MidCo, Inc.                - $31,944.00 

 
The Round Lake Police Department seeks approval to purchase and approve the work with Current Technologies for 
$18,577.79.  Attached are the three sales quotes.  A total of $22,500.00 was budgeted specifically for this project. 
 Recommended Action:
 
Staff recommends authorization to contract with Current Technologies to purchase and install the described 
Closed Circuit Video System for $18,577.79.  

Committee: Police Meeting Date: December 7, 2015 & January 4, 2016 

Lead Department: Police  Presenter: Michael Gillette; Chief of Police 

Item Budgeted:  Yes  No  N/A Account(s) Budget Expenditure
61-40-91-99117 $51,200.00

Item Requested $18,577.79
YTD Actual $10,598.00
Amount Encumbered $13,700.00

Total: $51,200.00 $42,875.79

Under
Over -

Request is over/under budget:
$8,324.21

 

If amount requested is over budget, a detailed 
explanation of what account(s) the overage will be 
charged to will be provided in the Executive 
Summary or attached detail. 

 
 
 
 

 
 



 
Resolution 2016-R-___ 

 
A Resolution Authorizing the Village of Round Lake Police Department to Purchase a Closed Circuit Video 

system and Installation from Current Technologies. 
 

WHEREAS, Police Department Interview recording and building security devices are required and/or 

necessary police equipment and are a critical mechanism of police department essential functions concerning 

building safety and criminal interviews; and 

WHEREAS, the Round Lake Police Department has no other viable avenue from which to maintain a 

reliable Village owned and operated system than to purchase and install the devices; and 

WHEREAS, the Village President and Board of Trustees find that making this purchase is fiscally prudent 

and in the interest of public health, safety and welfare; and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Village President and Board of Trustees of the Village 

of Round Lake as follows: 

1. Purchase components and approve system installation work with Current Technologies for $18,577.79. The 

total quoted price is hereby authorized. 

2. Quote price sheet #CTCQ14910-01 is attached hereto as Exhibit A is hereby approved.   

3. The Mayor, or his designee, is authorized to perform such other actions required to carry out the Village’s 

purchase, and to otherwise implement this resolution. 

 

       APPROVED: 

 
              
       Daniel A. MacGillis, Village President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
Patricia C. Blauvelt, Village Clerk 
 
PASSED: 

APPROVED: 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 
 





















 

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

TITLE: NIPPERSINK ROAD GUARD RAIL REPAIR Agenda Item No.  10.1  

 
Executive Summary

 
Staff is requesting permission to contract Midwest Fence Corporation to repair damaged guard 
rail on the south side of Nippersink Road west of Dawn Marie Drive.  The guard rail was hit by a 
motorist and a police report of the incident was filed.  Staff plans to invoice the motorist for the 
repair expense. 
 
Midwest Fence Corporation was the only contractor in the area that staff could find that was able 
and willing to do the repairs at a cost of $6,361.00. 

Recommended Action
 
Adopt a Resolution Ratifying Guard Rail Traffic Barrier Terminal Repairs.   

 

Committee: PW/F&CA and Engineering Meeting Date(s):01/04/16 

 

Lead Department: Public Works Presenter:  Adam Wedoff, Director of Public Works   

 

 

Item Budgeted:       Yes        No     X   N/A 

 

 

If amount requested is over budget, a detailed 
explanation of what account(s) the overage will 
be charged to will be provided in the Executive 
Summary or attached detail. 

 

 

Account(s) Budget Expenditure
Other Items $15,256.00

Item Requested $0.00 $6,361.00
YTD Actual $1,810.31
Amount Encumbered $0.00

01-60-74-77418 $15,256.00 $8,171.31

Under
Over

Request is over/under budget:
$7,084.69

-

 
 



Resolution 2016-R-__ 

A Resolution Ratifying Guard Rail Traffic Barrier Terminal Repairs 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Village President and Board of Trustees of the Village of 

Round Lake as follows:  

Section One: The actions of the Director of Public Works in authorizing repairs to the 

Guard Rail Traffic Barrier Terminals in the amount of $6,361.00 by Midwest Fence Corporation, 

as specified in the quote attached hereto as Exhibit A, are hereby approved and ratified.  

Section Two: The Mayor, Village Administrator and Director of Public Works are 

authorized to execute all necessary documents to carry out this Resolution. 

Section Three: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and approval as required by law. 

 APPROVED: 

 
             
      Daniel A. MacGillis, Village President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
Patricia C. Blauvelt, Village Clerk 
 
 

PASSED:  

APPROVED: 

AYES:  

NAYS:  

ABSENT: 
 



Exhibit A 

Quote from Midwest Fence Corporation 

 



    Page 1 of 1 

PRICES ARE F.O.B. JOBSITE. , TAX INCLUDED 
TERMS NET:  10 DAYS UPON COMPLETION 

ACCEPTED:    MIDWEST FENCE CORPORATION 
BY:    
DATE:  

**INSURANCE LIMITS ATTACHED** 
 

BY:     
file:  s:\proposal\jcb2\roundl00.doc   JOHN C. BELL \   
 

C  
Y E A R S    O F 

QUALITY & SERVICE 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
900 N. KEDZIE AVENUE • CHICAGO, IL  60651 4187 
TEL 773 / 722-6616 • FAX 773 / 722-6626 

orporation FENCE & GUARD RAIL CONTRACTORS 
MIDWEST FENCE68 

1 9 4 7 - 2 0 1 5 

 

December 2, 2015        
TO VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 

442 N. CEDAR LAKE ROAD 
ROUND LAKE  IL 60073 

 

ATTN MARK  KILARSKI 
 

EMAIL mkilarski@eroundlake.com 
PHONE 847 366 8004 EXT       CELL   

FAX   EXT       ALT       

SITE VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 
NIPPERSING ROAD WEST OF DAWN MARIE DR. 
ROUND LAKE  IL 60073 

 

ATTN MARK  KILARSKI 
 

EMAIL mkilarski@eroundlake.com 
PHONE 847 366 8004 EXT       CELL   

FAX   EXT       ALT       

e propose to furnish and install the following in accordance with the terms and conditions including 
those printed on the reverse side of this sheet which upon acceptance by you of this proposal are agreed 
to and accepted by you:  

 
FURNISH MATERIAL, LABOR AND EQUIPMENT NECESSARY TO PERFORM THE 
FOLLOWING GUARD RAIL TRAFFIC BARRIER TERMINAL REPAIRS 
 

 SET UP TRAFFIC CONTROL SINGS. 

 FURNISH TWO FLAGGERS TO CONTROL TRAFFIC WHILE  

 REPLACE ONE 12’-6” STANDARD GUARD RAIL PANEL. 

 REPLACE ONE BRL-23 ANCHOR PANEL. 

 REPLACE ONE 4’-2” RAIL. 

 REPLACE THREE 6’-9” POSTS. 

 REPLACE ONE WOOD POST. 

 REPLACE ONE CABLE ASSEMBLY. 

 REPLACE ONE BLR23 NOSE AND REFLECTOR. 

 FURNISH BOLTS, NUTS AND RELATED HARDWARE. 

 REMOVE AND HAUL ALL GUARD RAIL TERMINAL REPAIR RELATED DEBRIS. 

 
 

FOR THE SUM OF  $ 6,361.00 
 
ALTERNATE PROPOSAL  
FLAGGERS PROVIDED BY VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 
           DEDUCT THE SUM OF $ 2,700.00 

W 



V:\Meeting Packets\Departments - Admin, Finance, PD, PW\AIS - Agenda Item Summary\Administration\01-04-
16\01.04.16 Comprehensive Plan.doc 

 

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

TITLE: 2015 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN Agenda Item No.  12.1 

 
Executive Summary:

 
Attached is the updated draft comprehensive plan that was approved by the Plan Commission/Zoning 
Board of Appeals on November 24, 2105. The process started over a year ago with an overview of the 
process. Since that time there has been community surveys, stakeholder interviews, and numerous 
meetings held. Based on the information obtained and discussions of key issues the attached draft 
comprehensive plan was completed. 
 
A brief presentation was held at the December 7, 2015 to provide a brief overview of the process and the 
draft document.  The final document will have the word draft removed along with any other minor 
changes. 
 
 
 

Recommended Action:
 
Adopt an Ordinance Approving the Comprehensive Plan of 2015 
 

Committee: - Meeting Date: 12/7/15 & 1/4/16 

 

Lead Department:  Administration Presenter: Steven J. Shields, Village Administrator
 

 

Item Budgeted:   -  Yes    -  No    x   N/A 

 
If amount requested is over budget, a detailed 
explanation of what account(s) the overage will 
be charged to will be provided in the Executive 
Summary or attached detail. 

Account(s) Budget Expenditure

Item Requested
Y-T-D Actual
Amount Encumbered

Total: $0.00 $0.00

Under
Over -

-
Request is over/under budget:

 



ORDINANCE NO. 16-O__ 

An Ordinance Approving the Comprehensive Plan of 2015 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Round Lake (“Village”) engaged the planning firm of Teska 

Associates, Inc. (“Teska”) to prepare a comprehensive plan to guide development strategies and 

policies in accord with Section 11-12-6 of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-12-6; and 

WHEREAS, the Village and Teska have prepared The Village of Round Lake 

Comprehensive Plan dated November 4, 2015, which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, and which 

shall be known as the Comprehensive Plan of 2015; and  

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals held a public hearing on 

the Comprehensive Plan of 2015 on November 24, 2015, with notice duly given as provided by 

law; and 

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals also held public discussion 

of the Comprehensive Plan of 2015 on September 29, 2015; and the Village President and 

Village Board of Trustees (collectively “Board of Trustees”) held public discussion on the 

Comprehensive Plan of 2015 on December 7, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals recommends adoption of 

the Comprehensive Plan of 2015 pursuant to Section 2.40.050(A) of the Round Lake Village 

Code; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD 
OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as 
follows: 

 



-2- 

SECTION ONE:  The above recitals are incorporated into this ordinance as if fully set 

forth. 

SECTION TWO:  The actions of the staff of the Village and the Plan 

Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals in scheduling the public hearing on the Comprehensive 

Plan are hereby ratified as having been scheduled by the corporate authorities of the Village in 

accord with Section 11-12-7 of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-12-7. 

SECTION THREE:  The Comprehensive Plan of 2015, attached hereto as Exhibit A, is 

hereby approved. 

SECTION FOUR: The Village Clerk is directed to publish this Ordinance in pamphlet 

form.   

SECTION FIVE:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage, approval, and publication in the manner provided by law. 

       APPROVED: 

 
              
       Daniel A. MacGillis, Village President 
ATTEST: 
 
        
Patricia C. Blauvelt, Village Clerk 
 
PASSED: 

APPROVED: 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 
 
PUBLISHED IN PAMPHLET FORM:    , 2016. 



COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN

COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN

THE VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 

PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT | NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Photo Source: Nippersink Forest Preserve



Prepared by Teska Associates, Inc. | November 04, 2015

Village Officials
Daniel A. MacGillis
Mayor

Patricia C. Blauvelt
Village Clerk

Charles Foy
Trustee 

Henry Frye, Jr.
Trustee

Russell Kraly
Trustee 

Don Newby
Trustee

Sergio Rodriguez
Trustee 

Susan Triphahn
Trustee

Plan Commissioners
John Gutknecht - Chairman
Michael Duax
Kate Kristan
Pam Mazzanti 
George Monaco 
Robert Silvestri 
Art Waller

Blue Ribbon Panel
Jim DiDonato
John Gutknecht
James Hult
Danette Kohlmeyer
Paul Maplethorp
Bob Newport
Sergio Rodriguez
Art Waller

Village Staff
Steven J. Shields
Village Administrator

Shane D. Johnson
Assistant Village 
Administrator / 
Director of Finance

Michael Gillette
Chief of Police

Adam Wedoff
Director of Public Works

Contact
Village Hall
442 N. Cedar Lake Road
Round Lake, IL 60073
phone: 847-546-5400
fax: 847-546-5405

For more information visit
www.eroundlake.com

Consultant Team

Michael Blue, FAICP
Project Manager

Heidy Valenzuela
Project Planner

[                 ]Acknowledgments

Teska Associates, Inc.



[        ]Table of
contents

B
p01

COMMUNITY OVERVIEW
CHAPTER 2

p05

w
FUTURE LAND USE
CHAPTER 3

INTRODUCTION
CHAPTER 1

g

p35
i

p43

PLAN ELEMENTS
CHAPTER 4



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

4

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

1

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

A | Background

B | Comprehensive Plan Guide

 B1 | Approach

 B2 | How-To-Use

Introduction

Chapter 1
  02

 03

 03

03



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

2

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

The Village of Round Lake, located in northwest Lake County, Illinois, is a growing and diverse 
community known for its family-oriented character and beautiful open spaces.   Round Lake’s recent 
surge in population from 2000-2010 led Village officials to develop a Comprehensive Plan that would 
guide future growth and development, while celebrating and promoting the Village’s unique identity.  

A previous comprehensive plan for the Village of Round Lake was adopted in 2006 and outlined future 
plans for land use, open space, community facilities, and transportation.  Since 2007, the landscape 
across the nation has changed, and the Village of Round Lake experienced a drastic change in its local 
economy, with an increase and shift in population and housing, growing significantly quicker than its 
surrounding municipalities. 

The intent of the 2015 Comprehensive Plan is to address recent changes and outline a framework that 
enables the Village to maintain and strengthen community assets, ensure residents and businesses a 
high quality-of-life, and plan for growth and development in a sensible and sustainable manner.  The 
comprehensive plan will provide recommendations that the Village can put into action to achieve well-
planned growth and a thriving economy.
  

Background

The comprehensive plan will provide recommendations that the Village can 
put into action to achieve well-planned growth, and a strong economy.

CHAPTER 1  |  Introduction



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

3

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

APPROACH TO THE PLAN

The 2015 Comprehensive Plan process began in June 2014 with the collection of information and 
data of the Village’s existing resources, conditions, and demographics. Residents and community 
stakeholders were provided with a variety of approaches to provide input.  Outreach materials included 
a survey (hard copy and online), stakeholder interviews (Village staff, local businesses and developers, 
public institutions, HOA’s), a Blue Ribbon Panel, a visioning session with the Plan Commission, and a 
Community Open House.  The plan was then developed by utilizing major issue areas and a specific 
subarea for the Downtown was conducted to address the Village’s desired community characteristics 
and development concerns. 

HOW TO USE THE PLAN

The Comprehensive Plan is composed of an existing conditions report, vision statement, goals and 
objectives, future land use plan, and an implementation plan.  The plan’s context will provide the Village 
with a tool to guide future land use, programs and policies, development, and growth.

   I.    Goals and Objectives
         Goals serve as the vision for the community per respective category.  Objectives provide specific 
         examples that could be implemented to reach the goal.   The Village should aim to reach these 
         desired results.

   II.  Strategies
         Strategies should be kept in mind to guide development as it comes forward, and to reach the 
          desired goals.  In some cases, strategies identify programs and policies the Village should consider 
         in the future.

   III. Recommendations
         Recommendations serve as a “to-do list” of priority items for all aspects of the Village to fulfill 
         the plan’s vision.  Each recommendation is assigned a category which emphasizes what kind of
         action will need to take place to achieve the particular goal. The categories are as follows:

              Partner:   Develop relationships with local and regional institutions to combine efforts and reach 
                                                  mutual goals.

              Promote:  Explore different manners in which the promotion of local assets could become more 
                                                   widespread and reach residents and regional visitors, or other interested parties.

                Communicate:   Work with local institutions, residents and regional partners to ensure projects 
                                                               and roles are clearly understood and accepted by all participating parties.

                Implement:  Organize appropriate parties and resources needed to take the proper 
                                                       implementation steps to achieve project initiation and completion.

Comprehensive Plan Guide

CHAPTER 1  |  Introduction



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

4

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Photo Source: Round Lake Police Department



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

5

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

A | Location and Amenities

B | History

C | Demographics

D | Land Use and Zoning

E | Transportation

F | Governmental Jurisdictions

G | Village Facilities and Utilities

H | Community Engagement

Community Overview

Chapter 2
  06

 07

 08

 14

 16

21

 21

 21



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

6

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

The Village of Round Lake has a total area of 5.6 square miles.  The rural/suburban community of 
approximately 18,289 residents (2010) experienced a substantial population growth from 5,842 in 2000, 
yet has maintained a small-town feel.  The rural character of the Village is highlighted by its parks, forest 
preserves surrounding agricultural land, and lakes (Round Lake, Long Lake, and Wooster Lake).  Nearby 
municipalities surrounding the Village include Round Lake Beach (north east),  Round Lake Heights (north 
of mapped area), Round Lake Park (east), Hainesville (east), Volo and unincorporated land (south west 
and south).  The Village is located 40 miles northwest of O’Hare International Airport, 50 miles southwest 
of General Mitchell International Airport, 50 miles north west of the Chicago Loop, and 3 miles west of 
the Campbell Airport (a small privately owned, public-use airport), making it close to nearby travel and 
amenities.  Major roads traveling through the Village allow for quick and efficient transportation, to I-94 
via Route 120, to McHenry County from  Route 134, and to Route 45 from Route 60.  Although Round Lake 
is a suburban setting, the Village offers quick access to a plethora of amenities, services and entertainment 
while preserving the quiet rural lifestyle desired by its residents. 

Location and Amenities

LOCATION MAP
MAP PREPARED BY: TESKA ASSOCIATES, INC.

Round Lake

Long Lake
Round Lake 

Beach

Hainesville

Volo

Wauconda

Round Lake 
Park

Route 134

Nippersink Rd

Route 120

Ce
da

r L
ak

e R
d

Route 60

Chardon Rd

Townline Rd

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview

Unincorporated



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

7

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Originally Lake County was inhabited by several groups of Native 
Americans: Ottawas, Chippewas, Illinois, Kickapoos, Weas, Miamis, 
Potawatomies, Mascouteris, Sacs, Foxes, Hurons, Winnebagos, Sioux, 
and Iroquois.  By 1850, a group of travelers predominantly from New 
York had settled in the area and named it Avon (after their hometown 
in New York).  In the 1890’s, Amarias M. White (a landowner in the area) 
convinced the Chicago, Milwaukee & St. Paul Railroad officials to locate a 
depot in Round Lake as an extension for the Milwaukee-Chicago line.  In 
part, due to the station, employment grew when the Armour & Company 
Ice House and Plant decided to harvest ice from Round Lake for their 
refrigerator car operations.  Soon after White and a group of landowners 
set-out to incorporate the area around the train station as a Village.  Since 
the population in the area was too small to incorporate, Amarias White 
and his group traveled around the country side asking for votes in favor of 
incorporation.  On January 7, 1908, White was voted in as Village President 
and the Village was incorporated.  White greatly influenced the Village 
of Round Lake (named after nearby Round Lake) through different acts 
such as signing an ordinance for telephone service to the Village (granting 
a franchise to the Lake County Telephone Co.)  The Village continued to 
grow with development centered near today’s downtown.  A general 
store opened on the corner of Railroad Avenue and Cedar Lake Road, a 
dance hall/saloon/barber shop opened on Cedar Lake Road, followed by a 
grocery store, restaurant, blacksmith shop, auto mechanic and the Bank of 
Round Lake which was chartered as a private institution in January 1918.  
The Village of Round Lake continued to attract many residents and from 
2000-2010 tripled in population.  Population projections show Round 
Lake is expected to grow by another 50% by 2040.  

Sources:

“Bicentennial Historical Journey through Lakeland.” Lakeland Publishers, July 1, 1976.

Village of Round Lake. Fifty Years Golden Jubilee: 1908–1958. 1958.

Village of Round Lake. Memories of Round Lake: 1908–1983. 1983.

f
1908

The Village was named 
after nearby lake, Round 
Lake, and incorporated 
in 1908.

G
2000-2010

From 2000 to the present 
time, the village has 
tripled in population. 
It is projected to reach 
20,000 residents by the 
year 2040.

`
2015

Village prepares a Com-
prehensive Plan update  
to guide development 
consistent with the com-
munity aspirations. 

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview

History

Photo Source: Village of Round Lake. Memories 
of Round Lake: 1908-1983.

Round Lake Metra Station



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

8

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

The demographics of a municipality describe the planning area, history of the Village, and a baseline 
of data and background that guide preparation of the plan elements relating to the growth and 
development of Round Lake.

Demographic data was gathered from multiple sources including the U.S. Census (2000, 2010), American 
Community Survey (2008-2022), Environmental Systems Research Institute (ESRI) Reports (2013), and 
the Chicago Metropolitan Agency for Planning’s (CMAP) 2040 Population Projections.

Demographics 

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview

Comprehensive Plan Open House, 2014



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

9

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Demographics (continued)

POPULATION & AGE

Round Lake experienced a significant population 
increase of 213% between 2000 and 2010 (from 
5,842 to 18,289).  The 2014 population is estimated 
at 18,782, and Chicago Metropolitan Agency for 
Planning (CMAP) studies project the population to 
increase by another 50% by 2040.  In comparison, 
Lake County experienced a 9% increase in population 
between 2000 and 2010, from 644,356 to 703,462.  
Lake County’s 2040 projections see an upcoming 35% 
increase to the population.

The median age in Round Lake increased by 1 year 
from 2000 to 2010, from 30.5 to 31.5.  Lake County 
saw a larger increase of 4 years from 2000-2010, 33 to 
37.  The population pyramid of Round Lake shows a 
stable population with larger numbers of youth and 
middle-aged adults (likely their parents).  Having an 
understanding of the population’s age and growth 
patterns helps guide the Village with the type of 
services needed and administered.

POPULATION CHANGE & 
PROJECTIONS

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

2000 2010 2040

5,842

18,289

27,349

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

700,000

800,000

900,000

1,000,000

2000 2010 2040

644,356
703,462

953,673 

ROUND LAKE

LAKE COUNTY

POPULATION PYRAMID & 
MEDIAN AGE

6 4 2 0 2 4 6

Under 5
5-9

10-14
15-19
20-24
25-29
30-34
35-39
40-44
45-49
50-54
55-59
60-64
65-69
70-74
75-79
80-84

85+

% Male % Female

Data Source: US Census 2010 and CMAP 2040 Projections 

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

10

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Demographics (continued)

RACE & ETHNICITY

Census respondents identifying as White in Round Lake 
decreased from 82% in 2000 to 70% in 2010.  Respondents 
identifying as Hispanic/Latino increased from 22% in 2000 
to 25% in 2010.  Respondents identifying as Asian increased 
from 2% in 2000 to 13% in 2010.  Similarly, Lake County saw a 
decrease in percentage of White residents from 80% in 2000 
to 75% in 2010, an increase in Hispanic/Latino residents from 
14% in 2000 to 20% in 2010, and an increase in Asian residents 
from 4% in 2000 to 6% 2010.  Understanding changes in race 
and ethnicity allows for better planning of future services and 
amenities.  The Village may offer services and resources that 
could assist and welcome new residents of  diverse racial and 
ethnic backgrounds. 

RACIAL COMPOSITION RACIAL COMPOSITION

0

2,
00

0

4,
00

0

6,
00

0

8,
00

0

10
,0

00

12
,0

00

White

Black

Am. Indian/Alaskan Native

Asian

Native Hawaiian/P.I.

Some Other Race

2 or More Races

Hispanic/Latino
2010 2000

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview

Photo Source: Round Lake Public Area Library

Photo Source: Round Lake Public Area Library

Comprehensive Plan Open House, 2014



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

11

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

3
Median Household Income

$81K

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

10,000

2000 2010 2040

2,029

5,847

9,493

Demographics (continued)

HOUSEHOLDS

There was a 188% increase in households between 
2000 and 2010, and an increase of 62% is projected 
by 2040 (CMAP study).  In comparison, households 
in Lake County increased by 12% between 2000 and 
2010, and are projected to increase by over 70% in 
2040.  Round Lake’s housing growth parallels the 
Village’s substantial population growth as homes 
were built to keep up with demand. 

Housing occupancy in Round Lake remains the same 
between 2000 and 2010, 95% occupied and 5% 
vacant.  Currently median home values are about 
$225,000, while median gross rent per month is 
nearly $1,000.  

HOUSING OCCUPANCY

HOUSEHOLD CHANGE

HOUSING PROFILE

2012 Population 18,289 (+213% since 2000)

2012 Households 5,847 (+188% since 2000)

Median HH Income $81,000

8.1% Below the poverty line

Median HH Value $225,184 (est. 2014)

Median Contract Rent $996/month

3
Median Household Value

$225K

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

Total Units Occupied Vacant

2,137 2,029

108

6,206
5,847

359

2000 2010

333
Median Gross Rent/month

$996

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

12

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Demographics (continued)

HOUSEHOLDS

Over 63% of homes in Round Lake were built between 2000 and 2009, confirming just how 
substantial the population increase was during those years.  Moving forward, the Village is 
projected to increase in population by another 50% by 2040 (Chicago Metropolitan Agency for 
Planning study). 

HOUSEHOLD CHANGE

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

232 94 167 142 304 244

994

3,932

106



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

13

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Demographics (continued)

EMPLOYMENT

There were a total of 148 business licenses issued by 
Round Lake in 2014.  The Village has 2,528 employees, 
and approximately 95% of those employees live outside 
of the Village limits.  Employment (ESRI, 2014) and 
Travel to Work data (Census, 2011) were used to better 
understand what industries residents worked in and 
where they were located.  

Employment data collected is grouped in broad 
categories of industries including Retail Trade (Home 
Improvement, General Merchandise Stores, Auto 
Dealers, Gas Stations, Apparel & Accessory Stores, 
Furniture & Home Furnishings, Eating & Drinking 
Places), Services (Hotels, Automotive, Health, Legal, and 
Educational Services), Finance (Real Estate, Insurance, 
Banking), Government, Construction, Manufacturing, 
Transportation, Agriculture, Wholesale Trade and 
Communication. 

EMPLOYMENT IN ROUND LAKE

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

18

62

19
42

9 21

68

20

273

6

106

The majority of Round Lake residents travel to work by driving 
alone (7,202), while a much smaller amount carpool (668). 

The largest employment sector in Round Lake, with 
273 jobs is Services, followed by 68 Retail Trade jobs, 
62 Construction jobs, and 42 Transportation jobs.  
“Other“ establishments employ 106 people and 
may include those that work from home, babysit, 
landscape, or work in other domestic services. 

Travel to Work data* (2011) suggests that Round 
Lake residents leaving Village limits travel to other 
areas around Round Lake including Round Lake 
Beach (5.5%), Chicago (4.4%), and Grayslake (3.3%), 
while 4.8% work within Round Lake Village limits.    
Meanwhile employees traveling to Round Lake for 
work are traveling from Chicago (13.1%), Libertyville 
(4.7%), and Vernon Hills (3.5%), including other 
surrounding municipalities and/or unincorporated 
areas.  
* Travel to Work data may encompass unincorporated areas 
surrounding Round Lake as part of the municipality. 

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

14

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Current land use in Round Lake was examined 
using data as reported by the CMAP and 
confirmed by Village staff.  The majority of land 
within the municipality is single family residential 
(39%). Single Family residential developments 
meander through the community often flanked 
by open space.  The few multifamily residential 
developments located in Round Lake are small 
developments at the northern edge of the 

Land Use and Zoning

LAND USE MAP
DATA SOURCE: CHICAGO METROPOLITAN AGENCY FOR PLANNING | MAP PREPARED BY: TESKA ASSOCIATES, INC.

IL Route 134

Long Lake Dr.

IL Route 120/ Belvidere Rd

Townline Rd

Equestrian Way

Chardon Rd

IL Route 60

Nippersink Rd

Ce
da

r L
ak

e R
d

Al
le

gh
an

y R
d

Ba
co

n 
Rd

Fa
ir�

el
d 

Rd

W
ild

ps
rin

g 
Rd

Woodland Dr.

W
ils

on
 R

d

LAND USE MAP 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN | ROUND LAKE, IL

MAP PREPARED BY: TESKA ASSOCIATES, INC.

DATE: SEPTEMBER 30, 2014
N

LEGEND
Commercial & Services
SF Residential

MF Residential
Mobile Home Parks

Governmental Institutional
Industrial & Warehousing

Agricultural
Open Space

Transportation & Utilities
Wetlands

Vacant & Under Construction
Water

SOURCE: CHICAGO METROPOLITAN AGENCY FOR PLANNING (CMAP)

IL Route 134

Long Lake Dr.

IL Route 120/ Belvidere Rd

Townline Rd

Equestrian Way

Chardon Rd

IL Route 60

Nippersink Rd

Ce
da

r L
ak

e R
d

Al
le

gh
an

y R
d

Ba
co

n 
Rd

Fa
ir�

el
d 

Rd

W
ild

ps
rin

g 
Rd

Woodland Dr.

W
ils

on
 R

d

ROUND LAKE LAND USE MAP 
Open House | November 11, 2014

Village.  Two mobile home parks are located 
near the Village’s downtown area.  Round Lake 
also has significant vacant land (33%), which is 
typically adjacent to single family residential 
developments and includes land that is under 
development.  Round Lake’s natural amenities 
are evident with 454 acres of open space (13%) 
and 131 acres of water (4%) within the Village 
limits.

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

15

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Land Use and Zoning

Round Lake has been zoned 
to include a multitude of land 
uses including residential 
districts (developed as a col-
lection of subdivisions), com-
mercial districts, industrial 
districts and public property 
(including parks, forest pre-
serves, schools and municipal 
properties). Single Family res-
idential districts (E-R, R-1, R-2, 
R-3) are designated for the 
majority of Round Lake, most 
prominently at the northwest 
and southeast areas of the 
Village.  Multifamily residen-
tial districts (R-4, R-5, R-6) 
are found in the northwest 
side of the Village and near 
the downtown center.  Com-
mercial districts (C-1, C-2, C-3, 
C-4 and C-5) are zoned for ar-
eas along major corridors such 
as Route 134, Route 120,  and 
Route 60, making them acces-
sible to residents and visitors 
alike.   Industrial districts (I-1 and 
I-2) are also located along major 
roads and are generally laid in 
close proximity to commercial 
land uses.  The largest area of 
industrial uses are zoned in the 
northeast side of the Village (in-
cluding an industrial park just 
north of the downtown area).  
Zoning for the Village has creat-
ed the most intense uses in and 
near the Downtown and major corridors while separating residential districts from increased traffic and con-
gestion.  This allows residents to retain a quiet atmosphere at home if they choose to live in a subdivision, while 
still having the option to live in a more compact setting should they wish to locate in such an area. 

Wilson

Belvidere

Fa
irf

ie
ld

Fi
sh

 L
ak

e

IL Route 120

Gilmer

Nippersink

Chardon

Hart

Townline

Su
ns

et

Main

Bacon

IL Route 60

Fo
x

Ja
de

Am
arias

Oakwood

Id
le

w
ild

IL Route 134

Haw
tho

rne

Cla
ren

don

Long Lake

Po
rt

er

Highland

Arden

Vi
lla

ge

Li
nd

en

W
ild

sp
ri
ng

Forest

Ba
rb

er
ry

Br
ie

rh
ill

Lake Shore

Galena

Cu
rr

an

Br
en

tw
oo

d

Woodland

Ch
an

ne
l

Gossell

Prairie

Larkin

Ce
da

r 
La

ke

Ca
lla

ha
n

Bellows

Beachview

Morningside

Railroad

Ke
nw

oo
d

Be
ve

rly

Ferndale

Mayfield

Caldwell

Gr
ee

nw
oo

d

Oak

Meadow

Glenwood

Li
tc

hf
ie

ld

Savanna

Da
lto

n

Park

Lily

Be
df

or
d

He
ro

n

Ro
de

o

Niagara

Midland

Hamlin

Bluewater

Lo
tu

s

Glacier

Willow

Ju
ne

w
ay

Washington

Norwell

Re
dt

op

Ca
th

er
in

e

Big Hollow

Tyl
er

Li
be

rt
y 

La
ke

s

Prai
riev

iew

Savoy

M
ap

le

Kristina

Vista

Bl
ue

st
em

M
ag

na

Brooks Farm

Ronald

Li
nc

ol
n

Alp
ine

Stub

Norelius

Lo
ng

Portage

Ardm
ore

Va
lle

y 
Vi

ew

M
ac

gi
lli

s

Hi
ck

or
y

Newbridge

W
al

nu
t

Va
le

nt
in

Ki
ld

ee
r

Lunga

Long Beach

La
ke

wo
od

Alma

Sweet Clover

Ov
er

lo
ok

Old Gilmer

Avilon

Birch

Pl
ea

sa
nt

Od
en

Spruce

Ha
rr

is
on

Abington

Capri

Moraine Valley

Biros

M
ar

k

Parkside

Central Park

Cam
bri

a

Havenw
ood

Providence

Passavant

Hillw
ood

Au
gu

st
an

a

Tu
rn

bu
ll

De
co

ra
h

Va
lle

y 
La

ke
s

Si
lv

er
 L

ea
f

Unnamed

Magnolia

La
wn

Ea
st

Vi
lla

 V
is

ta

Tess

Autumn

Hi
gh

pl
ai
ns

Bl
ac

kh
aw

k

Ne
ls

on

Hi
lla

nd
al

e

Ch
es

tn
ut

Ro
se

ha
ll

Ch
er

ok
ee

Da
w

n 
M

ar
ie

Water Lily

Greenleaf

Springside

Fairborn

Olmsted

Elder

Great Falls

Waterbury

Switchgrass

W
at

er
fo

rd

Po
lk

Molidor

Hi
gh

 P
oi

nt

La
ke

vi
ew

Gudrun

Trailsid
e

Ja
m

es

Go
ld

en
ro

d

Bayport

Ca
nn

on

Se
ne

ca

Fretheim

Janice

Bernice

Pineview

Fishhook

Luther

Fr
em

on
t

W
oo

dr
id

ge

W
ag

on
w

oo
d

Ea
go

n

Meadowview

Dogwood

Asbury

Jonathan

Galeton

Briar

W
in

dr
id

ge

Kenilw
orth

Southmoor

Aldridge

Ho
lm

an

Panther

Levi Waite

Sc
ho

ol

Cattail

Si
en

na

Prairie 
Walk

Pe
te

rs
on

Center

Na
sa

Sa
va

nn
ah

Wooster Lake

Locust

W
ild M

eadow

Hill

Reed

Old Farm

Weeping Willow

Rosedale

Be
ac

on

Durham

Lake

Diana

Tr
ee

vi
ew

Fa
llb

ro
ok

Gr
ey

w
al

l

Ha
m

pt
on

Chicago

Cr
es

ce
nt

Ca
ta

lp
a

Raym
ond

Brorson

Town Center

Denise

W
es

t

Wicklow

Th
om

ps
on

Amberley

Wind
sor

River Oaks

Corona

Elizabeth

Chatham

Ca
ta

lin
a

Field
ing

Se
dg

eb
ro

ok

Ar
lin

gt
on

Broadsmore

Daybreak

Ge
rb

er
di

ng

Hillto
p

Hayw
ood

Finch

Tim
be

r C
re

ek

Foxtail

Heron View

Th
is

tle

Tr
ill

iu
m

Im
pe

ria
l

To
cc

oa

Saint Olaf

Ne
ed

le
gr

as
s

Marigold

Ro
be

rt

Si
ng

in
g 

Hi
lls

Co
lo

ny

W
in

ch
es

te
r

Vi
nt

ag
e

Tr
em

on
t

Pr
im

ro
se

Bu
tt

er
fie

ld

Re
d 

Oa
k

Seaton

Venetian

Sy
ca

m
or

e

High School

Laurel

Carlisle

Hauge

W
es

t 
En

d

Be
rk

le
y

Ri
dg

ew
oo

d

M
an

or
 H

ill

Ba
yv

ie
w

Inverness

Go
od

no
w

Va
lm

on
t

Lu
na

r

Canopy

Prairie Mist

Ro
ck

 Is
lan

d

W
in

eb
er

ry

Wildwood

Treehouse

El
le

n

M
ilw

au
ke

e

An
tar

es

Sp
lit

 O
ak

M
on

tc
la

ir

Anderson

Cascade

Bla
ckw

olf

Remington

Buena Vista

Hillside

Ravine

Cl
ea

r 
W

at
er

Huntington

M
ea

do
w

br
oo

k

Co
nv

er
se

Bonnie Brook

Su
ns

hi
ne

Forest Cove

Gr
ov

e

Buckingham

Cedar Crest

Fieldbrook

Abbey

Ca
ro

l

Black Wolf

Bentley

Ke
sw

ic
k

Dartm
oor

Sunnybrook

Dorothy

La
rk

sp
ur

Be
ec

hw
oo

d

W
in

di
ng

 Tr
ai
l

Berkshire

Orchard

W
oo

db
in

e

Essington

Rockford

Juniper

Cl
ift

on

Madison

W
itchw

oodStoughton

Augusta

Meadow Mist

Graham

Lake Park

Van Buren

Stonybrook

Davis

Oxford

Coventry Glen

As
te

r

Shoreland

Oa
kl

an
d

Ro
un

d 
La

ke

Racine

Shelbourne

Holly

Marble

Hitching Post

Sp
rin

g 
Va

lle
y

Shady

Lem

New
 House

Marsh Meadow

Reedgrass

Edgew
ater

Muskego

Oriole

Sp
rin

g 
La

ke

Ro
ck

in
g 

Ho
rs

e

He
ye

r

La
ke

si
de

Sand Bar

Cranberry

Sp
an

ky

Sunnyside

Cr
ee

ks
id

e

Whispering Oaks

Kingfisher

Spring Brook

Bluff

Be
rg

en

Falcon

Nature

Pr
ai

ri
e 

Sp
rin

gs

Osage

Br
oo

m
se

dg
e

Cornflow
er

St
ee

pl
eb

us
h

Glenview

Cl
ea

rv
ie

w

Ga
rla

nd

Columbine

Cryst
al R

ock

Bl
ue

 H
er

on

Bo
xw

oo
d

Rookery

Burr Oak

Bra
dfor

d

Turtle Creek

Ki
tt
y 

Ha
w

k

Sh
ad

y 
La

ne

Arrow
head

Kortney

W
es

tm
in

is
te

r

Mara Lynn

Au
tu

m
n 

Gr
ov

e
Au

tu
m

n 
Oa

ks

Edgewood

Barbara

Azalea

Honey

Shagbark

Cr
an

e V
iew

Ro
xb

ur
y

Be
ng

so
n

Sedgewood
A Ok

Ce
da

r M
ou

nd

W
ildrose

Beryl

Jorgenson

Cottonwood

Ap
oll

o

Elm

Ta
ng

le
w

oo
d

W
hi

te
 C

lo
ve

r

Fa
rm

w
oo

d

Fieldstone Sagebrush

Ho
us

to
n

Em
er

al
d 

Sh
or

es

Blackthorn
Applegate

Ce
nt

er

W
oo

dr
id

ge

Cu
rr

an

La
rk

sp
ur

Lake Shore

Pineview

Old Farm

Pr
im

ro
se

Lakeside

Fishhook

Hillside

Au
gu

st
an

a

Woodland

Ba
rb

er
ry

Red Oak

Lakeview

Ro
un

d 
La

ke

Cascade

Go
ld

en
ro

d

Co
lu

m
bi

ne

Haywood

Pa
rk

Un
na

m
ed

Oa
k

M
eadowbrook

Channel

Map
le

Or
ch

ar
d

Un
na

m
ed

Prairie

Unnamed

Main

Unnamed

Bacon

Un
na

m
ed

Pa
rk

Oak

Prairie

Ne
ls

on

Laurel

Pa
rk

Lo
tu

s

Un
na

m
ed

Unnamed

Tr
ai

ls
id

e

Ch
er

ok
ee

Thistle

Ja
m

es

Un
na

m
ed

Wooster Lake

Ce
da

r 
La

ke

W
es

t

Ce
da

r 
Cr

es
t

¯

0 770 1,540 2,310 3,080385
Miles

Legend

Round Lake

ZONING

Commercial (C-1, C-2, C-3, C-4, C-5)

Industrial (I-1, I-2)

Residential (R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4, R-5, R-6, R-10)

Parks and Open Space

Village of Round Lake
Zoning Map____________________

ZONING MAP
MAP PREPARED BY: TESKA ASSOCIATES, INC.

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

16

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Round Lake is well-served by three major arterials 
and collector roads connecting the Village to several 
airports (O’Hare International Airport, General 
Mitchell Airport, Campbell Airport), recreational 
and entertainment venues (Six Flags Great America, 
Wrigley Field, US Cellular Field, Allstate Arena, 
United Center, Lake County Fairgrounds, Volo Auto 
Museum), and shopping centers (Gurnee Mills 
Shopping Mall, Westfield Hawthorne Shopping 
Mall, Citypark at Lincolnshire).  The Village’s location 
and quick access to so many amenities can attract 
retailers and companies seeking to locate in an 
area that finds value in being in close proximity 
to the roads listed below.   Plans for the expansion 
of Route 120 and Cedar Lake Road realignment  
have the potential to attract more commuters and 
visitors, thereby benefiting existing businesses and 
encouraging the opening of new ones.              

Major arterials include:
• IL Route 134 - connects to US Highway 12
• IL Route 120/Belvidere Road - connects to US  
  Highway 45, the Tri-State Tollway (I-94), and 
  IL Route 12/59
• IL Route 60 - connects to US Highway 45

Transportation  

Collector roads include:
• Townline Road
• Nippersink Road
• Fairfield Road

Planned Cedar Lake Road Realignment 
includes: 
The Cedar Lake Road realignment is a $6 million 
project beginning in 2017 that includes the 
reconstruction of Cedar Lake Road from 2 to 3 
lanes, and connects it from Route 120 to Route 
134.  The Village’s goal for the realignment is 
to attract interest in locating in the downtown 
area.  Road realignment elements include:  

•  Connection to Nippersink Forest Preserve  
   and eventually the Millenium Bicycle Trail
•  Relocating the Metra station further south 
   down the rail line to the lumber yards
•  Eliminating Metra’s existing parking lot  
    and replacing it on the east side of Cedar
    Lake Road
•  At the grade train crossing to allow for safe 
    passage for pedestrians and vehicles
•  25 mph speed limit

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview

ROADS



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

17

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Illinois Route 53/120 Corridor Project:

Lake County has experienced a large population 
increase in a short amount of time, and with that 
traffic congestion has become a concern for many 
of the residents and visitors in the county.  In 2009, 
residents approved a non-binding referendum to 
extend Illinois Route 53 north to Illinois Route 120.  
The Chicago Metropolitan Agency for Planning’s 
GO TO 2040 Plan cites the project on its highest 
priority list due to the potential for reducing 
region-wide congestion.  The planning work has 
already begun and will include land use plans for 
a dozen areas.  The Village of Round Lake will be 
greatly impacted by the creation of this urban 
highway and should anticipate projects that could 
benefit from the corridor.  Elements of the Illinois 
Route 53/120 Corridor Land Use Plan includes:    

Transportation (continued)  

• Creating a four-lane limited access arterial 
highway bounded by Lake Cook Road on the 
south, the Chain O’Lakes on the north, I-94 to 
the east, and IL 12 to the west. 

• Designing a “modern boulevard“ with a smaller 
footprint to minimize potential negative impacts 
and preserve the county’s natural environment.

• By-pass along seven miles of the state road.

• Identify opportunities to improve recreation, 
transit, and economic development.

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

18

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Transportation (continued)  

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview

PROPOSED IL ROUTE 53/120 NORTH EXTENSION ALIGNMENT
DATA SOURCE: ILLINOIS TOLLWAY

IL Route 120

IL Route 134



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

19

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Round Lake residents have convenient access to Pace Bus and Metra services.  The Pace Bus Route 
570 serves Round Lake commuters and the bus stop is located at Cedar Lake Road and Washington Road.  
This Bus Route also connects to bus routes 565, 572, and 806.  The Milwaukee District/North Line (Fox 
Lake to Chicago) serves Round Lake commuters at the Round Lake Metra station and is located at 
the intersection of Route 134 and Cedar Lake Road.  Parking is available daily on a first-come, first-
serve basis for a fee of $1.50 a day.  There is one designated parking lot for pass holders which is 
located on Goodnow Boulevard (off Route 134) and is known as the Goodnow Lot.  Respondents that 
participated in a survey done as part of the Comprehensive Plan indicated that they rarely use public 
transportation to travel to work or for other daily needs.  

Transportation (continued)  

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview

Round Lake Metra Station

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

20

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

MAJOR ROADS, FOREST PRESERVE & TRAILS MAP 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN | ROUND LAKE, IL

MAP PREPARED BY: TESKA ASSOCIATES, INC.

DATE: OCTOBER 08, 2014
N

LEGEND
Village Boundary

IL Route 134

IL Route 120/ Belvidere Rd

Chardon Rd

IL Route 60

W
ils

on
 R

d

Ba
co

n 
Rd

Fi
sh

 La
ke

 R
d

Fa
ir�

el
d 

Rd

Townline Rd

Nippersink Rd

Long Lake Dr.

Ce
da

r L
ak

e R
d

Gilmer Rd

Body of Water
Forest Preserve
Trails

Major Arterial
Collector Road

SOURCE: CHICAGO METROPOLITAN AGENCY FOR PLANNING (CMAP)

Transportation (continued)  

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview

ROADS AND TRAILS MAP
DATA SOURCE: LAKE COUNTY GIS, 2014 | MAP PREPARED BY: TESKA ASSOCIATES, INC.



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

21

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

SCHOOLS

The Village of Round Lake is 
served by a total of 8 school 
districts; one community unit 
school district, four elementary 
school districts and three high 
school districts.  The Round 
Lake Community Unit School 
District 116 serves students 
in Kindergarten through 12th 
grade on the northeastern 
portion of the community.  Two 
elementary districts (Gavin 
School District 37 to the north 
and Big Hollow School District 
38 to the west) feed into Grant 
High School District 124 to 
the northwest.  Community 
Consolidated School District 46 
to the south is an elementary 
district that feeds into Grayslake 
High School District 127.  Finally, 
Fremont School District 79, an 
elementary school district in 
south Round Lake, feeds into 
Mundelein High School District 
120.  See map on page 22.

The Round Lake Area Public 
Library, located at 906 Hart 
Road in Round Lake, serves 
most of the Village as well as 
surrounding areas.  It is open 
every day of the week and 
offers books and resources in 
English and Spanish, quarterly 
newsletters, social events, and 
much more (see map on page 
23). Round Lake is also served 
by three other library districts: 
Fox Lake Public Library District 
in the northwest, Grayslake 
Area Public Library District in 
the central community and 
Freemont Public Library District 
to the south.  The Fox Lake Public 
Library District serves the fewest 
number of residents (fewer than 
200 households) with the other 
districts serving more sizeable 
number of households.  

The Village is served by 3 fire 
districts.  The only fire station 
located within Round Lake’s 
boundaries is in Downtown 
Round Lake at 409 W Nippersink 
Road (headquarters). The Great-
er Round Lake Fire Protection 
District serves 6 municipalities 
and unincorporated Lake Coun-
ty land. Fox Lake Fire Protection 
District serves the area to the 
west, while the Grayslake Fire 
Protection District serves the 
southernmost end of the vil-
lage.  Though not directly serv-
ing Round Lake, the Wauconda 
Fire Protection District is located 
just south and west of the mu-
nicipality.  Another fire station in 
Round Lake is considered at the 
intersection of Cedar Lake Road 
and Townline Road.   See map 
on page 24.

LIBRARY FIRE

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview

Round Lake Governmental Jurisdictions

Round Lake Public Library



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

22

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Round Lake Governmental Jurisdictions (continued)  

ELEMENTARY & UNIT SCHOOL DISTRICT MAP  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN | ROUND LAKE, IL

MAP PREPARED BY: TESKA ASSOCIATES, INC.

DATE: OCTOBER 08, 2014
N

LEGEND
Village Boundary
Body of Water

Gavin School District
Big Hollow School District 38

Wauconda Comm. Unit School District 118
Round Lake Comm. Unit School District 116

Community Consolidated School District 46
Fremont School District 79

SOURCE: CHICAGO METROPOLITAN AGENCY FOR PLANNING (CMAP)

School

ROUND LAKE COMMUNITY UNIT
SCHOOL DISTRICT 116

COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED
SCHOOL DISTRICT 46

FREMONT
SCHOOL DISTRICT 79

GAVIN
SCHOOL DISTRICT 37

BIG HOLLOW
SCHOOL DISTRICT 38

WAUCONDA COMMUNITY UNIT
SCHOOL DISTRICT 118

IL Route 120/ Belvidere Rd

Long Lake Dr.

IL Route 60

Ce
da

r L
ak

e R
d

W
ils

on
 R

d

Fa
ir�

el
d 

Rd

Townline Rd

Gavin South Jr. High School

Big Hollow Middle School

Big Hollow Primary School

Raymond Ellis Elementary School

Round Lake High School

John T. Magee Middle School

Round Lake Village Elementary School
W.J. Murphy Elementary School

St. Joseph School

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview

ELEMENTARY AND UNIT SCHOOL DISTRICT MAP
DATA SOURCE: BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC. | MAP PREPARED BY: TESKA ASSOCIATES, INC.



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

23

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Round Lake Governmental Jurisdictions (continued)  

ROUND LAKE LIBRARY DISTRICT MAP 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN | ROUND LAKE, IL

MAP PREPARED BY: TESKA ASSOCIATES, INC.

DATE: OCTOBER 08, 2014
N

LEGEND
Village Boundary
Body of Water

Fox Lake Public Library District
Wauconda Public Library District

Round Lake Area Public Library District 
Grayslake Area Public Library District

Fremont Public Library District

SOURCE: CHICAGO METROPOLITAN AGENCY FOR PLANNING (CMAP)

IL Route 120/ Belvidere Rd

Nippersink Rd

Long Lake Dr.

Ce
da

r L
ak

e R
d

W
ils

on
 R

d

Fa
ir�

el
d 

Rd

Townline Rd

ROUND LAKE AREA
PULIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

GRAYSLAKE AREA
PULIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

FREMONT
PULIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

FOX LAKE
PULIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

WAUCONDA AREA
PULIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview

LIBRARY DISTRICT MAP
DATA SOURCE: BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC. | MAP PREPARED BY: TESKA ASSOCIATES, INC.



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

24

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Round Lake Governmental Jurisdictions (continued)  

FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT MAP 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN | ROUND LAKE, IL

MAP PREPARED BY: TESKA ASSOCIATES, INC.

DATE: OCTOBER 08, 2014
N

LEGEND
Village Boundary
Body of Water

Wauconda Fire Protection District
Grayslake Fire Protection District

Greater Round Lake Fire Protection District
Fox Lake Fire Protection District

SOURCE: CHICAGO METROPOLITAN AGENCY FOR PLANNING (CMAP)

IL Route 120/ Belvidere Rd

Nippersink Rd

Long Lake Dr.

IL Route 60

Ce
da

r L
ak

e R
d

W
ils

on
 R

d

Fa
ir�

el
d 

Rd

Townline Rd

GREATER ROUND LAKE FIRE 
PROTECTION DISTRICT

FOX LAKE FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT

WAUCONDA FIRE 
PROTECTION DISTRICT

GRAYSLAKE FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview

FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT MAP
DATA SOURCE: BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC. | MAP PREPARED BY: TESKA ASSOCIATES, INC.



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

25

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

PARKS

The Round Lake Area Park 
District is the only governmental 
district that encompasses the 
entire Village of Round Lake.  The 
district includes 18 parks and 1 
forest preserve (Lake County’s 
Nippersink Forest Preserve) in 
the Village.  The Park District’s 
office is located at 814 Hart 
Road, and offers a wide range of 
programs including: Aquatics, 
Youth Basketball, AYSO Soccer, 
Summer Camp, Challenge 
Course, Children’s Neighborhood 
Museum, Nature Museum, Music, 
Theater, and Dance Lessons, 
Senior Center, and Special 
Recreation for individuals with 
disabilities.  The district also 
serves Round Lake Heights, 
Round Lake Beach, Round Lake 
Park, Hainesville,  and adjacent 
areas of unincorporated land.  In 
total the park district maintains 
53 parks and 8 other facilities 
including community centers, a 
nature museum, bike trail, and 
golf course.          

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview

Round Lake Governmental Jurisdictions (continued)  

ROUND LAKE AREA PARK DISTRICT MAP
DATA SOURCE: ROUND LAKE AREA PARK DISTRICT



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

26

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

VILLAGE HALL

The Village Hall is located in 
Downtown Round Lake on 
Cedar Lake Road.  The Round 
Lake Metra station along with 
various local businesses and 
Magee Middle School are within 
walking distance.  Village Hall’s 
office (442 N. Cedar Lake Road) 
houses the Administrative 
Department and Building 
Department and offers a variety 
of resources, services and events 
to residents and businesses. 
Residents can participate in 
community events such as 
Arbor Day and Home Town 
Festival, while businesses can 
benefit from annual business 
summits to a recently created 
business directory.

The Police Department is 
located at 741 W. Townline 
Road  and offers services such 
as prescription and over the 
counter drug disposal (through 
a grant from CVS/pharmacy to 
combat drug abuse and protect 
the environment), Victim/
Witness Assistance Program, 
Premise Alert Program, Families 
Against Chronic Excessive 
Speeding (FACES 4), resident 
notification system, and 
information on the Department 
of Homeland Security.  The 
annual National Night Out is 
held at the Police Department 
and offers residents a car show 
with free food.  The event is 
designed to heighten crime 
and drug prevention awareness, 
to support local anti-crime 
programs, and strengthen 
police-community relations. 

The Public Works Department, 
located at 751 W. Townline 
Road, is in place to “Enhance the 
quality of life for our residential 
and business community by 
providing and maintaining 
quality infrastructure“.  The 
department offers residents 
services in snow removal, street 
tree replacement, curb, gutter 
and sidewalk replacement 
program, water quality, 
mosquito control, emerald ash 
borer (EAB), storm water run-off, 
and road construction projects.   

POLICE STATION PUBLIC WORKS

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview

Round Lake Village Facilities and Utilities 

Round Lake Public Works &  Police Department



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

27

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

SEWER

The Village is served by the 
Northwest Regional Sewer 
System. The sewer system 
carries water from indoor drains 
to wastewater treatment in 
Fox Lake via the Northwest 
Regional Sewer System.  There 
is an excess flow site in Round 
Lake Beach, which has recently 
been upgraded, that allows 
for temporary storage during 
heavy rain events.  

Round Lake water is pumped 
from Lake Michigan and treated 
at Central Lake County Joint 
Action Water Agency’s Paul M. 
Neal Water Treatment Facility 
in the Village of Lake Bluff.  
CLCJAWA utilizes 36 miles of 
pre-stressed concrete water 
main installed in 1991 to deliver 
water to the Village.  The Village 
then stores the water in its 3 
million gallon ground storage 
reservoirs or is pumped directly 
into the distribution system 
from the Cedar Lake Road 
pump station.  The Village has 
an adequate storage facility , 
they can store up to 4.5 mgd’s 
(million gallons per day) of 
water, but are only at .8 mgd’s 
so far.  All developments are 
connected to the Village’s water 
system.    Tap water quality 
is consistently monitored by 
the Illinois Environmental 
Protection Agency (IEPA) and 
other independent labs.  

The Round Lake storm water  
system releases rain run-off 
water into channels, streams 
and rivers.  Village residents 
are encouraged to not pour 
anything down the storm drains 
without first knowing what they 
can do to protect the water in 
the storm drain system.  Some 
recommendations include  
buying non-toxic household 
products and water-based paint, 
properly disposing of hazardous 
materials at the waste collection 
center, and recycling. 

WATER STORM

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview

Round Lake Village Facilities and Utilities (continued)  



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

28

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Community Engagement

A variety of community engagement efforts have taken place since the plan’s inception to collect feedback 
that will help set a course for future decision-making in the Village.  A survey that was accessible on-line or 
through hard copy was distributed to residents through the Village Hall.  Interviews of business owners, 
investors, land owners, realtors, HOA members, residents, Village staff and taxing districts (library, fire, school, 
parks) were held to further understand the community’s key issues.  An Open House was held to review initial 
data and feedback gathered with community members and to collect more insight on Village priorities.  As 
the plan continues, the community will continue to guide the process and final document as it is a reflection 
of their unified goals for the future of Round Lake.

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview

Comprehensive Plan Community Open House, 2014



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

29

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Community Engagement (continued)  

ENGAGEMENT OPPORTUNITIES

Survey 
Over 190 surveys have been collected 
for the Round Lake Comprehensive Plan.  
Surveys were accessible through paper 
copy at Village Hall and online through the 
Village’s website. 

Stakeholder Interviews
Interviews were held with residents and 
community members that provided insight 
on several aspects future growth and 
development in the Village.

Open House
An Open House was held November 11, 2014 
with an attendance of over 50 residents, 
and provided participants the opportunity 
to review information and data gathered 
to that point, and provide ideas for future 
growth and development. 

Asset and Opportunity Mapping
Open House participants labeled an aerial 
map of Round Lake with icons representing 
amenities they would like to see in the area, 
and stickers to highlight community assets.

Vision Exercise
Open House participants participated in a 
variety of activities where they stated what 
they liked about Round Lake and what they 
aspired it to be.   

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

30

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Community Needs

Respondents indicated the need for the 
following:
• Additional restaurants 
• Options for shopping
• Access to jobs
• Bus transit

Strengths of Round Lake

Respondents gave at least a 70% rating 
on each of the following as excellent or 
good: 
• Water quality
• Open space & Parks
• Acess to Metra,
• Sense of safety in Round Lake 

Most Valued

Survey respondents believe the most 
important factors that make a community 
desirable to live in are: 
• Quality of its schools 
• Price/Value of housing
• Convenient road systems
• Access to parks
• Shopping & Restaurants

Downtown Round Lake

Would like to see:
• More retail options
• More restaurants
• Improved parking
• Improved building appearance 

Shopping & Dining Destination
 

Survey respondents indicated they 
most commonly dine out (a few times a 
month) and shop (a few times a week) 
in: 
• Gurnee
• Vernon Hills

Development

Residents indicted that the least beneficial 
development for the Village would be:
• Apartments
• Condominiums
• Senior housing

Living in Round Lake

Most survey respondents (40%) have 
lived in Round Lake for between 11 and 
20 years. Thirty – six percent have lived 
in the Village for between 6 and 10 years. 

Travel to Work

Survey respondents most typically (85%) 
drive alone to work. Seven percent take 
Metra. 

Employment

Most of those responding to the survey 
(53%) work in Lake County. Eight percent 
work in downtown Chicago.  

Community Engagement (continued)  

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview

SURVEY RESULTS



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

31

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

 » The market economy is improving but is still flat 
 » Other communities are attracting development 
 » Image of school districts varies by location
 » Develop vacant property owned by the Village
 » Rt. 60 and Rt. 120 are a good place for development

 »   Better overall image needed for Round Lake 
 »   Improve family celebrations and events
 »   Celebrate small-town feel
 »   No entertainment venue

 »   Some businesses left town because parking was
     a problem

 »   High-end residential rental would attract
     people that want to live by the train

 »   FaÇade improvements needed to make it more
     atrractive

 »   Residents like the local bakery and other 
    small businesses there

 »   Businesses are scattered, there is no central business 
    district where people can get a lot done in one place

 »   Great customer base, but would like to attract more
     customers

 »   Some nice local businesses, would like to see more
 »   Need big boxes
 »   Current administration is business-friendly  

k

Community Engagement (continued)  

Stakeholder interviews were held at Village Hall with representatives of the community 
including: Business owners, investors, land owners, HOA members, residents, Village Staff, and 
taxing districts.   Key points raised at the discussions are summarized below.  

f
l
v

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview

   LAND USE & DEVELOPMENT

 

   COMMUNITY IDENTITY

   DOWNTOWN

   BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

STAKEHOLDER INTERVIEWS



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

32

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

   “A VISION FOR ROUND LAKE”

Community members participated in a “Mad 
Libs”-esque activity where they created a 
vision for the Village.  Elements for the vision 
by the Open House participants included:

 »  The Village of Round Lake will be a diverse,  
   fun, committed community that provides well-
   rounded  activities and opportunities

 »  The Village of Round Lake will be a success and 
   provide great opportunities for businesses and
   residents

 »  The primary focus of the Village will be 
   to enhance the life style of the community  
   businesses and residents

 »  The primary focus on the Village will be to lower 
   taxes

 »  Residents will spend their money in Round Lake   

Community Engagement (continued)

Youth rendering envisioning the Down-
town at the November 11th  Open House.

   “ENVISION DOWNTOWN ROUND LAKE”

Community members suggested improving 
Downtown Round Lake through a variety of 
methods, including: 

 »  Unified faÇades (i.e. awnings)
 »  Helping small business owners with 

    block grants
 »  Bringing diverse businesses to the area 

    (including small crafts, locally-made 
    clothing, restaurants, bakeries)

 »  Road improvements (Routes 134
    and 120)

 »  Walkability
 »  Attract industry (to help with taxes)
 »  Keep the small town feeling (avoid

    the appearance of strip malls)

The first Comprehensive Plan’s Open House was held November 11, 2014 at the Public Works/
Police Department Building.  Over 50 participants reviewed the planning process, provided 
feedback on initial findings and participated in a variety of activities to express their priorities, 
concerns and ideas for the Village.

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview

OPEN HOUSE REVIEW



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

33

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

   “DEAR MAYOR ...”

Community members wrote letters addressed to the Mayor of Round Lake asking for Round Lake to 
be/have:

•  Vibrant, clean, safe with various dining and cultural opportunities
•  Bring jobs to residents by bringing commercial companies and
    building factories
•  A nicer place in appearance, vacant lots should be cut regularly to
    avoid bugs and negative appearance
•  To have bike paths and sidewalks
•  Snow removal in the winter so residents have the option to walk
•  A ban on burning leaves or trash for better air quality
•  Require shoveling of snow in front of homes so residents can walk
    to the train station
•  A thriving community with shopping, restaurants and craft fairs
•  An improved train station
•  A quicker and easier permit process
•  Thriving residential community (middle-class), thriving 
    businesses, excellent infrastructure, excellent schools and public services
•  Lower property taxes
•  Multiple lane roads
•  More community-wide event activities in the summer for families, such as concerts and fairs
•  Create a task force of community residents
•  Pedestrian-friendly so children can walk from the Park District Pool/Library to Round Lake High School

   “I WOULD LIKE TO SEE _______ IN ROUND LAKE”

Meeting participants left one word answers for what they’d like to see in the Village:

 Community Engagement (continued)

Stores
Mariano’s, Sam’s Club, Costco

Restaurants
Portillos, Subway, Family restaurants

Transportation improvements
Round-a-bout (at the intersection of 134 and 
Cedar Lake Rd) 
More options for seniors that cannot drive

Pedestrian Improvements
Sidewalk shoveling  (helping with removal)

Recreation
More family-oriented activities in the summer

Open Space
Place to plant with partial shade and a place to sit

Environmental
No weed killers or fertilizers
Pick-up leaves and make mulch for the community 
No burning of leaves and trash

CHAPTER 2  | Community Overview

OPEN HOUSE REVIEW



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

34

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

35

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

A | Land Use Categories

 A1 | Single Family Residential

 A2 | Townhomes

 A3 | Multi-Family Residential

 A4 | General Commercial

 A5 | Downtown Commercial

 A6 | Business Park

 A7 | Institutional

 A8 | Open Space

Future Land Use

Chapter 3
 36

  37

37

37

  38

  38

 38

 39

39



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

36

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Future Land Use 

The Future Land Use Plan outlines the recommended arrangement of residential, commercial, 

industrial, institutional, and parks and open spaces, both within current municipal limits and outside 

extending to Round Lake’s 1½-mile planning area boundary.   Future Land Use categories are described 

on the following pages with corresponding images that provide visual examples of development 

types that fit the preferred character for Round Lake. Although density tells us how many housing 

units are per any given area, it does not reveal everything about the physical form.  Exploring different 

design options for proposed developments with the same density will allow the Village to navigate 

new developments to fit the character most desired by the community.  Densities indicated are for 

general planning purposes only.  Proposed developments will be evaluated per the Village’s Zoning 

Ordinance and advised as to the appropriate number of units, which are appropriated based upon 

the physical constraints of the subject property and municipal ordinances.  Each land use category 

includes a list of existing zoning classifications that fit the land use description for future development 

purposes. 

CHAPTER 3  |  Future Land Use

SECTION 6A



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

37

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

   SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

The Single-Family Residential land use category provides for 
low-density residences at densities generally less than 4.0 du/ac 
(dwelling units per acre) where adequate municipal sewer and water 
utilities exist or can be made available. This category is primarily 
designed to accommodate Single-Family detached housing. 
Compatible government, education, religious, and recreation uses 
may also be permitted. The intent is to provide a range of single-
family residential subdivisions on fully improved lots that respect 
natural elements such as topography and existing vegetation, 
as well as offer amenities such as trails and open spaces to foster 
quality neighborhoods.  This land use may include developments 
that are zoned as E-R, R-1, R-2, R-3, and R-4.

   TOWNHOMES

The Townhome Residential land use category is intended to 
include residential development that is most appropriate for living 
in the Village’s future growth areas and around the downtown with 
densities between 7.0 and 14.0 du/ac.  This land use category is 
an attractive option to create a variety of housing options in the 
Village and create greater densities where appropriate. Townhome 
densities also allow more residents to walk/bike to nearby amenities, 
or to be located near major arterials and is in close proximity to 
commercial developments. All parcels should be served by public 
utilities and will be provided with access to transit and/or road 
infrastructure. This land use may include developments that are 
zoned as R-4.

   MULTIFAMILY RESIDENTIAL

The Multifamily Residential land use category is intended to 
include all forms of multiple family or attached housing, including 
condominiums, and apartments with an overall density of 15.0 
du/ac or higher. Compatible government, education, religious, 
and recreation uses may also be permitted. Rental apartments 
will continue to be an attractive housing option for singles, empty 
nesters, young professionals, and college students. Certain senior 
living facilities that are designed similarly to apartments for 
independent senior living also fall under the Multifamily Residential 
land use category.  This land use may include developments that 
are zoned as R-4, R-5, and R-6.

k

k

k

CHAPTER 3  |  Future Land Use

Future Land Use Categories



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

38

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

   GENERAL COMMERCIAL

This land use category is intended for office and retail 
establishments that offer a wide range of goods and services. 
Multifamily residential uses and institutional uses can be used 
as secondary uses in locations along major transportation, auto-
oriented corridors.  Commercial businesses can range from retail 
shops, restaurants, professional offices, and specialty services. This 
land use may include developments that are zoned as C-2, C-3, C-4, 
and C-5.

   DOWNTOWN COMMERCIAL

This category promotes the multi-use function of the downtown 
as a retail, entertainment, working and living environment that 
serves as the focal point of the community life. This land use 
category is intended for a mix of business district commercial uses 
in a compact, pedestrian-oriented activity setting.  The Downtown 
Commercial area will offer event space for community activities 
and gathering and connect to county-wide bike trails.  This land 
use may include developments that are zoned as C-1, C-2, and as 
Downtown Business District.  Note: the Downtown is considered in 
detail as a subarea in the plan.

   BUSINESS PARK

The Business Park land use category is intended to provide for 
employment generators in Round Lake.  The business park in 
Round Lake has the capacity to provide businesses that supply 
non-retail/service employment opportunities for local residents.  A 
business park would generally include offices that house executive 
services, and research and development (such as Baxter). Business 
parks would also be encouraged to integrate a campus design 
that creatively integrates buildings and parking into the natural 
environment.  This land use may include developments that are 
zoned as I-1 and I-2.

CHAPTER 3  |  Future Land Use

Future Land Use Categories (continued)



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

39

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

   INSTITUTIONAL

This land use category applies to existing or proposed locations for 
federal, state or local governmental activities, and includes private 
and public institutional uses such as schools, religious institutions, 
hospitals, libraries, municipal buildings and, safety (fire, police) 
departments.

   OPEN SPACE

This land use category encompasses all public and private open 
spaces, including neighborhood and community parks, forest 
preserves, trails, golf courses, and other recreational or educational 
facilities, such as botanic gardens and museums. It also includes 
lands that are sensitive to development, that contain special 
environmental characteristics that should be preserved, including 
wetlands, floodplains, significant tree cover and prairies. In addition 
to their sensitive nature, these areas provide the Village with such 
natural functions as flood storage and conveyance, pollution 
control, and habits for wildlife.  Recreational opportunities are 
encouraged within areas designated for parks and open space, 
provided that natural elements are protected or carefully integrated 
with recreational facilities like trails, benches, and similar elements.

CHAPTER 3  |  Future Land Use

Future Land Use Categories (continued)



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

40

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

The Future Land Use Map shows how all parts of the Village and surrounding extra-territorial jurisdiction should grow 

and develop over time.  It is composed of existing land uses and proposed future growth within the Village of Round 

Lake and its surrounding planning area (unincorporated land to the south and the west). The plan indicates, in a 

general manner, the location of current and future uses for various types of development.  It is meant to be a guide for 

considering more specific development proposals and applying village zoning to guide decision making, which may 

involve public or private investment in property development.

Large portions of the future land use map are devoted to open space and forest preserves to maintain the rural 

character of the Village.  A couple of nodes located throughout the map show potential for commercial or business 

park development which was determined by examining high traffic counts and nearby facilities/developments that 

could support the growth.  The exact area of these nodes will be determined as development proposals come before 

the Village.  The intent of the plan is to focus development around intersections rather than for commercial uses to 

be spread around the Village.  Residential growth areas do not show the preservation/incorporation of specific open 

space for each development’s specific design layout, but is expected to incorporate and respect natural amenities 

in the area.  Future residential growth areas are also shown as Single-Family residential housing, but may include 

townhomes, and community facilities (schools, places of worship) as appropriate.   

It is important to note that the Future Land Use Map is not a zoning map and will not regulate specific aspects of 

development, such as yard dimensions and building height.  The categories are not regulatory and typically land 

use maps encompass a long time frame, embody a broad community vision, and provide more general guide to 

development.  Therefore, land use informs the zoning ordinance and the zoning map is used as a tool for protecting 

the use of property and community character, even if it does not exactly align with the future land use map.  

CHAPTER 3  |  Future Land Use

Future Land Use Map

Photo Source: Nippersink Forest Preserve



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

41

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015
CHAPTER 3  |  Future Land Use

FUTURE LAND USE MAP
DATA SOURCE: CHICAGO METROPOLITAN AGENCY FOR PLANNING, LAKE COUNTY GIS | MAP PREPARED BY: TESKA ASSOCIATES, INC.

Nippersink
Forest Preserve

Kestrel Ridge
Forest Preserve

Kettle Grove
Forest Preserve

Singing Hills
Forest Preserve

Marl Flat
Forest Preserve Belvidere

Gilmer

IL Route 120

Fairfield

Nippersink

Chardon

Wilson

Townline

Rollins

Fi
sh

 L
ak

e

Hart

Erhart

Main

Su
ns

et

IL Route 60

Ba
co

n

Ca
lla

ha
n

Fox

IL Route 134

Amaria
s

Ja
de

Long Lake

Forest

Ce
da

r 
La

ke

Arden

Big Hollow

Prairie

Washington

Molidor

Li
nd

en

Meadow

Caldwell

Oak

Avilon
Lily

Dalton

Cu
rr

an

Park

Litchfield

Norwell

Hamlin

Prairieview Tyler

Kristina

Brooks Farm

Newbridge

Map
leAlp

ine

Bl
ue

st
em

Spruce

Birch

Long Beach

Sweet Clover

Providence
Cambria

M
ag

na

Highplains

Va
lle

y 
Vi

ew

M
acgillis

Va
le

nt
in

Mark

Abington

Ov
er

lo
ok

Meadowview

Bernice

Pa
rk

si
de

Rosehall

Levi Waite

Prairie Walk

Aldridge

D
aw

n 
M

ar
ie

Jo
na

th
an

Ea
st

Old Farm

Rosedale

H
ig

h 
Po

in
t

Denise

Nasa

Fr
em

on
t

H
ol

m
an

Fa
llb

ro
ok

Be
ac

on

Hampton

Laurel

Catalina

Canopy

Im
pe

ria
l

Hayw
ood

Bentley

M
an

or
 H

ill

Robert

Holly

Essington

Pa
rk

Blackhaw
k

LEGEND
 General Commercial  SF Residential  Institutional  Vacant/Transportation/Construction
 Downtown Commercial  MF Residential  Open Space  Proposed IL 53/120 Extension
 Business Park   Townhomes  Forest Preserve  Development Node
      

N



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

42

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

43

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015
CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

1 | Land Use and Development 

2 | Transportation 

3 | Downtown

4 | Economic Development

5 | Community Character

6 | Housing

7 | Community Buildings, Places, and Infrastructure

Plan Elements

Chapter 4
  44

  49

  56

  63

 67

  72

 76



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

44

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

1. Land Use and Development

The strategy of the Village is to promote an active mix of land uses that advance a range of 

living options, retail, entertainment, office, government/institutional, and recreational related 

development.  Providing Round Lake residents with a mix of uses fosters greater vitality in the 

Village and improves the overall quality of life.  Residents have the option to live, work, and 

play in close proximity, while positively contributing to the local economy.

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

GOAL 1A

A development pattern 
that provides a range 
of options for housing, 
businesses, jobs, and 
community activities 
throughout the Village.

1.1     Secure commercial development in appropriate areas of 
the Village to meet the needs of residents, attract visitors, 
and minimize adverse impacts (such as traffic) on the 
community.

1.2       Preserve and support the primarily family oriented
             development character of the Village.

1.3      Create a land use pattern in and around the downtown that 
reflects its current Transit Oriented Development pattern; 
emphasizing walkability, connectivity between activity 
centers, and access to public transportation, which all work 
to produce an enjoyable area for residents and visitors and 
a successful business environment. 

1.4     Incorporate open spaces (such as the forest preserve) in 
and around the Village into overall planning to enhance 
attractiveness of the Village and as a recreational amenity 
for residents. 

1.5   Consider connectivity in future development to ensure 
convenient pedestrian, bicycle, and vehicle access 
throughout the Village. 

OBJECTIVES



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

45

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015
CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

GOAL 1B

A land use pattern 
that incorporates 
the Village into the 
regional development 
system but maintains 
its character as a 
community for families 
and others to enjoy a 
strong quality of life.

2.1   Consider potential benefits and impacts from future 
alignment of the Route 53 / Route 120 corridor on the 
Village and seek to attract revenue generating land uses 
where appropriate and minimize adverse impacts from 
the road on adjacent land uses.  

2.2       Identify, plan for, and market optimal locations in the Village
            for new commercial and industrial development. 

2.3    Facilitate new development that respects and preserves 
community assets and surrounding public open spaces, 
yet creates a thriving downtown and other activity centers 
in the Village. 

Apply sustainability* practices to all building and landscape 
developments. 

Promote higher-density residential and mixed-use 
development near the Metra station to create a vibrant mix of 
uses that improves the connections between development 
and transit, and adds vitality to the downtown area.

Implement techniques like clustering development and 
conservation design, promoting open space conservation, 
and achieving proper integration of natural elements into site 
design, particularly for residential and business park settings.

Promote Round Lake as a ‘green’ community to foster a 
healthy lifestyle due to the presence and ease of access to 
regional trails and extensive open spaces.

Plan for commercial growth along major corridors and future 
growth expansions (Cedar Lake Road realignment and IL 
53/120).

O

O

O

O

Planning Strategies

*Sustainable development is 

development that meets the needs of 

the present without compromising the 

ability of future generations to meet 

their own needs.

O

DEFINITION

OBJECTIVES



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

46

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Update the municipal zoning code to reflect appropriate 
housing and commercial design and density according to the 
future land use plan.

Pursue annexation of properties to provide larger 
redevelopment sites for larger scale development.

Ensure future developments incorporate open space 
elements that respect wetlands, forest preserves, parks, and 
trails into their designs.

O

O

O

Planning Strategies

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

Planning for a Transit Oriented Development (TOD) creates better access to jobs, housing, and entertainment venues for residents 

and visitors alike.  Benefits of a TOD include reduced commutes to work (resulting in lowered air pollution, greenhouse gas emission, 

and congestion), walkable communities (which encourage more healthy and active lifestyles), improved access to jobs (for people of 

all income ranges), and expanded mobility choices (that reduce the dependence on automobiles).  By creating an environment that 

enhances businesses and transportation and promotes an enjoyable area for residents, the downtown will flourish with opportunity.  

The Village’s zoning code should reflect TOD elements necessary to create this pedestrian-friendly environment in the downtown.

TRANSIT ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT (TOD)



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

47

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

MARKETING AND PROMOTION

Attract retailers by marketing residents’ disposable income, the Village’s potential for new stores, and 
traffic count numbers*.  The Village should create attractive promotional materials to pique the interest of 
and encourage new commercial development in Round Lake.  Promotional materials such as marketing 
brochures and site specific handouts, could be shared and advertised through Village Hall, at regional and 
state-wide conferences and events, local newspapers, and through the Village’s website and other social 
media sites.  Brochures can showcase local amenities, a location map, daily traffic counts on major roads, 
proximity of major highways, public transportation, home ownership, resident tenure, retail demand/
gap, annual spending power, finance tools, current developments, and a map of development sites to 
inform developers of the opportunities in the Village.  Site specific handouts might just include a map of 
development sites and specific sites with their zoning class and price.
*Daily Traffic Count on major roads includes: Belvidere Road (15,600-17,500 near Cedar Lake Road), Cedar Lake 
Road (16,800-18,300 between Main and Washington), and Fairfield Road (11,100-12,900).

LAND USE & DEVELOPMENT RECOMMENDATIONS

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

NEW DEVELOPMENTS AND ZONING

Ensure the zoning code is applied to all new developments so as to create a walkable environment 
promoting pedestrian-friendly and transit-oriented developments.  The Village of Round Lake’s zoning 
code contains language supporting environmental and pedestrian activity within the Village and 
subdivisions.  Ensuring that these specific elements are followed appropriately with new developments 
(specifically those of a transit-oriented development nature) may be monitored more efficiently with the 
creation of a set of design guidelines.  Design guidelines include criteria regarding site design, landscape 
standards, materials, signage, and open space.  This can be used as a tool to provide developers with the 
Village’s goals for design elements, while maintaining specific physical community characteristics that 
respect’s Round Lake’s future vision for itself.

Photo Source: The SafeWise Report



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

48

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

SANITARY SEWER AGREEMENT

The Village of Round Lake secures sanitary sewer services through Lake County, as outlined by a 2012 
Sanitary Sewer Agreement. That agreement places limits on the density and number of dwelling units that 
can be served in areas annexed into the Village, but which currently are unincorporated; the agreement 
does not impact areas currently incorporated into the Village. The long range and uncertain nature of 
comprehensive planning makes it unproductive to determine how the agreement will correspond with 
overall community growth or any specific property. In some cases, the densities and number of units 
designated under the current sewer service agreement will correspond to fewer dwellings than indicated 
in the land use plan or that may be proposed for any specific development to be annexed to the Village. 

The residential land use pattern designated in this comprehensive plan is intended to facilitate housing 
forms (Single-Family, townhomes, and multifamily) that meet a variety market segments and provide 
options to current and future residents of the Village.  In this way Round Lake can continue to support 
a range of household types that create a strong and diverse community. The relatively low residential 
densities designated in the current sewer service agreement do not correspond to that objective. Therefore, 
in implementing this plan, the Village should continue to work with Lake County and other relevant local 
governments to consider how the land uses directed in this comprehensive plan can be achieved in light 
of the sewer service agreement. Such a compromise likely will require amending the current agreement 
through consultation with Lake County and other jurisdictions. In any event, discussions on this matter 
with parties to the agreement is an important implementation step for this plan.  

LAND USE & DEVELOPMENT RECOMMENDATIONS

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

Photo Source: Nippersink Forest Preserve



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

49

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

2. Transportation

Round Lake is located on the west side of Lake County and is bounded by municipalities to the 

north (Round Lake Beach), to the east (Round Lake Park), and unincorporated land to the west 

and south.  Village residents have access to a collection of major roads (IL Route 120, Route 

IL 60, and Route 134), highways, and a rail line (Metra MD-N Line).  With different modes of 

transportation traversing through the Village, residents have access to regional destinations 

such as its surrounding suburbs, the City of Chicago, College of Lake County, and O’Hare 

International Airport.  Roads in Round Lake should provide residents with quick, safe, and 

efficient access in the Village and around the region.  Future plans to realign Cedar Lake Road 

and expand Route 53/120 will play an important role in Round Lake by offering residents 

and visitors more efficient options for getting around, preserving open space, and attracting 

economic development. 

GOAL 2A

A transportation 
system that 
strengthens the 
Village’s connection 
to the region and 
supports local 
economic development. 

1.1   Work with State, Regional, County, and local units of 
government regarding planning for the Route 53 / Route 
120 corridor in order to: provide quality access between 
Round Lake and the region, facilitate access that maximizes 
economic development opportunities, and minimizes 
adverse impacts of the road passing through the Village.

1.2       Encourage connectivity between existing and development 
subdivisions and other developments to support ease of 
access for residents by walking, biking, and driving. 

1.3  Coordinate with Lake County on Cedar Lake Road 
enhancements to facilitate improved auto, bicycle, and 
pedestrian travel through the Village, and to support future 
downtown and community-wide land use objectives.

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

OBJECTIVES



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

50

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

GOAL 2B

A transportation 
system that helps 
residents enjoy the 
family oriented 
aspects of the Village, 
provides easy access 
to activity centers and 
recreational amenities 
in the area. 

2.1    Support bicycle users and pedestrians by incorporating 
sidewalks and trails throughout the Village, especially 
connecting to downtown, activity centers, and regional 
trails. 

2.2       Build on the locational advantages to the Village of Metra 
and Pace service by seeking opportunities to combine 
trips with other forms of travel such as walking or biking. 

2.3       Maintain good and active working relationships with local 
and regional transit providers and transportation agencies 
in order to support Village transportation and land use 
objectives. 

Include design elements that better connect residential 
subdivisions to other developments such as sidewalks and 
high visibility crosswalks in all future developments and identify 
opportunities to include them in existing areas. 

Continue to collaborate with local, regional, and transportation 

entities such as Metra, CMAP, Lake County, Pace, IDOT, and 

surrounding municipalities regarding future transportation 

objectives.

Ensure every housing subdivision has local streets connecting 

to collector roads or minor arterials to ensure quicker and 

more efficient access to developments outside of residents’ 

subdivisions.  An example includes connecting Wilson Road to 

Townline Road for quicker access to Fairfield Road.

O

O

O

Planning Strategies

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

OBJECTIVES



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

51

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Use distinct pavement markings, colors, materials to clearly 
designate crosswalks, bike paths, and bus lanes.

Utilize corner curb extensions and other street design 
elements to create safe crossing conditions for pedestrians 
and bicyclists, particularly at major community institutions, 
schools, and places of worship.

Ensure that all bus stops and the Metra station are provided 
with safe and sufficient pedestrian and bicycle access.

O

O

O

Planning Strategies

Proper road classifications ensure safe and efficient movement of vehicles to accommodate current traffic 
volumes and anticipate future increase as Round Lake continues to experience growth and development. It also 
aids in capital improvements programming and in the designation of specialized traffic routes, including the 
designation of specific roads for truck traffic.

•   Principal Arterial – Serves major centers of activity with the highest traffic volumes and longest trips. 

    Round Lake examples: Belvidere Road/Route 120, Route 134, Route 60, Wilson Road, Fairfield Road, Cedar Lake
    Road (between Hart Road and Rollins Road), and Gilmer Road.

•   Minor Arterial – Trips of moderate length. May carry local bus routes and provide intra-community continuity 
    but does not go into residential subdivisions or neighborhoods. 

    Round Lake examples: Cedar Lake Road (between Belvidere Road and Hart Road), Washington Street, Main Street.

•   Collector – Provides traffic circulation by collecting and distributing traffic between neighborhoods or 
    residential subdivisions and the arterial streets. 

    Round Lake examples: Nippersink Road, Curran Road, Long Lake Drive, and Townline Road. 

•   Local – Small streets within residential subdivisions and neighborhoods. Through traffic is usually 
    discouraged. 

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

ROADWAY CLASSIFICATION SYSTEM



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

52

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

HOA-LED TRANSPORTATION ASSESSMENTS

Work in collaboration with the HOA’s to assess access from subdivisions to other developments and 
develop plans for improvement if current conditions are not conducive to walking, biking, and driving. 
The Village of Round Lake holds Homeowners Association (HOA) summits biannually where updates are 
provided for Village residents regarding public works, transportation, safety and general administration.   
These summits can also be used as a place where HOA leaders communicate vehicular transportation 
and pedestrian mobility concerns within their neighborhoods.  If leadership is provided with guidelines 
to assess transportation and infrastructure improvements on a regular basis, a more efficient process 
and real-time notification for repairs may take place.  Village leaders should also create and share a 
timeline with infrastructure improvements that will be provided to the subdivisions.  Keeping the lines 
of communication open between the HOA’s and Village will strengthen relations and ensure residential 
quality of life remains a priority.  

TRANSPORTATION RECOMMENDATIONS

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

Photo Source: ValleyLakes.org



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

53

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

PROPOSED ILLINOIS ROUTE 53/120 EXTENSION

Continue collaborating with participating municipalities, Lake County, and the Chicago Metropolitan 
Agency for Planning (CMAP) to plan for the Illinois Route 53/120 extension to ensure that economic 
development, transportation, and open space characteristics reflect the desires of Round Lake 
residents and businesses.  The Illinois Route 53/120 project is a multi-jurisdictional effort to coordinate 
transportation, land use, economic development, and community character by extending Illinois Route 
53 north to Illinois Route 120.  With collaborating municipalities (Long Grove, Kildeer, Hawthorn Woods, 
Mundelein, Grayslake, Gurnee, Waukegan, Park City, Hainesville, Round Lake Park, and Round Lake), the 
project is being planned to preserve natural resources, increase connections by greenways, support 
business growth, improve travel times, and save on infrastructure costs.  The proposed Illinois Route 
53/120 extension plan project will benefit Round Lake by providing residents with efficient access to 
nearby regional destinations, enhance open space amenities that will encourage pedestrian activity along 
the road, and attract businesses seeking to locate along an enhanced corridor with more commuters.    
The Village should continue to attend meetings and work in coordination with surrounding municipalities 
participating in the project, Lake County, and CMAP to ensure Round Lake residents’ and businesses’ 
desires and concerns are brought to the table, and the final design benefits the Village.

TRANSPORTATION RECOMMENDATIONS

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

Photo Source: Interface Studio



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

54

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT FUNDING SOURCES

Investigate funding opportunities through Congestion, Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement 
(CMAQ), Surface Transportation Program, Illinois Pedestrian and Bicycle Safety Program, OSLAD, 
Active Transportation Alliance, Safe Routes to School, Community Development  Block Grant, 
Illinois Transportation Enhancement Program, and Illinois Bicycle Path Program grants to enhance 
pedestrian and vehicular mobility throughout the Village.  Resources are available at a local and regional 
level that could assist with transportation projects in Round Lake such as Village-wide trail enhancement 
and expansion (connecting existing trails to one another and to the Downtown and Metra station), 
pedestrian mobility (adding wayfinding signage to direct bicyclists to local and regional destinations, 
improving sidewalks and crosswalks), road and infrastructure improvement and enhancement, and Metra 
station improvements.  

•  The Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Program is available via the Federal Highway 
Administration (FHA) and IDOT. This program is intended to reduce traffic congestion, improve air 
quality, improve intersections, and increase and enhance multiple travel options, such as biking and 
walking. These funds are available locally through the Chicago Metropolitan Agency for Planning 
(CMAP).  
Website: www.cmap.illinois.gov/mobility/strategic-investment/cmaq

•  The Surface Transportation Program provides flexible funding that is used by states and localities 
on any Federal-aid highway, bridge projects on any public road, transit capital projects, and bus 
terminals and facilities. All selected projects must be submitted to CMAP for inclusion in the region’s 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP).  
Website: www.cmap.illinois.gov/council-of-mayors

•  The Illinois Pedestrian and Bicycle Safety Program is designed to aid public agencies in funding 
cost effective projects that will improve pedestrian and bicycle safety through education and 
enforcement. Applicants for this grant can apply for one or more of 3 grant categories: (1) enforcement 
efforts; (2) educational efforts, which can include pedestrian and bicycle master plans, distribution of 
education materials, walk and bike promotional programs, and distribution of protective equipment; 
and (3) research and training.  
Website: www.trafficsafetygrantsillinois.org

•  Active Transportation Alliance provides support services for local governments on bicycle and 
pedestrian programs and issues.  
Website: www.activetrans.org

•  The Open Space Lands Acquisition and Development Program (OSLAD) assists local government 
agencies in the acquisition and development of land for public parks and open space. This program has 
been used to fund bicycle/multi-use trail development.  
Website:  http://dnr.state.il.us/ocd/newoslad1.htm 

TRANSPORTATION RECOMMENDATIONS

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

55

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

•  Safe Routes to School (SRTS) is administered by the IDOT. SRTS uses a multidisciplinary approach to 
improve conditions for students who walk or bike to school. The purposes of the program and funding 
are: 
   1. To enable and encourage children, including those with disabilities, to walk and bicycle to 
       school;
   2. To make bicycling and walking to school a safer and more appealing transportation alternative, 
       thereby encouraging a healthy and active lifestyle from an early age; and
   3. To facilitate the planning, development, and implementation of projects and activities that will 
        improve safety and reduce traffic, fuel consumption, air pollution in the vicinity of schools.
Website: saferoutespartnership.org/state/srts-in-your-state/illinois

•  Illinois Transportation Enhancement Program (ITEP) is designed to promote alternative 
transportation options, including bike and pedestrian travel, along with streetscape beautification. The 
federal funds are awarded competitively, and any local or state government is eligible to apply. Local 
matching funds are required, and work must begin on the projects within three years.
Website: http://idot.illinois.gov/transportation-system/local-transportationpartners/county-engineers-
and-local-public-agencies/fundingopportunities/ITEP

•  Illinois Bicycle Path Program helps with the acquisition, construction and rehabilitation of public, 
non-motorized bicycle paths and directly related support facilities. Applications must be received by 
IDNR by March 1 of each calendar year. Applications are evaluated on a competitive basis according to 
criteria set by the Department. Grant awards are generally announced within six months following the 
application deadline date. Eligible project costs include:
   -  Linear corridor land acquisition costs, including associated appraisal fees; and
   -  Bicycle path development or renovation including site clearing and grading, drainage, surfacing, 
      bridging, fencing, signage, and directly related support facilities such as potable water and 
      restroom facilities.
Website: dnr.state.il.us/ocd/newbike2.htm

TRANSPORTATION RECOMMENDATIONS

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

56

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

3. Downtown

An enhanced Downtown can serve as Round Lake’s central gathering location while boasting 

some of its most desirable retail and dining establishments, and services.  It has the opportunity 

to serve as the Village’s anchor by providing an accessible and attractive location for many of 

the community’s annual celebrations and events.  With a Metra station and direct access to 

major routes, Round Lake’s downtown is a unique opportunity to become a thriving, event-

filled location that attracts regional visitors and tourists, local employees, and all of its residents.  

Enhancing the area with improved landscape elements, efficient road networks, pedestrian 

accessibility, and improved building facades can contribute to a thriving and unifying central 

business district. 

GOAL 3A

A central business 
district that provides 
for the shopping, 
dining, entertainment, 
and living needs for 
Round Lake residents. 

1.1        Seek to expand the downtown area and make it an activity 
center (with commercial, residential, and community 
uses) that everyone in the Village, and those from the 
surrounding area, want to visit. 

1.2        Develop and implement tools to support downtown 
development and aesthetic enhancements.  

1.3      Maintain the transit oriented development form that exists in 
downtown and supports multiple forms of transportation 
including walking and bicycling. 

1.4       Ensure that Village zoning requirement reflect and support 
desired development form in the downtown. 

1.5      Install wayfinding signage to direct commuters to downtown 
businesses and activity centers.

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

OBJECTIVES



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

57

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Planning Strategies
GOAL 3B

A strong working 
relationship between 
the Village, downtown 
business / property 
owners, and others 
to supports a vibrant 
central district. 

2.1   Work with Lake County to secure a Cedar Lake Road 
realignment that maximizes potential for a strong 
downtown area. 

2.2        Preserve and enhance the existing downtown business 
district along Cedar Lake Road. 

2.3       Work with property and business owners to ensure adequate 
parking in the downtown for customers and employees.  

2.4        Identify ways to attract Metra users to patronize businesses 
in and around downtown.

2.5    Support small businesses through actions such as ongoing 
communications, assistance through permitting processes, 
and grant/loan programs to facilitate building renovation. 

Re-brand the Downtown as an area for all residents in Round 
Lake with a variety of activities, restaurants, retail, and services.

Consider providing financial incentives to address development 
financing gaps and/or building renovation assistance through 
funding tools such as tax increment financing, business district 
taxes, and revenue sharing agreements.

Transform the Downtown into an attractive, lively, pedestrian-
oriented, culturally diverse, area for all the users it serves.

Attract uses to the Downtown that will serve as recreational/
entertainment opportunities for residents and attract visitors.

Improve recognition of and access to the Downtown through 

promotion and enhancement of routes the traverse the area, 

creation of wayfinding program, and marketing efforts.

O

O

O

Planning Strategies

O

O

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

Photo Source: Round Lake 
Public Library

OBJECTIVES



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

58

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Make all streets that pass through the Downtown “Complete 
Streets” that create pleasing environments for pedestrians as 
well as provide access to businesses.

Study the need for more or improved parking in the 
Downtown.

Assist existing businesses with increased marketing to the 
larger Round Lake community, with business education 
and support (ie. customer training, bookkeeping), and by 
improving storefront facades (ie. window signs, planters).

O

O

O

Planning Strategies

Complete Streets are for everyone, no 

matter how they travel.  They include 

the consideration of more than just 

cars, and  are safe, comfortable and 

convenient.

DEFINITION

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

59

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

URBAN DESIGN & SIGNAGE

Strategically market and develop a coordinated design theme to strengthen the identity of the 
Downtown. Round Lake’s downtown is centrally located off of Cedar Lake Road and Nippersink Road and 
in close proximity to Village Hall, Round Lake High School and other elementary schools, the Round Lake 
Metra station, local churches, and a cluster of local businesses.  Enhancing the Downtown to reach its full 
potential and become a vibrant and heavily visited area requires an investment in strategic infrastructure 
improvements (such as the Cedar Lake Road realignment), improved building facades, increased 
marketing for businesses, flexible public gathering spaces, and unique and identifiable signage (including 
community directional signs throughout the Village, and distinguishable gateways in the Downtown area 
and at the Metra Station).  The listed improvements will encourage visitors (specifically those traveling by 
Metra) and residents to see the area in anew light, and as a place to visit, shop, and dine in the Downtown, 
while creating an active space for community interaction.

DOWNTOWN RECOMMENDATIONS

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

Photo Source: Google



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

60

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

DOWNTOWN SUBAREA

The Round Lake Downtown Subarea Plan focuses on the opportunity to expand the downtown into a 
vibrant community center that advances goals for community and economic development. The Village 
is well situated with the components of a successful downtown, giving it much to build on. While small, 
the current business area on Cedar Lake Road includes active businesses with established merchants. The 
district serves the entire Village and many of the businesses have a focus on the Latino community. The 
Village’s Metra station provides residents with access to the City of Chicago and other parts of the region. 
Cedar Lake Road and Route 134 provide easy access by car. Lastly, two large tracts of land in the subarea 
are owned by the Village, which helps to facilitate logical and unified development.

Cedar Lake Road

A major component of the downtown subarea plan is the realignment of Cedar Lake Road. Lake County, 
which controls the roadway, is expanding the road’s capacity through the County. The road’s current 
zig-zag jog through the downtown connects its north and south legs via Nippersink Road and is not 
an effective way to move traffic. A more continuous route through the area is required and has been 
considered for many years. The realignment anticipated in this plan runs northeast from the intersection 
of Cedar Lake and Nippersink Roads and meets up with Routh 134 at approximately Goodnow Boulevard. 
It crosses the Metra tracks at grade and continues on to connect with the existing Cedar Lake alignment 
near the Village Hall. This alignment has been determined to be the most appropriate given thoughtful 
discussions with Lake County related to the project’s benefits for and impacts on the Village, aesthetic 
factors, and cost. 

This Cedar Lake Road realignment is projected to be constructed as a three lane road, with the potential 
to be expanded to five lanes; it will include a bike lane. The project is not yet in the formal Lake County 
road plan, making it likely that the improvement is at least seven to ten years out. However, the County 
is working to define the final path of the road and map out a right of way. These steps will allow the 
Village to proceed with planning and development in advance of the road being constructed. The bottom 
line is that whatever the precise future alignment of the roadway, the goals and benefits available to 
downtown Round Lake identified in this plan should continue to be pursued. Once that alignment is 
determined, a number of alternatives to the subarea plan (shown on page 62) can also be considered. 
These considerations are described on the following pages. 

DOWNTOWN RECOMMENDATIONS

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

61

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

1.  Round Lake Area Library
A new library building in the downtown would be desirable in attracting residents and visitors to the 
commercial core, creating opportunities for shared visits to existing and new businesses in the area. 
Discussions with the Library District to create such an opportunity are a recommended implementation 
step of this plan. As shown in the subarea plan, a library site is noted along Hart Road near Cedar Lake 
Road. This location presents an opportunity to create a community campus area with the adjacent school 
and a civic green for community events. However, should the final Cedar Lake Road alignment facilitate 
the idea, very strong consideration should be given to locating the Library and village green at the corner 
of Nippersink and Goodnow, south of the realigned road. This will bring the visitor and activity generating 
aspects of a new library and community gathering space close to the existing business district. 

2.  Village Green
A central place for local events and informal gathering help to create a sense of place and a “heart of 
the community” for Round Lake. A village green in the downtown would greatly advance this concept 
and is considered an essential aspect of the downtown plan. As noted above, while the village green is 
shown north of Route 134, locating this gathering space between the realigned Cedar Lake Road and 
Nippersink/Goodnow is highly desired.  

3.  New Neighbors 
A residential element of the downtown will help to establish a vibrancy to the area, especially people 
visiting existing businesses in the area. As shown in the plan, new residential uses are townhomes or 
multiple family dwellings that are appropriate for a downtown with a Metra Station. In addition, this will 
expand the variety of housing types in the Village.

Multiple family dwellings are shown both north and south of Nippersink Road to encourage higher 
numbers of residents near local businesses and the new road. Townhome dwellings are located north of 
the railroad tracks and west of the current Village Hall property to create a small residential enclave.

The area benefits from close proximity to the downtown and includes housing formats more suited to 
young families are those looking to downsize. The plan can accommodate flexibility between the types of 
housing (for example, townhomes developed in the area south of Nippersink Road would also accomplish 
the desired objectives).

4.  Connectivity 
The road, pedestrian, and bicycle paths indicated in the study area reflect the importance of clear and 
easy connectivity. Existing businesses should be easily accessible from new development - particularly the 
library and residences. Likewise, existing residential uses around the downtown should be connected to 
new development. Part of this connectivity includes maintaining the current Cedar Lake Road (perhaps as 
“Old Cedar Lake Road”) to support access to existing businesses and options for traversing the downtown.

DOWNTOWN RECOMMENDATIONS

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

62

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

DOWNTOWN RECOMMENDATIONS

5.  Commercial Development 
Route 134 is a natural part of the subarea to include new commercial uses, which are generally attracted 
to and appropriate near roads carrying the most traffic. 

6.  Redevelopment 
Renovation or redevelopment of existing commercial buildings and businesses on the existing Cedar Lake 
Road and Route 134 are consistent with this plan and encourage to the extent they support the goals of 
this plan.

7.  Metra Station Relocation 
The Metra station is shown as being relocated further east in order to keep stop trains from blocking the 
road crossing and to bring it closer to available commuter parking.

8.  Gateways 
Key entryways and focal points of the larger downtown area should be highlighted with urban design 
elements that announce and celebrate the district.



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

63

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Downtown Study Area

DOWNTOWN SUBAREA STUDY
MAP PREPARED BY: TESKA ASSOCIATES, INC.

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

64

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

4. Economic Development

Round Lake will strive to take advantage of opportunities that can enhance economic 

development, such as supporting the IL 53/120 and marketing to potential businesses the 

called residential demand for new retail and their spending power/disposable income.  With 

opportunities to locate in a growing Downtown or enhanced corridor, incoming businesses 

will have the potential to flourish in Round Lake.  Major arterials, Route 134, Route 120, and 

the proposed IL Route 53/120 carry the highest volumes of traffic through the Village and 

present special opportunities for commercial development that benefit from access to them.  

Additionally, supporting existing businesses through the use of business education materials, 

marketing, and financing mechanisms will help them grow by reaching more residents and 

visitors.   

GOAL 4A

Advance and 
implement a supportive 
environment for 
business and 
development .

1.1         Support the current and future needs of existing community 
businesses through Village programs and policies, and 
open and regular communications (such as the Business 
Summits).   

1.2        Develop a marketing program for the Village that 
encourages commercial and industrial businesses to 
locate in Round Lake. 

1.3        Ensure sound and predictable development approval and 
building permit processes in the Village.

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

Photo Source: Google

OBJECTIVES



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

65

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Planning Strategies
GOAL 4B

A local economy that 
helps provide for 
peoples’ shopping and 
employment needs, 
and takes advantage 
of a strong tax base to 
generate revenue for 
resident services and 
amenities.

2.1       Attract and retain commercial development that serves 
the needs of residents and supports the Village’s tax base. 

2.2        Identify and pursue opportunities for major roadway 
projects (such as the Cedar Lake Road realignment 
and construction of Route 53/120) to support a new 
development and a strong tax base in the Village.

2.3        Work with property owners in the Round Lake industrial 
park, as well as current and potential companies, to 
increase the number of businesses located there. 

2.4        Make prudent use of Village owned properties to secure 
desirable development, support tax base growth, and 
encourage private development.  

Take advantage of local and regional transportation and 
development elements that can enhance economic 
development such as the proposed extension of  Route 53/120  
and the Cedar Lake Road realignment. 

Identify area partners to assist with helping businesses to expand 
and grow (Lake County Partners, Department of Commerce and 
Economic Opportunity).

Survey major employers and governmental districts to learn 
what commercial development is desired by employees in the 
area.

O

O

O

Planning Strategies

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

Photo Source: Round Lake 
Public Library

OBJECTIVES



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

66

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

BUSINESS SUMMITS

Continue to host business summits and discuss Village and regional plans that may affect local business 
owners. Round Lake’s biannual business summits offer crucial opportunities to communicate and share 
information with all businesses.  Summit leaders should also explore holding individual meetings with 
business owners to identify the most pressing needs for growing their business, and additionally identify 
programs or services that could address those needs.  After identifying individual needs, the Village 
could combine the data and better coordinate future group discussions at the summit, distribute needed 
materials and resources, and accurately strategize for improvements.
  

BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT FUNDING SOURCES

Investigate funding opportunities and share resources at the summit that could be used to improve 
commercial districts, individual storefronts, or to organize internal management.  Potential funding 
sources include Community Development Assistance Programs, Tax Increment Financing, Special Services 
Areas, and Business Districts.  

•  Community Development Assistance Programs provide affordable, low interest financing for public 
infrastructure improvements for economic development purposes. The mission of this program is to 
assist Illinois communities in meeting their greatest economic and community development needs, 
with an emphasis on helping communities with substantial low to moderate-income populations.
Website: www.illinois.gov/dceo/CommunityServices

•  Tax Increment Financing is a special area designated by the Village to make public improvements 
within the district that will help generate private-sector development. Taxes derived from increases in 
assessed property values (i.e. the tax increment) resulting from new development and infrastructure 
improvements would either go into a special fund created to retire bonds issued to originate the 
development or leverage future growth in the TIF district.

• Special Service Areas can be used for infrastructure, maintenance, or area management purposes 
in a geography defined by Round Lake. Such revenues can support bonding or generate a revenue 
stream for specific projects for the defined geography.

• Business Districts can generate additional sales tax revenue for certain purposes, similar to the eligible 
uses for TIF. This approach may be appropriate for commercial and mixed use areas that redevelop for 
retail uses.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT RECOMMENDATIONS

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

67

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

DEVELOPMENT APPROVAL AND BUILDING PERMIT PROCESS

Continue to improve the efficiency of the development approval and building permit process to expedite 
new businesses entering into the Village.  Providing prospective developers with an efficient and easy-
to-follow development approval/building permit process can help streamline the process and ensure 
everyone receives detailed and accurate information to move forward with business in the Village.  Posting 
clear steps on the Village’s website and/or creating a guide for distribution may attract developers to the 
Village’s organized and transparent process.  The approval process should clearly delineate all the steps 
entailed along with a range of time-frames and additional information for projects that are not approved 
at any particular stage.  

PROMOTE LOCAL BUSINESSES

Promote businesses through the Village website and other social media and news venues. Local 
businesses, specifically smaller family-owned ones, will benefit from the added publicity that will be 
offered through the Village’s website and hard copy materials.  The website could offer an interactive 
map with the location of businesses and a small description of their goods or services along with their 
phone number and website (if applicable).  The website could also be used to highlight individual stores, 
services, or restaurants each month with unique stories or special discounts to familiarize residents and 
visitors with the business and encourage them to visit it.  Additionally, developing a marketing brochure 
that highlights the location, consumer spending habits, retail gaps, and residential base of Round Lake can 
offer existing businesses another form of advertising while attracting new retail and dining opportunities 
(see Land Use and Development).

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT RECOMMENDATIONS

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

Photo Source: Round Lake Area Chamber of Commerce



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

68

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

5. Community Character

The Village of Round Lake is a family-focused community with multiple transportation 

options, a centrally located Downtown, and in close proximity to various regional amenities.   

Advancing the Village’s character through promotion of its history and traditions, cultural 

diversity, and opportunities for young families will help keep the Village attractive to new 

families and visitors.

GOAL 5A

A family-oriented 
community whose 
residents benefit 
from readily available 
community centers (like 
the library and schools), 
recreation areas, local 
shopping centers, and 
regional access. 

1.1      Support new development that creates dining, shopping 
and other activity opportunities for both residents and 
visitors to enjoy. 

1.2        Preserve the existing feeling of safety and security in the 
Village. 

1.3       Celebrate the diversity of cultures in the community. 

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

Photo Source: Round Lake Park District

OBJECTIVES



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

69

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

GOAL 5B

A sense of place that 
extends to all residents 
and encourages them 
to take pride in their 
community. 

2.1       Cultivate a strong and unique identify for Round Lake that 
highlights its history, family oriented character, diverse 
population, transit oriented downtown, easy access to the 
Chicago region, and location in an area with attractive and 
usable open spaces. 

2.2       Continue to plan and implement community events that 
encourage residents to meet and visit with their neighbors. 

2.3    Work with local homeowners associations to include 
them and their residents in community-wide events and 
programs. 

2.4       Develop urban design and landscape standards for future 
public and private developments that reflect the character 
envisioned for the community. 

Incorporate events or elements of different cultures to traditional 
Village events such as Latino Heritage Month and Asian Heritage 
celebrations to celebrate with and inform community residents.

Market Round Lake as “More Than a Bedroom Community”, 
with strong employers, extensive open space, recreational 
opportunities, and attractive local businesses.

Develop marketing materials promoting family-oriented living 
and activities in Round Lake such as the Village-wide and 
public library events (Arbor Day, Home Town Festival, National 
Night Out, Hispanic Heritage Month), park district/forest 
preserve amenities (trails, Nature Museum), quality schools, safe 
communities, and affordable housing.

Design gathering spaces (public plazas, outdoor dining) in close 

proximity to activity centers (Downtown, Round Lake Senior 

High School, Village Hall) that will create opportunities for social 

gatherings and Village-wide events.

O

O

O

O

Planning Strategies

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

OBJECTIVES



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

70

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Partner with local institutions (schools, churches, and Round 
Lake Public Library) to ensure appropriate services are being 
offered to support all members of the community.

Design wayfinding and signage that reflects the Village’s 
unique identity and guides visitors to Village activity centers.

Encourage participation from local school students and 
residents to volunteer, showcase talent, or market at events.

O

O

O

Planning Strategies

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

Photo Source: Round Lake Public Library



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

71

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

PROMOTIONAL MATERIALS AND SOCIAL MEDIA

Create marketing/promotional materials highlighting Round Lake’s most prominent assets through the 
Village’s website, social media pages, and brochures.  The Village should create promotional materials 
that highlight Round Lake’s assets through dynamic tag lines, modern graphics, and bold colors.  Creating 
visually appealing and easy-to-read marketing materials could assist in the attraction of new families, 
development, and visitors.  While marketing materials should be accessible online and in hard copy 
form, a strong internet presence will ultimately help disseminate the information to a larger audience.  A 
website can list local attractions, annual events, shopping, dining, and visitor accommodations.  Linking 
the website to social media pages such as Facebook and Twitter will increase views and allow residents 
and businesses to share with their broader networks.  The Village should survey residents and business 
owners for community identity suggestions, which could include the vast open spaces, outstanding 
public institutions, quality homes, diversity, and vibrant community events.

COMMUNITY CHARACTER RECOMMENDATIONS

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

HOA SUMMITS

Continue to host biannual HOA summits to enhance the lines of communication with all residential 
entities.  HOA summits offer a plethora of advantages to both the Village and neighborhoods, including 
providing information on public works, transportation, safety and general administration.  Possibilities 
to expand a traditional summit set-up includes offering educational sessions and community building/
social gathering opportunities.  Summits could be comprised of workshops that cover topics related to 
management, operations, best business practices, and services, while offering networking and community 
building opportunities (especially for residents of different subdivisions).  HOA Summits could be used to 
enhance knowledge on running successful HOA’s, while being used as a platform for creating community 
and strengthening the close-knit/familial identity.

Photo Source: Round Lake Events



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

72

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

COMMUNITY EVENTS AND CELEBRATIONS

Continue to host community events that celebrate history, tradition, and diverse cultures of Round 
Lake in common and visible public settings such as Round Lake Senior High School and the downtown. 
Explore unique attractions that can be included at village-wide events to attract region-wide visitors (i.e. 
car show, fall festival, folkloric music/dances). Partner with HOA leadership to plan, host, and promote 
village-wide events and celebrations.  Round Lake is filled with a growingly diverse population with 
unique traditions and histories.  Creating public celebrations of the racial and cultural diversity in the 
Village will contribute to a sense of community amongst residents through educational initiatives and 
mutual residential support.  These events will also attract visitors from throughout the region, creating 
opportunities for local businesses to promote their goods and services.  The Village may partner with the 
Round Lake Public Library and others to host many of these events as they are already holding similar 
events.  Working with the HOA’s to organize and coordinate the events could help create stronger bonds 
and give a sense of ownership over their community.  Representatives of different HOA’s could contribute 
to brainstorming ideas, finding creative ways to raise funds, developing work plans, and marketing the 
event to their respective subdivisions and around town.   

COMMUNITY CHARACTER RECOMMENDATIONS

Between 2000 and 2010, Round Lake’s  Hispanic/Latino and Asian populations have grown by 3% and 11% respectively.  The 

Round Lake Public Library offers ESL and literacy classes at no cost for parents and children (ages 0-6).  The library has also 

partnered with Mano a Mano Family Resources Center to offer the New American Initiative Program.

GROWING RACIAL DIVERSITY

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

Photo Source: Round Lake Public Library



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

73

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

6. Housing

The Village of Round Lake offers families a variety of quality home types with access to 

open space and community amenities.  All residential developments could maintain their 

high standards through the use of educational materials (owner and renters rights), Village 

summits, and financial assistance (or internal and external improvements) where applicable.   

Round Lake should ensure that all future developments continue to provide residents with 

the quality housing that the Village is known for, while also offering a range of housing types 

to attract new households.  While the future land use map identifies residential locations in 

Round Lake, the map does not specifically identify the exact housing types.  In some cases 

the housing market and development trends will dictate the location and amount of housing 

types, in other cases, a particular development proposal may include a mix of housing types, 

not all of one certain type.  

GOAL 6A

Diverse range of 
housing in size, type, 
and architectural 
design.

1.1        Maintain the quality of existing housing stock to preserve a 
variety of residential neighborhoods in the Village.  

1.2        Encourage new residential developments that include a 
range of housing types (single family on varying lots sizes, 
townhomes, etc.).

1.3   Consider higher density housing such as townhomes 
and multiple-family dwellings where supported by 
transportation and community activity centers – such as 
in and around the downtown.

1.4        New residential development should be accessible to 
community activity centers and commercial resources. 

1.5        Use Village Zoning and Subdivision Codes to ensure 
elements of desirable living are part of new residential 
developments (sidewalks, street trees, etc). 

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

OBJECTIVES



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

74

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Apply land use plans that preserve all existing housing types in 
various locations throughout the Village to ensure all residents 
have access to a diverse and quality housing stock.

Offer a diverse housing stock to meet different housing needs 
and foster a community of long-term residents.

Encourage appropriate property maintenance, specifically for 
aging structures, to maintain the quality housing character of 
the community.

Promote high quality housing development through the use 

of sustainable building materials.

Plan for higher density residential developments in close 

proximity to activity and commercial centers, such as the 

Downtown, Metra Station, and major roads.

Implement recognition programs to homeowners that put 

forth the effort to keep well-maintained homes.

List all the HOA’s in Round Lake on the Village website to offer 

new residents a centralized location to view available homes 

and subdivision regulations.

Support quality residential building conditions through 

homeownership education opportunities (particularly with 

multifamily buildings). 

Consider implementing periodic neighborhood inspections 

as a proactive manner to determine violations of municipal 

property standards.

O

O

O

O

Planning Strategies

O

O

O

O

O

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

75

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

PROPERTY STANDARDS

Explore the creation of easy-to-follow public education pamphlets that inform residents of municipal 
property standards so they are aware of the Village’s regulations and the community’s expectations.  Round 
Lake’s housing stock is of varying ages and established standards or goals on proper maintenance will help 
guide individual property owners and subdivision leaders with instructional details for maintaining their 
buildings. Pamphlets could be made available via hard copy at subdivisions, local institutions (Village Hall, 
public works, Round Lake Public Library, police department), and online on the Village’s website and social 
media pages.  Informing residents on why its important to establish property maintenance standards 
should be explained in the introduction with an emphasis on how premises not in compliance negatively 
impact the aesthetic value of the community and lower property values.  Additionally contact information 
for all of the services should be included as reference.  Pamphlets may also include information regarding 
protecting homes from storm water damage, recycling, and other factors that may affect residential 
buildings in the Village.

DESIGN GUIDELINES

Encourage developers with new residential developments to apply high quality products to all housing 
types, including condominiums, townhouses, single family homes, senior living facilities, rental 
apartments, and duplexes.  All residential buildings should reflect the Village’s desire for an aesthetically 
pleasing community with high quality homes.  Creating a set of design guidelines would detail and 
provide examples of suggested building materials, building orientation, setbacks, pedestrian access, 
vehicular access, and parking designs.

HOUSING RECOMMENDATIONS

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

Photo Source: Zillow.com



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

76

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

HOUSING RECOMMENDATIONS

Homes for a Changing Region is a project of the Chicago Metropolitan Agency for Planning’s (CMAP), the Metropolitan 

Mayor’s Caucus, in partnership with and with support from the Metropolitan Planning Council. The project provides technical 

assistance to municipal leaders to address current housing issues and plan for future needs in their communities.   Homes for 

a Changing Region culminates with a subregional plan that recommends long-term housing policies to create a balanced 

mix of housing types, serve the needs of current and future residents and workers, and enhance livability. It also supports the 

goals of CMAP’s GO TO 2040 Plan, the regional comprehensive plan for the Chicago metropolitan area, by fostering livable 

communities with diverse housing options and encouraging efficient governance through inter-juris-dictional collaboration.

CMAP is working with the Lake County Community Foundation to provide a Homes plan for the  communities of Hainesville, 

Round Lake, Round Lake Park, Round Lake Beach, and Round Lake Heights.  Homes for a Changing Region will commonly 

supply each of these communities the following components:

• Analysis of each community’s existing housing supply that compares the type and price of housing stock to the age, 

income, and tenure (rental or owner-occupied) of the population.

• A subregional housing analysis that identifies opportunities and gaps in the housing profile and looks for opportunities 

for collaboration between neighboring communities.

• A workforce housing analysis that focuses on the match between the sub-region’s key employment sectors and the 

existing housing stock.

• A market segmentation analysis that uses industry standard data to separate each community’s housing markets into 

key household types. Our recommendations will focus on meeting the current and future needs of each segment, along with 

strategies for attracting targeted segments.

• Design, planning, and facilitation at a public workshop for each community and/or an interactive online survey. 

• A series of policy and strategic recommendations for creating a balanced, sustainable future housing supply, along 

with targeted goals that can be used to determine a community’s future progress in implementing the plan.

• Design visualizations for a focus area in each community.

HOMES FOR A CHANGING REGION

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

Source: Chicago Metropolitan Agency for Planning



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

77

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

7. Community Buildings, Places, and Infrastructure

Round Lake offers its residents a plethora of community amenities and infrastructure/

utilities to meet daily needs. Existing facilities and infrastructure adequately and efficiently 

reach all residents.  Existing amenities should be extended to connect to all future residential 

developments, while new community buildings (schools, library) should be explored to be 

placed in close proximity.

GOAL 7A

Community amenities 
and public buildings / 
places that support a 
good quality of life for 
all residents of Round 
Lake. 

1.1      Work with the Round Lake Area Public Library District to 
consider locating a new library building in downtown 
Round Lake. 

1.2       Ensure that open spaces and recreational areas continue to 
be easily accessible to residents.  

1.3    Identify opportunities to work with other taxing bodies 
to coordinate and share services and equipment in 
order to efficiently meet the needs of local residents and 
businesses. 

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

OBJECTIVES



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

78

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

Planning Strategies
GOAL 7B

A system of utilities 
and infrastructure 
that meet the needs of 
Round Lake residents 
and businesses. 

2.1     Phase growth and annexation to reflect existing and planned 
utility capacities. 

2.2        New development should meet needs for public utilities 
without creating a tax or service burden on existing 
residents and businesses. 

2.3    Continue coordination with public (CLCJAWA and Lake 
County) and private (Comcast, ComEd, etc.) utility providers 
to ensure quality service is available in the Village.  

Work with local utility and service providers to periodically 
monitor service capacities and adequacy of infrastructure to 
determine if updates/upgrades or repairs are needed, or will be 
needed to ensure services are able to meet the demands of a 
growing community. 

Explore pedestrian connections, such as green trails, connecting 
residents and visitors to the forest preserves and other parks via 
walking and biking.

O

O

Planning Strategies

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

OBJECTIVES



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

79

Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

ROUND LAKE PUBLIC LIBRARY

Explore development scenarios showing the Round Lake Public Library relocating to the Downtown area 
and design the relocation of the library to be easily accessible to local students and residents through 
different modes of travel.  Relocating the library to the Downtown will assist in revamping the Downtown’s 
image by having one of the strongest community institutions serve as its anchor.  The library regularly 
attracts residents and holds community-wide events which are in-line with the plan’s vision for Downtown 
Round Lake.  The relocation will also benefit students that assist the many schools in the area, and anyone 
commuting via Metra, therefore traveling to the library should be safe and accessible for all modes of 
transportation.  Suggested elements include narrower street crossings (with curb bump-outs) and count 
down signals at Nippersink Road and Cedar Lake Road, accessible sidewalks and ramps leading into the 
building, buffered parking lot, and pedestrian lighting on all sides of the building.     

COMMUNITY BUILDINGS, PLACES, AND INFRASTRUCTURE RECOMMENDATIONS

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

Photo Source: Round Lake Public Library



Village of Round Lake Comprehensive Plan

80

DRAFT |  NOVEMBER 04, 2015

INTERNET/BROADBAND CONNECTION

Work with the private sector internet providers to offer high quality internet/broadband technology to the 
Village.  Access to internet capabilities may attract new businesses who need the competitive advantage 
of this connectivity for its customers and suppliers.  Offering indoor and outdoor wireless Internet access 
to businesses may assist them with a crucial tool to organize, manage, market, and communicate any 
changes to their business.  Partnering with other local community institutions (ie. Round Lake Public 
Library, Round Lake High School) to extend this service to students, residents, and visitors/tourists will 
provide convenient access for all. 

COMMUNITY BUILDINGS, PLACES, AND INFRASTRUCTURE RECOMMENDATIONS

CHAPTER 4  |  Plan Elements

14

45
12

41

22

43

62 68

53

134

132

137

59

60

21

120

131

83

176

173

294

94

Antioch

Barrington

Cary

Deer Park Deerfield

Mettawa

Mundelein

Fox
Lake

Grayslake

Gurnee

Hainesville

Highwood

Johnsburg

Kildeer

Knollwood

Lake
Villa

Lake Zurich

Libertyville

Lincolnshire

Lindenhurst

Long
Grove

North Chicago

Oakwood
Hills

Round Lake

Spring
Grove

Trout Valley

Vernon
Hills

Volo

Wadsworth

Wauconda

Waukegan

Wheeling

Zion

Partnership for a Connected Illinois
November 04, 2014
 
  

0 3 6 Miles

DISCLAIMER: This map is meant to be used for preliminary review purposes only. The information depicted on this map
is based on a limited amount of available data, and thus there are inherent inaccuracies. As more complete data is 
collected, the map will be updated and will contain more accurate information. This map should not be used to make any
decisions regarding the served, underserved, and not served areas. The NTIA definition of Broadband is greater than or 
equal to 768kbps at this time. (c) 2012 The Partnership for a Connected Illinois and/or the State of Illinois

Lake County

Greater than or equal to 1 Gbps

Greater than or equal to 100 Mbps and less than 1 Gbps

Greater than or equal to 50 Mbps and less than 100 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 25 Mbps and less than 50 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 10 Mbps and less than 25 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 6 Mbps and less than 10 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 3 Mbps and less than 6 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 1.5 Mbps and less than 3 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 768 kbps and less than 1.5 Mbps

No Broadband Service

Round Ten – Data Current as of June 30, 2014
(excluding Satellite and Cellular Data)

ILLINOIS

14

45
12

41

22

43

62 68

53

134

132

137

59

60

21

120

131

83

176

173

294

94

Antioch

Barrington

Cary

Deer Park Deerfield

Mettawa

Mundelein

Fox
Lake

Grayslake

Gurnee

Hainesville

Highwood

Johnsburg

Kildeer

Knollwood

Lake
Villa

Lake Zurich

Libertyville

Lincolnshire

Lindenhurst

Long
Grove

North Chicago

Oakwood
Hills

Round Lake

Spring
Grove

Trout Valley

Vernon
Hills

Volo

Wadsworth

Wauconda

Waukegan

Wheeling

Zion

Partnership for a Connected Illinois
November 04, 2014
 
  

0 3 6 Miles

DISCLAIMER: This map is meant to be used for preliminary review purposes only. The information depicted on this map
is based on a limited amount of available data, and thus there are inherent inaccuracies. As more complete data is 
collected, the map will be updated and will contain more accurate information. This map should not be used to make any
decisions regarding the served, underserved, and not served areas. The NTIA definition of Broadband is greater than or 
equal to 768kbps at this time. (c) 2012 The Partnership for a Connected Illinois and/or the State of Illinois

Lake County

Greater than or equal to 1 Gbps

Greater than or equal to 100 Mbps and less than 1 Gbps

Greater than or equal to 50 Mbps and less than 100 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 25 Mbps and less than 50 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 10 Mbps and less than 25 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 6 Mbps and less than 10 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 3 Mbps and less than 6 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 1.5 Mbps and less than 3 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 768 kbps and less than 1.5 Mbps

No Broadband Service

Round Ten – Data Current as of June 30, 2014
(excluding Satellite and Cellular Data)

ILLINOIS

14

45
12

41

22

43

62 68

53

134

132

137

59

60

21

120

131

83

176

173

294

94

Antioch

Barrington

Cary

Deer Park Deerfield

Mettawa

Mundelein

Fox
Lake

Grayslake

Gurnee

Hainesville

Highwood

Johnsburg

Kildeer

Knollwood

Lake
Villa

Lake Zurich

Libertyville

Lincolnshire

Lindenhurst

Long
Grove

North Chicago

Oakwood
Hills

Round Lake

Spring
Grove

Trout Valley

Vernon
Hills

Volo

Wadsworth

Wauconda

Waukegan

Wheeling

Zion

Partnership for a Connected Illinois
November 04, 2014
 
  

0 3 6 Miles

DISCLAIMER: This map is meant to be used for preliminary review purposes only. The information depicted on this map
is based on a limited amount of available data, and thus there are inherent inaccuracies. As more complete data is 
collected, the map will be updated and will contain more accurate information. This map should not be used to make any
decisions regarding the served, underserved, and not served areas. The NTIA definition of Broadband is greater than or 
equal to 768kbps at this time. (c) 2012 The Partnership for a Connected Illinois and/or the State of Illinois

Lake County

Greater than or equal to 1 Gbps

Greater than or equal to 100 Mbps and less than 1 Gbps

Greater than or equal to 50 Mbps and less than 100 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 25 Mbps and less than 50 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 10 Mbps and less than 25 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 6 Mbps and less than 10 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 3 Mbps and less than 6 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 1.5 Mbps and less than 3 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 768 kbps and less than 1.5 Mbps

No Broadband Service

Round Ten – Data Current as of June 30, 2014
(excluding Satellite and Cellular Data)

ILLINOIS

14

45
12

41

22

43

62 68

53

134

132

137

59

60

21

120

131

83

176

173

294

94

Antioch

Barrington

Cary

Deer Park Deerfield

Mettawa

Mundelein

Fox
Lake

Grayslake

Gurnee

Hainesville

Highwood

Johnsburg

Kildeer

Knollwood

Lake
Villa

Lake Zurich

Libertyville

Lincolnshire

Lindenhurst

Long
Grove

North Chicago

Oakwood
Hills

Round Lake

Spring
Grove

Trout Valley

Vernon
Hills

Volo

Wadsworth

Wauconda

Waukegan

Wheeling

Zion

Partnership for a Connected Illinois
November 04, 2014
 
  

0 3 6 Miles

DISCLAIMER: This map is meant to be used for preliminary review purposes only. The information depicted on this map
is based on a limited amount of available data, and thus there are inherent inaccuracies. As more complete data is 
collected, the map will be updated and will contain more accurate information. This map should not be used to make any
decisions regarding the served, underserved, and not served areas. The NTIA definition of Broadband is greater than or 
equal to 768kbps at this time. (c) 2012 The Partnership for a Connected Illinois and/or the State of Illinois

Lake County

Greater than or equal to 1 Gbps

Greater than or equal to 100 Mbps and less than 1 Gbps

Greater than or equal to 50 Mbps and less than 100 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 25 Mbps and less than 50 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 10 Mbps and less than 25 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 6 Mbps and less than 10 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 3 Mbps and less than 6 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 1.5 Mbps and less than 3 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 768 kbps and less than 1.5 Mbps

No Broadband Service

Round Ten – Data Current as of June 30, 2014
(excluding Satellite and Cellular Data)

ILLINOIS

14

45
12

41

22

43

62 68

53

134

132

137

59

60

21

120

131

83

176

173

294

94

Antioch

Barrington

Cary

Deer Park Deerfield

Mettawa

Mundelein

Fox
Lake

Grayslake

Gurnee

Hainesville

Highwood

Johnsburg

Kildeer

Knollwood

Lake
Villa

Lake Zurich

Libertyville

Lincolnshire

Lindenhurst

Long
Grove

North Chicago

Oakwood
Hills

Round Lake

Spring
Grove

Trout Valley

Vernon
Hills

Volo

Wadsworth

Wauconda

Waukegan

Wheeling

Zion

Partnership for a Connected Illinois
November 04, 2014
 
  

0 3 6 Miles

DISCLAIMER: This map is meant to be used for preliminary review purposes only. The information depicted on this map
is based on a limited amount of available data, and thus there are inherent inaccuracies. As more complete data is 
collected, the map will be updated and will contain more accurate information. This map should not be used to make any
decisions regarding the served, underserved, and not served areas. The NTIA definition of Broadband is greater than or 
equal to 768kbps at this time. (c) 2012 The Partnership for a Connected Illinois and/or the State of Illinois

Lake County

Greater than or equal to 1 Gbps

Greater than or equal to 100 Mbps and less than 1 Gbps

Greater than or equal to 50 Mbps and less than 100 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 25 Mbps and less than 50 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 10 Mbps and less than 25 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 6 Mbps and less than 10 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 3 Mbps and less than 6 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 1.5 Mbps and less than 3 Mbps

Greater than or equal to 768 kbps and less than 1.5 Mbps

No Broadband Service

Round Ten – Data Current as of June 30, 2014
(excluding Satellite and Cellular Data)

ILLINOIS


	2016_01_04_Agenda
	2015_12_07_Minutes
	5.1 BILLS_LIST_010416
	5.2 COMBINED_PAYROLL_ENDING_121315
	1-BOARD AUTHORIZATION 12-17
	2-TOTAL 12-17
	3-ADMIN 12-17
	4-BOARD 12-17
	5-BLDG 12-17
	6-POLICE 12-17
	7-PW 12-17
	8-ZONING 12-17

	5.3 COMBINED_PAYROLL_ENDING_122715
	1-BOARD AUTHORIZATION
	2-TOTAL 12-31
	3-ADMIN 12-31
	4-BLDG 12-31
	5-POLICE 12-31
	6-PW 12-31

	5.4 De-icing Liquids Purchase
	5.5 Emergency Snow Removal Contract
	Emergency Snow Removal Contract.pdf
	CCF12032015_00000
	CCF12032015_00001
	CCF12032015_00002
	CCF12032015_00003
	CCF12032015_00004
	CCF12032015_00005
	CCF12032015_00006


	5.6 CCTV Authorization to Purchase  Closed Circuit Video System
	10.1 Guard Rail Repair
	12.1 2015 Comprehensive Plan



